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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Revenue was approximately RMB967.3 million,
representing a increase of approximately 30.6% from

last year.

Gross profit was approximately RMB229.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 9.4% from

last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was

approximately RMB93.9 million.
Basic earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.10.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of
RMBO0.020 per share for the year ended 31 December
2017, which will be subject to shareholders’ approval
at the annual general meeting. This represented a total
distribution of RMB18.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries collectively refer to as the
“Group”), | am pleased to present to you the annual results

for the year ended 31 December 2017 of the Group.

MARKET REVIEW AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, the global economy gradually recovered from
a slump which had lasted for years, with decline in
uncertainties in macro policies and political economy,
active trading in the capital market and steady recovery of
the bulk commodity market, significant improvement in risk
appetite in the international financial market. Against the
background of global economic recovery, China maintained
a stable economic development with a better-than-expected
growth and made more solid progress toward the strategic
target of building a moderately prosperous society. The
data of the National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s
Republic of China show that, in 2017, for the first time, the
gross domestic product (“GDP”) exceeded RMB8O trillion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.9%, which was
higher than the GDP growth target of 6.5% set in the Two
Sessions, and saw a pick-up in growth for the first time
since 2010. According to the Global Competitiveness Report
2017-2018 published by the World Economic Forum, China
ranked first followed by India in terms of market size, and
it was expected that Asia was likely to become a global
consumption, production and trading center in the future
and would continue to be the engine of global economic
growth.

China performed well in terms of a series of important
indicators of economic development, with an overall trend
better than expected. In 2017, the surveyed unemployment
rate in major cities of China reached its lowest level in
years; China reversed two straight years of declines in
imports and exports; the fiscal revenue, resident income
and corporate profitability were improved markedly; the
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

bond market, stock market and housing market were stable;
the foreign exchange reserve continuously increased; the
corporate leverage ratio decreased moderately. Meanwhile,
main businesses of the Group were conducted in Taicang,
Jiangsu, with a good development trend in 2017. According
to the data of the People’s Government of Jiangsu, during
the year, the number of newly established foreign-invested
enterprises reached 112 in Taicang, representing an increase
of 72.3%, and exceeded 100 for the first time. Supported by
newly established foreign-invested enterprises, the macro
economy of Taicang in 2018 is expected to maintain a
positive growth trend, creating a strong driver for growth of

the local energy market.

Continuous Increase in Demands for Natural Gas

In the natural gas industry in which the Group operated, the
national natural gas consumption accelerated significantly
during the year, driven by favorable policies frequently
published. The statistical data of the National Development
and Reform Commission show that the national natural
gas consumption in 2017 reached 237.3 billion m?,
representing an increase of 15.3% year-on-year. China’s
natural gas consumption growth hit a record high, and the
consumption increased explosively. According to the 713th
Five-Year Plan for Energy Development, the expected target
of the proportion of the natural gas consumption by 2020
is 10%, and it is expected that the natural gas consumption
by then will exceed 370 billion m?, representing an increase
of 164.2 billion m?, compared with 205.8 billion m?® in
2016, and the compound annual growth rate will reach
approximately 15.8%. In addition, as the explicit policy
of “shift from coal to natural gas” was put forward in the
Opinions on Accelerating Use of Natural Gas, it is expected
that the consumer demand for pipeline gas, liquefied natural
gas and shale gas will increase continuously in the market
in the future, and the natural gas industry will witness rapid
growth.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Meanwhile, in 2017, China became the world’s second
largest importer of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”), with import
of a total of 37.89 million tons of liquefied natural gas
during the year, representing a significant increase of 48.4%
year-on-year. In December 2017 alone, China imported 5.05
million tons of liquefied natural gas, up 38.25%, registering
its single highest ever monthly import volume since it started
importing LNG in 2006.

In 2017, the Taicang Port maintained capacity growth, with
the container throughput of 4.51 million TEUs and cargo
throughput of 0.25 billion tons in the year, respectively
up 10.5% and 7.8% year-on-year, contributing to 50% of
the throughput increase in the province. The Taicang Port
continued to be a major inland water transport center,
which will be conducive to demands of the overall logistics
industry in the district for LNG and compressed natural gas
(“CNG”) filling stations in the Taicang Port District. During
the year, the Group completed and put into operation, two
LNG and CNG filling stations in the Taicang Port District,
which increased the total number of gas filling stations
to eight including six gas filling stations in Sichuan and
Suzhou.

The Group, through Taicang Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (“Taicang
Natural Gas”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
established Changsu City Suyu Natural Gas Transmission
Co., Ltid. (FAMHEXRARBAE AR AF) (“Suyu Natural
Gas”), a joint venture, with Changshu Urban Construction
Management & Investment Co., Ltd. (“Changshu Urban
Investment”) during the year, for operating natural gas
transmission businesses, in order to seize the opportunity
arising out of continuous increase in the demands for natural
gas. This further expanded the business coverage to cities or
regions outside Taicang. Suyu Natural Gas was expected to
supply not less than 150 million m? of natural gas in 2018.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

With efforts to promote “shift from coal to natural gas”,
the demands for natural gas in Changshu, an industrial
developed city, have been stronger in recent years, which
provides significant room to grow. Establishment of Suyu
Natural Gas is conducive to helping the Group acquire
local users and further expand trans-regional businesses
into different areas, including pipeline gas, vehicle fueling
station and distributed energy resource, so as to secure a
more extensive customer source and revenue base, which

will facilitate steady expansion of the Group.

Commitment to Developing into a Comprehensive
Energy and Environmental Protection Enterprise

At present, China is in a critical period for economic
restructuring and transformation of economic growth
pattern, but it urgently needs to respond to such growing
environmental challenges as air pollution. In order to realize
sustainable development, promoting energy transition
and upgrading energy supply and consumption in a more
efficient and intelligent manner is the top priority for long-
term, sustainable and steady development of China in the

future.

The Company makes progress towards the same target. It is
committed to expanding a full range of energy businesses.
In addition to active development of urban pipeline gas
and gas filling station businesses, it will expand businesses
into distributed energy resource, intelligent energy, energy
conservation, environmental protection and other fields,
so as to develop itself into a comprehensive energy and
environmental protection enterprise. During the year, the
Group and China Railway Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (i
BEX¥SEABEMRAF) (“China Railway Real Estate”) entered
into a strategic cooperation framework agreement, so as
to promote extensive cooperation between both parties in
pipeline gas transmission, intelligent energy, distributed
energy resource stations, LNG single-point supply and other
businesses. Both parties will actively explore cooperation
in development of all types of clean energy (including but
not limited to natural gas) and jointly promote design and

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2017
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implementation of green and environmental protection
projects, intelligentization projects and weak current
projects. In the future, the Group will continue to cooperate
with China Railway Real Estate in actively promoting all
types of low-carbon and environmental protection projects,
so as to achieve an optimal balance between economic

development and environmental protection.

In addition, the Group acquired 51% equity interest
in Xinjiang Dunhua Gas Engineering Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Dunhua Gas”) in October 2017, marking further
expansion of the Group’s businesses into fields of carbon
capture, storage and utilization. The Group strengthened
the strategic orientation of commitment to developing into
a comprehensive energy and environmental protection
enterprise, while responding to the national target of
“Building a Beautiful China” put forward in the Report at
the 19th CPC National Congress. At present, the project of
Dunhua Gas is at the construction and investment stage. It
is expected that such business will be at the beginning of
the period of investment return in 2019, thus bringing about
new drivers of business growth of the Group.

After expansion of pipeline gas businesses into Kunshan
and Changshu adjacent to Taicang over the past two years,
the Group will continuously pay attention to opportunities
of acquisition of equity interests in natural gas operators in
areas around Taicang and outside Suzhou in the future, so as
to expand the business size, coverage and the revenue base
and improve the overall profitability.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2018, the global economy is expected
to maintain stable growth, and the United States and
Europe are on the road to recovery, while China and
regions involved in the Belt and Road Initiative will become
bright spots of economic development. However, it is still
necessary to be wary about uncertainties of the political and
economic development prospect of Europe and America,
change in the global leverage ratio, stock market bubble and

other risks.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

According to the 5-year global economic forecast provided
by the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”), it is expected
that, by 2020, China’s economy will approximate USD15.6
trillion with per capita GDP exceeding USD10 thousand,
accounting for approximately 17% of the global economy.
Supported by continuous growth of China’s economy,
Taicang, an industrial city located in the economic hub of
the Yangtze River Delta and adjacent to Shanghai, is more
likely to benefit from continuous promotion of “economic
integration of the Yangtze River Delta” and “One-hour
Economic Circle of Shanghai”. Urban agglomeration in
the Yangtze River Delta is shifting to the new model of
integrated economic development. Strategic regional
cooperation will bring about a strong internal driving force
for Taicang, further enhance local economic development
momentum, provide the Group with an excellent business
environment and support business expansion of the Group.

With low-carbon energy consumption, natural gas
will become the fossil energy with the fastest growing
consumption in the future. The Group will continue to pay
attention to fields of pipeline gas operations and natural
gas filling stations. Based on current stable natural gas
consumption, it will actively have the gas consumption
increased and continue to seek opportunities for regional
coverage and business expansion. It will focus on
development and expansion of the energy market in East
China and strategically develop markets with high growth
potential outside East China. Meanwhile, the Group will
also actively expand businesses into business segments with
growth potential in the upstream and downstream of the
industry chain, and will accelerate the pace of developing
into a comprehensive energy and environmental protection
enterprise. With diversified energy business integration of
the Group and favorable policy support, the Group Gas will
make unremitting efforts to enhance the operation efficiency
and scale effect, further accelerate business development,
and lay a solid foundation for achieving the long-term
steady business development.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSAEEEREBRE

DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of nine Directors, comprising
four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following
table sets out certain information about our Directors as at

the date of this annual report:

==
BPNESSRKHNLRESEN B8N
FHTEF MAFRTESR=RBUIF
WITES - TRIBEBEARBESTNAF
HEHNEOER

Name Age Roles and responsibilities

e Fie BULEME

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman) 69 Overall strategic planning and business direction and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group's strategy

ERPF AL () BRERE S LR T7 A A N BB AN S B SR A Y
ERENITHER

Ms. Su Yi (Executive Vice Chairman) 45 Assisting the chairman in formulating the overall strategic

planning and business direction of the Group and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group’s strategy

XL (BHRIER) B EFHIEASEREREAE MEXF M
AR EEREBRBENBENTER

Ms. Zhu Yaying 71 Implementation and monitoring of the Group’s strategic
plans and inter-departmental coordination within
our Group

ENCHE S g BEITRERARENRE S RAREBS A%

Mr. Du Shaozhou 65 Managing the day-to-day operations of the Group

HERRE kL EEAEENRREER

Non-executive Directors

FHUTES

Mr. Xu Lei 49 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

MPERE BITIEMITE SR

Mr. Zhuang Jianhao 56 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

HEESLLE [BITIEAITEF RS

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFIITES

Mr. Zhou Qingzu 85 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

FERLE JEITB EMITEE TS

Mr. Zhu Tong 49 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

R FE [BITEIFITE R AR

Mr. Luk Wai Keung 53 Performing roles as an independent non-executive

PERIR L
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Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (3% FF), aged 69, was appointed as a Director
on 26 February 2014 and was re-designated as the chairman
and an executive Director on 12 September 2014 and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
direction of the Group and overseeing the overall execution
of the Group’s strategy. Mr. Su has approximately 30 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Su has
been the director and general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas Co., Ltd. (“Taicang Natural Gas”) since its incorporation
in May 2002, responsible for its business development
and operation, strategic planning and investment. Mr. Su
has been the chairman and general manager of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (8 /N T & &I E ¥ & E A
A]) (now known as Suzhou City Suchuang Group Company
Limited (“Suchuang Group”)) since its incorporation in 1992
and is responsible for its overall management and business
development. From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Su worked at Taicang
Enterprise Liquified Gas Institute (KB ZEBRILEFT) under
Taicang Fabric Factory (KEHJE) (later renamed as Taicang
County Liquified Gas Company (K& & &{LR A F]), Taicang
County Gas Company (KEHHERAF]) and Taicang City
Gas Company (KETHERAA]) and held various positions
including manager and legal representative, responsible for
sales and development of business and overall management.

Mr. Su is also the chairman and legal representative of each
of Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas Company
Limited (“Kunlun Suchuang Gas”) and Suzhou PetroChina
Kunlun Suchuang Natural Gas Usage Company Limited. Mr.
Su is the spouse of Ms. Zhu Yaying and a parent of Ms. Su
Yi, both executive Directors of the Company.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERE

HITES

BRP 54 - 6958 - 1E2014F2 H26HEZE
TAEENN2014F9A12BATAEFH
HMITES  BREFIEARAEENEE RS
REBAM - AREBEAREEEHBNEE
TIER - B AERBL0FERRREERN
K - BRAEEBAEMARAREBRAR (K
BRAR]) 7200257 7 M AL A K —
HETESE#BKE  BEEGERLE
& BIERBIRINE o B EBEHINTERA
EXEEAF GAEHENTHASEBRERA
7 ([#REI%EE 1)) 1992 F Mk Sz AR -
—HETAEIERAKE B5HEREE
MEBLLE - N1984F £1992F » BR L £
RABMEE THABE EERIERRT (1K
ERARRERIERAAR KEBERATR
MABMERRAR) IT1E BELENEA
REZZEBN  BEEBNHERBERI

NERERE -

BELTREMNTOHEREKAMRERA
Al (TEm&EIMR]) FMEN A HE @&
BIRARMBERARNEFEFREARE °
BMIEERADRETWEMEREFERL TR
B RERZERBHELLTHR/ARBNIT
%

2017 FFH | HAMKROERD R

13



14

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. Zhu Yaying (JREZ3), aged 71, was appointed as a Director
on 4 July 2013 and was redesignated as an executive
Director on 12 September 2014. In addition to assisting the
Board and our chairman to formulate the Group’s strategic
plans, Ms. Zhu is also responsible for the implementation
and monitoring of those plans as well as inter-departmental
coordination within the Group. Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Ms. Zhu
joined Taicang Natural Gas since its incorporation in May
2002 where she was appointed as a director since December
2004, responsible for managing the financial resources
of the Company. Ms. Zhu joined Suzhou City Suchuang
Industrial Group Company (#RMTEFEIEZEEE LR (now
known as Suchuang Group) as deputy general manager on
its incorporation in December 1992, responsible for the
financial operations and human resources management.
Prior to joining Suchuang Group, Ms. Zhu was the head of
the labour department of Taicang County Gas Company (A
BBE R E]) (later renamed as Taicang City Gas Company
(KETE R AA)) from March 1988 to December 1992,
responsible for supervising and managing human resources.

Ms. Zhu is a director of Kunlun Suchuang Gas and a director
of Fung Yu Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Ms. Zhu is the spouse of Mr. Su Aping
and a parent of Ms. Su Yi, both executive Directors of the
Company.

Mr. Du Shaozhou (##8/8), aged 65, is the chief executive
officer of the Company and was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 September 2014. Mr. Du is responsible for
managing the day-to-day operations of the Group. He has
over 45 years of experience in the oil and gas industry.
Mr. Du has been a director of Taicang Natural Gas since
12 February 2015, responsible for the management of its
operation. From September 2008 to August 2012, Mr. Du
served at PetroChina Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company
Limited (R A BME®m AR R FMA AR A A) as deputy
general manager, deputy secretary to the Communist Party
Committee, secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and
chairman of the labour union. From April 1995 to September
2008, Mr. Du held various senior positions in Shenzhen
Petroleum Industrial Co., Ltd. (X I A HE ZHFR A 7))
such as deputy general manager, deputy secretary to the
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Communist Party Committee, secretary to the Disciplinary
Committee and chairman of the labour union. From June
1978 to April 1995, he worked at the Ministry of Petroleum
Industry of the PRC (REIA )M T2 EP) (later known as China
National Petroleum Company and China National Petroleum
Corporation) where he held various positions including
secretary and secretary (deputy division chief level) (&5 &%
Z). From December 1975 to June 1978, Mr. Du worked
at the Locomotive Team of Daging Oilfield Construction
Headquarter (KB hHBEEEIHEAEEK). From October
1969 to December 1975, Mr. Du worked at the Liaohe
Oilfield Geophysical Exploration (] i H %) 8 B&). Mr.
Du obtained a diploma in Public Administration from Staff
University of Continuing Education of the Party School of
the Central Committee of the CPC (H AR R E R T 383K
2 in the PRC in July 1990.

Ms. Su Yi (88Z), aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 30 June 2016 and the Executive Vice Chairman
of the Board on 21 February 2017. Ms. Su joined the Group
in May 2015 as the assistant to the chairman of the board of
directors of Taicang Natural Gas. Ms. Su is responsible for
assisting the Chairman in formulating the business strategies
of the Group, and enhancing and implementing the internal
procedures of the Group. Ms. Su has more than 10 years’
experience in computer software and project management.
She worked at the New York City Housing Authority of
the United States of America (the “US”) from May 2005 to
May 2015 and served various positions including computer
specialist (software). She worked on human resources
administration for the City of New York of the US from
November 2002 to May 2005.

Ms. Su obtained a master degree in science from Pace
University in January 2003. She has been certified as a
Project Management Professional (PMP) by the Project
Management Institute since July 2006. She also obtained a
certification for people program at the TOGAF 9 certified
level in December 2015. Ms. Su is a daughter of Mr. Su
Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying, both executive Directors of the
Company.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Lei (FF&), aged 49, was appointed as a Director on
27 February 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 12 September 2014. He has over 11 years of
experience in investment and business advisory in the PRC.
Mr. Xu joined Prax Capital Equity Management Co., Ltd.
(B EREEIR(EB AR AT in August 2003 and is
currently a managing partner of Prax Capital, responsible for
leading and conducting the fund’s investment activities in
the PRC.

Mr. Xu obtained a Master of Business Administration from
the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in
the United States in May 2001 and a Bachelor of Law from
Ningbo University in the PRC in July 1991.

Mr. Zhuang Jianhao (3£#3%), aged 56, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. Mr. Zhuang has
over 30 years of experience in gas industry. Since January
2002, he has been with Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd. (EBXZARAEXE(5EE) RO BRA
A]) and has served various positions including assistant to
general manager, chief technology officer, deputy general
manager and director. Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities
(Group) Co., Ltd. (L BEXBRAREE(5E) BRMHBRA
A]) is a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600635) and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 1635), and a
substantial shareholder of the Company through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Dazhong (Hong Kong) International
Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhuang has been the director
and deputy general manager of Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/BRFAREE (5E) kihA
fRA 7)) since April 2014.

Mr. Zhuang obtained a bachelor degree from East China
Chemical Industry College (ZEFR{LTEF3) (currently known
as East China University of Science and Technology (¥ 1%
T RZ)) specialising in coal chemical (Bt T %) in July
1983. Mr. Zhuang also attended a joint master program in
business administration from the University of Canberra
in Australia and the East China University of Science and
Technology and received master degrees in July and August
2004, respectively.

Mr. Zhuang was granted the title of senior engineer by

Shanghai Title Reform Leading Group (/8T EEME TIE
{83/\H) in December 1995.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Qingzu (AEEH), aged 85, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
He has over 60 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. From October 1996 to October 2000, Mr. Zhou
was a member of the Senior Technical Council of Economic
Advisers (R AR EEMZEE) at China Petroleum and
Petrochemical Engineering Institute (B A B A ITE
7). From July 1994 to July 1997, he was a member of
the Advisory Committee (25XZ& B€) of China International
Engineering Consulting Corporation (FEIEEE TRZAAA
a)). From 1988 to 1993, Mr. Zhou worked at China National
Petroleum Company (F BIAHRARLLAF]) (now known as
China National Petroleum Corporation) as chief economist.
Prior to joining China National Petroleum Corporation,
Mr. Zhou was the head of the planning department of the
Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC from 1979 to
1987. From 1954 to 1979, Mr. Zhou held multiple positions
within Xinjiang Petroleum Administration Bureau (7524 H
EI2/D), including chief economist and head of the planning
division and deputy head of Xinjiang Petroleum Bureau,
head of the planning division of Karamay Mining Bureau
(R AFBKTETS D), and head of Urumgi Petrochemical Plant
(BEARBA(ERE). From 1952 to 1954, Mr. Zhou worked at
Shaanxi Yanchang Oil Field (BREGRERIEHE) as an accounting

clerk and secretary.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial
management from Shanghai Institute of Finance and
Economics (now known as Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics) in the PRC in August 1952 and was awarded
professor-level senior economist in September 1989 by

China National Petroleum Company.
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Mr. Zhu Tong (KF¥), aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 13 July 2017. He is currently a
professor and doctoral advisor at the Research Institute of Thermal
and Environmental Engineering* (EV8EERIRIZE T 25T FT), School
of Mechanical Engineering* (# 1% 8 52 JR T12 2 F7) of Tongji
University ([FEAZ2). Mr. Zhu has co-authored teaching materials
relating to engineering thermodynamics and heat transfer. His
fields of research include distributed energy resources and high
efficiency energy utilization, and he is currently involved in
research projects relating to natural gas, renewable energy and
low emission micro-turbine technology* (7! 1% Sk # (K HE AR
#RKE). Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor degree, a master degree,
and a doctorate in thermal engineering from Harbin Institute of
Technology (W F8/E L AE) in July 1991, March 1994 and July
1997 respectively. Mr. Zhu was also a visiting scholar at Helmut
Schmidt University in Hamburg, Germany, from November
2001 to November 2002. Mr. Zhu currently serves as a council
member of each of the Chinese Society of Power Engineering
(“CSPE")* (FEIENH TIZE®) and the China Electronic Energy-
Saving Technology Association* (Bl E FEIRERIT A E). Mr. Zhu
is also a member of both the Boiler Professional Committee of
CSPE* (FEEN N TIREZIMEHERXZEEE) and the Cogeneration
Professional Committee of the Chinese Society for Electrical
Engineering* (TEIBEK T2 GRETELZER).
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Mr. Luk Wai Keung (PE{Z3&), aged 53, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 16 February
2015. Mr. Luk has over 19 years of working experience
in the accounting and finance area. Mr. Luk has been the
executive director of Sun International Resources Limited,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8029), since December
2015. Mr. Luk was the chief financial officer of Fu Shou
Yuan International Group Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1448),
from November 2013 to April 2015. Mr. Luk was the chief
financial officer of Larry Jewelry International Company
Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8351) from
July 2011 to October 2013, responsible for its overall
financial control and management. From August 2007 to
November 2010, Mr. Luk worked at SHV (China) Investment
Company Limited, where he held a number of senior
positions, including vice president, in finance, internal
audit and business development. From May 2006 to June
2007, he served as the chief financial officer of Synergis
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2340), responsible
for its overall finance, accounting and other corporate
functions. From January 1996 to January 2006, he worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers in the corporate finance area.

Mr. Luk graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science in Engineering in Hong Kong in
November 1986 and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Australian Graduate School of
Management of the University of New South Wales in
Australia in May 1994. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2014 and, a Chartered Financial Analyst at the Association
for Investment Management and Research since September
1999.
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The Directors’ interests in shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations, if any, within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2017 are disclosed in the “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares and debentures” section of the Report of

the Directors on pages 64 to 66 of this Annual Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following table sets out certain information about our

720178 12A31H  EERA R A H
mﬁlZHﬂﬁﬂPﬁﬁﬁﬂ’Wé@ (nB)(EER
EERBEENEXVE) RARFERFE64E
66E§$%$&¢f§$&£ fTEﬁZ/\E'\EAHX
- HERO REEENERRAR] —
WEE -

BREEE

TRIHBEARRAASRERENRAFHRA

senior management personnel as at the date of this annual ~ HiFJEBHER :

report:

Name Age Current Position

e Fik AR

Mr. Xu Xihua 62 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

mpERE RBERAREI BRI

Mr. Yuan Qing 43 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

RERE KB RAREBI@KE

Mr. Lian Guangyou 66 Chief engineer of Taicang Natural Gas

BEERESE RBERAREITIZAD

Mr. Ng Chi Kit 44 Chief financial officer and company secretary of
the Company

REGERE ARRHGRERARME

Mr. Zhou Jihui 55 Deputy general manager of the Company

[FEETE AR BIBEE
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Senior Management

Mr. Xu Xihua (##5%), aged 62, joined the Group in May
2002 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for sales and marketing of our Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu gained experience in
operational management of natural gas enterprise from his
employment at Taicang Suchuang Pipeline Liquified Gas
Engineering Company Limited (K& & 8| & BRI T T2
BB 7A), where he was a manager from January 1999
to April 2002, responsible for the overall management of
operations, safety, infrastructures and the supply of piped
liquified gas. From August 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Xu
was the chief officer of the enterprise safety division and
the infrastructures division (&R & & & &} &) of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (& /I 11 & B B % &
B~ 7]) (now known as Suchuang Group), where he was
responsible for the internal management and security,
infrastructure and property maintenance of the company. Mr.
Xu was employed as a telecommunications worker and later
promoted to the foreman at Lanzhou Railway Bureau from
December 1972 to December 1986.

Mr. Xu graduated from the Correspondence Institute
Affiliated to the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (F H P RER R K EE) in the PRC through its
distance learning programme in June 1990 specializing in
economics management. He has been a certified technician
of Suzhou Human Resources Bureau since December 2002
and a certified assistant government relations advisor (BB
T M) of the Ministry of Railway of the PRC since July 1991.
In addition, Mr. Xu received the Advanced Productivity
Worker award (50 AE(TE)%E) from the Lanzhou Railway
Bureau in March 1990 and the Taicang Outstanding
Communist Party Member award in June 1999.
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Mr. Yuan Qing (%), aged 43, joined the Group in August
2004 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for overseeing the operation of the
production department. Mr. Yuan has extensive management
experience. He joined Taicang Natural Gas in August 2004
as a manager of the production division, responsible for gas
supply service and scheduling, manufacturing operations
and safety management, and was promoted to deputy
general manager in July 2006. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Yuan was head of general office of Suchuang Group
from January to July 2004, responsible for internal operation,
regulatory compliance and external relationships. From
1993 to 2004, Mr. Yuan served in the People’s Liberation
Army in Beijing Military Region JtRE[&) and retried from
the People’s Liberation Army with the rank of captain. He
graduated from China People’s Liberation Army International
Relations College (B A K f## i E BB @A 26 in July
1999 specialising in Optic Intelligence Terminal Processing
(HEBEREmHEIE) and from Correspondence Institute of
the Party School of the Central Committee of the CPC (# #t
PRERHZER) in the PRC specialising in law through
its distance learning programme in December 2001. He was
awarded the qualification of engineer in June 2009.

Mr. Lian Guangyou (EEZX), aged 66, joined the Group
in May 2002 and is the chief engineer of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for its general technology and engineering
work. Mr. Lian joined Taicang Natural Gas in May 2002 as
chief engineer, responsible for designing the construction
of natural gas pipeline networks. Mr. Lian has 25 years of
experience in the management and operations of large oil
and gas enterprises. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lian
was a senior engineer and later promoted to the head of
Zhongyuan Petroleum Company Ethylene Plant ({1 R
AR from January 1992 to March 2002, responsible
for managing construction projects and production. From
October 1984 to December 1991, Mr. Lian was an engineer
and later promoted to the head of Zhongyuan Oil Field
Gas Company Pucheng Gas Processing Plant (F R i
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KRG R E B R EEIER), responsible for overseeing
the purification and compression of natural gas and
overall management of the plant. From September 1976
to September 1984, Mr. Lian was a technician and later
promoted to an assistant engineer at Chongqging Oil Field
(;EEHhH), responsible for implementation of atmospheric
and vacuum distillation technology. Mr. Lian graduated from
University of Petroleum (£ AZ) (now known as China
University of Petroleum (FBIAHAE)) in the PRC in August
1976 with a bachelor’s degree in oil refining. In addition,
he was certified as a senior engineer by China National
Petroleum Company (# B AHKARLE QT
China National Petroleum Corporation) in December 1995.

(now known as

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (RE#), aged 44, is the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company,
responsible for the oversight of the Group’s financial and
accounting operations, as well as company secretarial
and internal control function. Mr. Ng has over 16 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. Since December
2010, Mr. Ng has been a non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of Chaowei Power Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 951), responsible for oversight of
the financial management and reporting. From December
2010 to October 2013, Mr. Ng served as the chief financial
officer of a private company which is engaged in wholesale
agricultural produce markets in the PRC. From January
2010 to December 2010, he served as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Chaowei Power
Holdings Limited, responsible for oversight of financial and
accounting operations, company secretarial and internal
control function. From March 2000 to December 2009, Mr.
Ng worked in the Assurance and Advisory Business Services
Department of Ernst & Young and was a senior manager of
Ernst & Young from October 2006 to November 2009.

Mr. Ng graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts in
Accountancy in November 1997. Mr. Ng has been an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2003 and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since June
2006.
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Mr. Zhou Jihui (FE#)8), aged 55, joined the Group in April
2014 and is the deputy general manager of the Company,
responsible for the Group’s strategic development planning
and managing the Group’s construction projects. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has gained extensive
experience in the field of urban gas. From July 1985 to
March 2009, Mr. Zhou worked at Southwest Municipal
Engineering Design & Research Institute of China (BT
BT E R RARARAR)

positions including assistant engineer, engineer, senior

where he held various

engineer and chief gas engineer, responsible for urban gas
design, consultation and technology management. From
March 2009 to August 2012, Mr. Zhou was at PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited (4 A H 2
WMARARKFABR KA where he held various positions
including CNG chief technology officer responsible for
CNG engineering and technology management, the director
of the engineering technology department responsible for
the overall management of engineering and technology
operations, and the director of the information technology
department responsible for technology and information
technology management. Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s
degree in urban gas energy supply engineering (% i {A R &L
BEMLE T F2) from Chongging Institute of Architecture and
Engineering (EEEZETI2E ) (now known as Chongging
University (EEXRZ)) in the PRC in July 1985. Mr. Zhou
has been a certified senior engineer from December 1997
and a member of the Subcommittee of High Pressure Fuel
Gas Cylinders for Automobile of the National Gas Cylinder
Standardisation Technical Committee (% BIFRZ (L il
ZESEASERHRMORMEZESE) and the Professional
Committee of Compressed Natural Gas of the China Gas
Society (THIT AT REBENRAOGBERANREXZESD)
since September 2011 and October 2011, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Since the financial tsunami in 2008, the global economy
has suffered. Financial crisis hit major economic markets
one after the other, leading to global recession. Through ten
years of adjustment and reform, the global economy was
finally on the right footing in 2017, with a steady global
recovery and strong economic growth momentum, and
even witnessed the broadest growth since 2010. Against the
background of readjustment of economic pace in countries
around the world, China has always adhered to the work
guideline of making progress while maintaining stability
and successfully keeps up medium to high economic
growth that it achieved in last year. Driven by a pick-up
in macro-economic growth, significant recovery of the gas
industry, publication of favorable policies and other factors,
the natural gas consumption in China hit a new high, and
the industry grew explosively, in 2017. According to the
statistical data of the National Development and Reform
Commission (“NDRC”), the natural gas consumption in 2017
reached 237.3 billion m? representing an increase of 30
billion m* or a year-on-year growth of 15.3%.
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The energy profile of China is in a comprehensive
adjustment period, and promoting green economy
transformation is one of key national development strategies.
The National Energy Administration emphasised that under
the energy revolution guidance of “four revolutions and
cooperation”, China would continue to promote the energy
supply-side reform and be committed to optimizing the
energy structure, comprehensively promote energy upgrade
and consumption revolution and accelerate construction of
a clean, low-carbon, intelligent and efficient modern energy
system, while giving consideration to economic and social
development and livelihood requirements of the people.
The 13th Five-Year Plan for Natural Gas Development (the
“13th Five-Year Plan”) published by NDRC and the National
Energy Administration at the beginning of 2017 defines the
top-level design of China’s energy revolution and sets out
that increase in energy supply will be mostly clean and
low-carbon energy in the future, and efforts will be made
to increase the proportion of natural gas to the primary
energy consumption to 10% by 2020, through four key
tasks, namely enhancement of exploration and development,
acceleration of construction of natural gas pipeline
networks, acceleration of construction of gas storage
facilities and development of a natural gas market, so as to
gradually develop natural gas into main energy. Immediately
after publication of the 13th Five-Year Plan, many guiding
opinions on work in relation to natural gas were published
successively, including the Several Opinions on Deepening
Reforms of Petroleum and Natural Gas Systems, the
Guiding Opinions on Strengthening Gas Distribution Price
Regulation, the Opinions on Accelerating Promotion of
Natural Gas Utilization and the Medium and long-term Plan
for Oil and Gas Pipeline Networks, which further strengthen
the national energy direction of “shift from coal to natural
gas” and restate the strategic orientation of natural gas in
future energy policies.
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In order to promote “building a beautiful China” and
“making our skies blue again”, China did not slow down
promotion of natural gas utilization in the second half of
2017. The Action Plan for Integrated Control of Atmospheric
Pollution in Beijing, Tianjin, and Hebei Region and
Surrounding Areas in Autumn and Winter published by the
Ministry of Environmental Protection and other ministries
in August 2017 requires that the clean heating ratio should
be increased and is expected to reach 100%, 80% and 60%
by 2021 respectively in 2+26 key urban areas, villages and
towns in the Beijing, Tianjin, and Hebei region, so as to
reduce atmospheric pollutant emission. Thereafter, the Plan
for Clean Heating in Winter in Northern China (2017-2021)
published by ten ministries including NDRC, the National
Energy Administration, the Ministry of Finance and the
Ministry of Environmental Protection sets out that efforts
should be made to increase the clean heating ratio to 50%
by 2019 and 70% by 2021 in North China, so as to basically
realize clean heating in areas with heavy haze within 5
years. With enhancement of atmospheric pollution control,
the natural gas reform process is expected to be accelerated,
but this gives arise to a new test for the supply and demand
balance.

Energy is a source of driving force for economic
development as well as a driver for social civilization and
progress, so energy transition has become an important
topic at the national strategy level. As world-recognized
high-quality clean energy, natural gas is playing a leading
role in the world’s energy structure reform. According to the
forecast of the International Energy Agency, China will pass
the United States as the world’s largest consumers of energy
in 2035. This shows that China’s natural gas industry still has
vast room to grow, and the market size will increase more

rapidly over the next several years.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

As at 31 December 2017, as the leading piped natural gas
supplier and operator in Taicang City, Jiangsu Province,
China, the Group had a natural gas pipeline network
totaling 594.7 km covering all major regions in Taicang City
and over 90% (in terms of length) of the natural gas pipeline
network in Taicang City.

In 2017, Taicang City steadily promoted the new practice
of “focus on innovation and enriching the people, building
a moderately prosperous society at high level”, led
development, transformation and upgrade with innovation,
improved the well-being for the people, made efforts
to build a moderately prosperous society at high level.
Meanwhile, it vigorously promoted continuous enhancement
of the economic benefit. The data in the Government Work
Report of Taicang City 2018 show that, in 2017, Taicang
City recorded the gross regional product of RMB124 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 7.2%; the general
public budget revenue of RMB11 billion, representing an
increase of 10.3%; total investment of RMB46.7 billion
in fixed assets; and ranked sixth in China’s Top 100
Counties (Cities) in terms of comprehensive economic
competitiveness.
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Taicang City is located in the economic hub of the Yangtze
River Delta and adjacent to Shanghai, so it boasts an
excellent geographical location. With continuous promotion
of the philosophy of “economic integration of the Yangtze
River Delta”, cities within the urban agglomeration in the
Yangtze River Delta are jointly carrying out long-term,
strategic and overall regional cooperation and shift to
the new model of integrated economic development. The
agglomeration-based economic development brings about
a powerful internal driver for Taicang City and further
enhances local economic development momentum. In
addition, by 2021, Taicang City will become a way station
in the railway network along the Yangtze River as well as a
satellite city in the “One-hour Economic Circle of Shanghai”.
It will, together with Nanjing, Kunshan, Changshu and other
regions, form a special economic tie around Shanghai.
The favorable macroeconomic environment and great
growth potential of Taicang City provides the Group with
an excellent business environment and strong support for
business development, which is conducive to steady growth
of the Group.

During the year, the Group, through Taicang Natural Gas, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, established Suyu Natural
Gas, a joint venture, with Changshu Urban Investment,
for operating natural gas transmission and distribution
businesses. This further expanded the business coverage
to cities or regions outside Taicang. Suyu Natural Gas was
expected to supply not less than 150 million m?® of natural
gas in 2018.
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Moreover, in order to align with the development direction
of future energy technologies, the Group was committed
to developing itself into a comprehensive energy and
environmental protection enterprise, developed diversified
energy businesses and further expanded businesses into
distributed energy resource, low-carbon and environmental
protection fields. During the year, the Group and China
Railway Real Estate entered into a strategic cooperation
framework agreement, so as to establish a strategic alliance
relationship for urban development and operation and
cooperate with each other in their respective businesses and
support each other. The scope of cooperation between both
parties covers piped gas transmission, intelligent energy,
distributed energy resource stations, LNG single-point
supply and other businesses and joint promotion of all types
of green and environmental protection projects.

Thereafter, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in
Dunhua Gas for a total consideration of RMB22.33 million
on 24 October 2017, further expanding businesses into
fields of carbon capture, storage and utilization. At present,
the project of Dunhua Gas is at the construction and
investment stage. It is expected that such business will be
at the beginning of the period of investment return in 2019,
thus bringing about new drivers of business growth of the
Group.

ADJUSTMENT OF NATURAL GAS PRICE

The Group has been in good strategic relation with
PetroChina Company Limited for more than 9 years, and put
into operation the city gateway station which is connected
with Sichuan-East Transmission Pipeline of Sinopec in
November 2015, further ensuring sufficient gas-supply
resources in areas where the Group carries out main
businesses. The purchase price of natural gas of the Group is
determined by NDRC according to the type of end users and
gateway station prices. During the year, the Group’s average
unit purchase price for natural gas (exclusive of VAT) (which
is calculated by dividing the total natural gas purchase cost
by the total natural gas purchase volume for the relevant
period) was RMB1.89/m*. The maximum end-user price
at which the Group could sell piped natural gas to the
end-users is determined by the Taicang Price Bureau. The
prices for industrial and commercial end-users are generally
higher than those for residential users and other users.
During the year, the Group’s average unit selling price for
natural gas (exclusive of VAT) was RMB2.49/m?>.
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NATURAL GAS SALE AND TRANSMISSION
BUSINESS

Taicang City, our main operating area, is a major industrial
county-level city in Jiangsu Province, and is adjacent to
affluent cities in eastern China, such as Suzhou, Kunshan,
Changshu and Shanghai, with remarkable geographic
advantages available, creating the Shanghai-Taicang one-city
effect together with Shanghai. The dynamic economic and
industrial development has brought unceasingly increasing
industrial and commercial users of natural gas to the Group.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has 585 commercial
and industrial users, and 220,000 residential users,
representing an increase of 35 users and approximately
40,000 users respectively as compared to 31 December
2016. During the year, revenue generated from our sale and
transmission of natural gas business increased by 37.1%
to approximately RMB851.1 million from approximately
RMB620.7 million in 2016, which accounted for 88.0% of
the Group’s total revenue. The increase was primarily due to

the increase in volume of natural gas sold in 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 5
CNG filling stations, including 3 CNG filling stations in
Guangyuan, Sichuan and 2 CNG filling stations in Taicang
and Suzhou.

NATURAL GAS PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION AND
CONNECTION BUSINESS

The Group’s natural gas pipeline construction and
connection business includes the construction and
installation of urban gas pipeline networks, as well as the
connection of the networks to the end-user pipelines for
property developers and new industrial and commercial
users. During the year, revenue generated from natural
gas pipeline construction amounted to RMB110.6 million,
representing decrease of 4.7% from RMB116 million as of

the year 2016, which accounted for 11.4% of total revenue.
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EXPANSION OF BUSINESSES INTO REGIONS
OUTSIDE TAICANG

In 2017, the Group further expanded natural gas businesses
into areas outside Taicang City, on the basis of consolidating
existing markets after the Group expanded piped natural
gas sales and distribution businesses into Qiandeng
Town, Kunshan City in 2016. During the year, the Group,
through Taicang Natural Gas, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, established Suyu Natural Gas, a joint venture,
with Changshu Urban Investment. Taicang Natural Gas and
Changshu Urban Investment respectively held 51% and 49%
equity interest in Suyu Natural Gas. Main businesses of Suyu
Natural Gas include sales of natural gas, gas equipment
and liquefied gas, gas equipment consulting and natural gas
project investment.

With efforts to promote “shift from coal to natural gas”,
the demands for natural gas in Changshu, an industrial
developed city, have been stronger in recent years, which

provides vast room to grow.

DEVELOPING INTO A COMPREHENSIVE
ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
ENTERPRISE

Distributed energy resource, low-carbon and energy-saving
technologies are core elements of global energy reform.
At present, natural-gas distributed energy resource and
environmental protection industries of China are still in
their infancy. During the year, the Group and China Railway
Real Estate entered into a strategic cooperation framework
agreement, so as to establish a strategic alliance relationship
for urban development and operation and cooperate with
each other in their respective businesses and support each
other, thus gaining an advantage in the market. The scope
of cooperation between both parties covers piped gas
transmission, intelligent energy, distributed energy resource
stations, LNG single-point supply and other businesses and
joint promotion of all types of green and environmental
protection projects. In the future, both parties will also
cooperate in developing vast room to grow in low-carbon

and environmental protection fields.
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Thereafter, the Group, through Suchuang Shanghai, entered
into an acquisition agreement with Xinjiang Dunhua Green
Petroleum Technology Co., Ltd. GTEFELHZERBEHER
2 R]) (“Dunhua Petroleum”) and Dunhua Gas, for acquiring
51% equity interest in Dunhua Gas from Dunhua Petroleum
for a total consideration of RMB22.33 million. Meanwhile,
Dunhua Gas became an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group with 51% of shares held by the
Group. The main businesses of Dunhua Gas include
capturing carbon dioxide and nitrogen from industrial waste
gas from oil refineries, gas-fired power stations, chemical
fertilizer plants, etc., through self-owned technologies,
and storing and utilizing them. During the year, Dunhua
Petroleum entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
with Shell China Exploration and the Production Company
Limited (the “Shell”), and then became a global strategic
cooperation partner of the Shell in carbon collecting,
storage, use and improvement of enhanced oil recovery.

Such acquisition supports the Group in expanding
businesses into low-carbon and environmental protection
fields, strengthening the Group’s strategic orientation of
commitment to developing into a comprehensive energy and
environmental protection enterprise. At present, the project
of Dunhua Gas is at the construction and investment stage.
It is expected that such project will be at the beginning of
the period of investment return in 2019 and lead the Group
to make progress toward the development direction of
diversified energy service.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

During the year, the Board appointed Ms. Su Yi as the
Executive Vice Chairman of the Board to assist Mr. Su Aping,
Chairman of the Board in formulating overall strategies
of the Group and supervising implementation, in order to
support the Group in achieving the target of developing
from a piped gas company to a comprehensive energy

service provider.

Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENWR D

Hig  AEBERBEHA LBERFBHERE
ABMEARAR (RELH]) RBER
BERFTWEGZ  NBRKEARE22338
TLRARERMBERRERBHS1%AE
HERRTRSKNAAEEREKIE2ENE
NAE FRERS 1% BERBIEERRS
BB B AR EBRmAR - RRER - LA
BEILEERT  BE_SLELBRERAR I
EITNRMEF o BE OB R FAERE S
BYRELEERBRAR ([FAER]) AT B
B NARBERBE - HEMNAR
REARAOBREETENERERS R
o

B IR Y5 FE B A S B4 56 7% 4 B #0 R = (AR
REE R TAEEBRNBRBEAER
RIRGENBE T - B AT FEREHIE
B IERNERKREMRER - R E &1X2019
FRAMKE - S| EARKEHAE L TTLEER
RIGHER T FIBAE

FRAEAREHE
REAAKENREENRABEAZLE AR
RBHEBNEBERT  EFSCRFAL
MEHRERTHEEFTERHATE  HHE
28 AR ST A B E SR B AR B B IA 2
EEMRBMITER

2017 FFH | HAMKROERD R

33



34

Management Discussion and Analysis

I ERE &R

Ms. Su Yi, aged 45, is a daughter of Mr. Su Aping, Chairman
of the Board and Ms. Zhu Yaying, executive Director, and
Ms. Su Yi is an executive Director. Ms. Su Yi had worked in
the United States of America (the “US”) for over 20 years
and has over ten years of experience in computer software,
project management and enterprise architecture design. She
worked for local government bodies. She has a profound
understanding of and has researched into the distributed
energy resource market which is fast-growing in the US.

During the year, the Group actively made extensive
arrangement in cities around Taicang City. The Group,
through Taicang Natural Gas, established Suyu Natural
Gas, a joint venture, with Changshu Urban Investment,
Both

parties expanded businesses of the Group into areas outside

and held 51% equity interest in Suyu Natural Gas.

Changshu and Taicang, which is conducive to broadening of
the customer base and the revenue base, overall sustainable
development and consolidation of the overall financial
condition of the Group.

During the year, the Group entered into a strategic
cooperation framework agreement with China Railway Real
Estate, so as to establish a strategic alliance relationship
for urban development and operation and cooperate with
each other in their respective businesses and support
each other, for the purpose of implementing the overall
development strategy of developing into a comprehensive
energy and environmental protection enterprise. The scope
of cooperation between both parties covers piped gas
transmission, intelligent energy, distributed energy resource
stations, LNG single-point supply and other businesses and
joint promotion of all types of green and environmental

protection projects.
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Thereafter, on 24 October 2017, the Group, through
Suchuang Shanghai, entered into an acquisition agreement
with Dunhua Petroleum and Dunhua Gas, for acquiring
51% equity interest in Dunhua Gas from Dunhua Petroleum
for a total consideration of RMB22.33 million. Meanwhile,
Dunhua Gas became an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group with 51% of shares held by the
Group.

In order to further optimize the shareholder structure, on 21
February 2017 the Group entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent. Pursuant to the agreement, the placing
agent procured the placees to subscribe for 40,000,000
new shares of the Company (the “Placing Shares”) at a
placing price of HKD2.20 per share. 40,000,000 Placing
Shares accounted for 4.43% of the issued share capital of
the Company as enlarged by the Placing Shares were issued
to not less than six independent third parties on 10 March
2017. The net proceeds from the Placing Shares amounted
to approximately HK$86.5 million.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue

Our total revenue increased by 30.6% from RMB740.9
million in 2016 to RMB967.3 million in 2017. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from

transmission of natural gas business during the year.

Gross profit

Our gross profit increased by 9.4% from RMB209.3 million
in 2016 to RMB229.0 million in 2017. The increase
was primarily due to the increase in gross profit from
transmission of natural gas businesses. The decrease in
the Group’s gross profit margin from 28.3% to 23.7%
was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit margin
of transmission of natural gas business as a result of the
decrease in average unit selling price of natural gas and
slight increase in average unit purchase price of natural gas
during the year.
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Other income and gains

Other income and gains decreased by 25.6% from RMB22 .4
million in 2016 to RMB16.7 million in 2017, primarily
due to the decrease in government grants received and no
foreign exchange gain recognised in 2017.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 42.2% from
RMB48.3 million in 2016 to RMB68.7 million in 2017,
which was mainly due to the increase in staff costs and
share options expenses, such increase was in line with the

Group’s business expansion.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by 39.0% from RMB4.5 million
in 2016 to RMB6.3 million in 2017. The increase was
primarily due to the increase in average borrowing balances
in 2017.

Share of profits of associates

Our share of profits of associates increased by 23.8% from
RMB1.5 million in 2016 to RMB1.9 million in 2017. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in sales of
pipeline natural gas business of our associated company in
2017.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by 7.0% from RMB44.9
million in 2016 to RMB48.1 million in 2017, primarily
attributable to our increased taxable income for the year
2017. Our effective tax rate remained stable at 26.6% and
32.4% in 2016 and 2017 respectively.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

In 2017, profit attributable to owners of the parent amounted
to approximately RMB93.9 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 22.2% from approximately RMB120.7
million for 2016.
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current assets
of approximately RMB561,934,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB343,424,000) of which cash and cash equivalents
were approximately RMB569,991,000 (31 December
2016: approximately RMB400,359,000). Total borrowings
were approximately RMB90,000,000 (31 December 2016:
approximately RMB95,780,000). The amount of bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2017 were denominated in
RMB and bore interest ranging from 4.35% to 5.39% per
annum. Except for RMB40.0 million which are repayable
within one vyear, the rest of balances are not repayable
within one year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current ratio (current
assets/current liabilities) was 2.72 (31 December 2016:
2.03) and gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets) was
approximately 4.8% (31 December 2016: approximately
5.8%). The Group has sufficient cash and available banking
facilities to meet its commitments and working capital
requirements. This strong cash position enables the Group
to explore potential investment and business development

opportunities to expand its business in China.

Treasury policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its
treasury policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to
credit risk by performing ongoing credit evaluations of the
financial conditions of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its funding
requirements.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As all of the Group’s businesses are situated in the PRC,
substantially all of its income and expenses are denominated
in RMB. The exchange fluctuation during the year mainly
arised from appreciation of RMB against the US dollar kept
in Hong Kong, and such cash was generated from the fund
raising activities of the Group in the past few years. The
Group will closely monitor the interest rate and exchange
rate of the market and make appropriate responses when
necessary.
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Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: nil).

Charge on assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
assets were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The aggregate carrying amounts of the assets
of the Group pledged at the end of each of the reporting
periods are as follows:

FREE

R2017F12A831H  AEBWEMEMEKR
FHAREE (20165128310 « &) o

BEEKRA

RWERR - AEBECHETE T EEARS
BRI AKRENRITHE - REREHR - K
SECEMEENKR@AERRNT

2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT AREFT
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 120,893 124,035
Pledged deposits [REARCTESN 67,000 -
Prepaid land lease payments TE R £ 3 10 & FRIE 4,223 4,323
Capital commitments BEAESE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the ZAEBERFRAERAERNT :
end of the year:
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT
Contracted, but not provided for: B ETAME KB -
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 6,379 11,198
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Prospects

Looking back to 2017, vigorously driven by expansionary
fiscal policies, increased external demands and
the supply-side reform, China’s economy saw
better-than-expected growth, sufficiently showing its
resilience of growth. With acceleration of the reform
process, implementation of the “Belt and Road Initiative”
and continuous recovery of the global economic recovery,
China’s macro economy is expected to maintain positive
momentum in 2018. For sustainable development, China
is gradually shifting its energy structure to clean power
generation and continuously promotes a low-carbon
economic model, which provides a new development
opportunity for the natural gas industry. According to the
statistical data of the National Energy Administration, the
natural gas consumption in China in 2017 reached 237.6
billion m?, representing an increase of 30 billion m* or a
year-on-year growth of 15.3%. The increase in consumption
was mainly attributable to continuous growth in foreign
trade in Mainland China, demand for gas driven by
industrial growth and demand of residential and industrial
users for natural gas further bolstered by comprehensive
implementation by the central government of the “shift from
coal to natural gas” project in Beijing, Tianjin, and Hebei
region, the Yangtze River Delta and the Pearl River Delta.
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At present, with regard to the energy structure, China is
at the stage of “shift from coal to natural gas” and “shift
from fossil energy to non-fossil energy”, but there are many
technological difficulties as to renewable energy, so it is
difficult to totally replace fossil fuels in the short term.
Therefore, China’s energy industry will certainly develop
towards distributed energy resource which integrates
complementary types of energy. However, at present, China’s
distributed energy resource is still in its infancy, while severe
climate issues are looming, so the environmental protection
industry has become an important measure for accelerating
mitigation of environmental pollution. In order to seize
business opportunities arising out of energy revolution, the
Group has gradually shifted its business focus to develop
from a piped gas company to a comprehensive energy
and environmental protection enterprise. In addition to
commitment to consolidating core natural gas businesses in
special economic ties around Shanghai, the Group expanded
businesses into distributed energy resource, energy
conservation and emission reduction services. It endeavored
to realize circular economy and environmental protection,
and responded to the national target of “building a beautiful
China” put forward in the Report at the 19th CPC National
Congress, so as to achieve an optimal balance between

economic development and environmental protection.

2018 is the first year for implementation of the spirit of
the 19th CPC National Congress as well as a key year for
implementation of the 13th Five-Year Plan. At the Central
Economic Work Conference 2018, it was emphasised that
China’s economy was entering a new era and would shift
from high-quality development to high-quality development,
with focus on “eradication”, “cultivation” and “cost
reduction” tasks. With regard to “cost reduction”, it is
pointed out that efforts will be made to deepen the reform
of the domestic natural gas industry, further promote specific
implementation of the “shift from coal to natural gas” policy,
continue to enhance domestic natural gas consumption and
achieve a suitable balance between supply and demand. It
is believed that, supported by favorable national policies,
China’s natural gas industry is poised for better times.
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The Group will seize opportunities to actively expand
and extend the industry chain. It will endeavor to realize
upstream and downstream integration in long-term planning
and will accelerate its development into a comprehensive
energy and environmental protection enterprise. The Group
has made extensive arrangement in cities around Taicang
City, such that businesses of distribution and transmission of
piped gas and natural gas have covered Kunshan City and
Changshu City. In last year, it carried out vehicle fueling
station businesses in Guangyuan, Sichuan. In the future, the
Group will further develop businesses in east China and
strategically develop markets with high growth potential
outside east China. It plans to realize expansion into regions
and fields through acquisition of equity interest or various
cooperation models, so as to expand the business size.
Meanwhile, the Group will capitalize on business networks
and superior resources to provide more diversified energy
and environmental protection solutions; expand the gas
source structure including imported LNG and shale gas;
investigate the coverage of pipelines along the Yangtze River
which are connected to Changshu, Zhangjiagang, Jiangyin
and other developed areas in the Yangtze River Delta;
establish a user-centered big data service platform and
continuously explore opportunities for further expanding the
business coverage.

Human resources and employees’ remuneration

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of
316 (31 December 2016: 202) staff members in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the total cost of employees
amounted to approximately RMB44.6 million. The Group
sought to further strengthen staff training by offering focused
training programmes and study tours to management and
professional technical personnel, and disseminating the
latest information of government policy on the distribution
and sale of piped natural gas business to its staff. The Group
continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group
also provided competitive salary packages to its staff,
encouraging them to be fully dedicated to their work and to
leverage their capabilities in serving customers.
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EERBE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has been in compliance with
the mandatory code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) since
the listing of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) (the
“Listing”) on the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2015 (the
“Listing Date”). The key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are outlined later in this annual
report.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees,
namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.
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Board composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
nine members, consisting of four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)

Ms. Su Yi (Executive Vice Chairman)
Ms. Zhu Yaying

Mr. Du Shaozhou

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Lei
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu

Mr. Zhu Tong

Mr. Luk Wai Keung

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 12 to
19 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the biographies
of the Directors and that Mr. Su Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying
have jointly own and operate a number of companies, the
Board members do not have any family, financial or business
relationship among themselves, and between the chairman
and the chief executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this annual report, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board.
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The Company has received the annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors on his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Board meeting

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for

regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are dispatched to the Directors or Board
Committee members at least three days before the meetings
to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
Directors or Board Committee members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings are/will be recorded in sufficient detail to
include the matters considered by the Board and the Board
Committee and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the date on which the meeting is held.
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Attendance at Board and Board Committee

Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings and

Board Committee meetings held up during the year is set out

as follows. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the

Company convened an annual general meeting.

EFENRESESR

BESEREEFAMBTNESESTESH
NREFZEQEZNHFERREAINLT - &
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Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual  Extraordinary
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee general general
meeting meeting meeting meeting ~ meeting meeting
ES® =ENZEE R4ZBE FMZEE BR KR
Name of director BERfA EE: EE L % BFEAe ShlvN-
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Su Aping (Chairman) BT EE (2) 77 NIA TEF 22 NATER 11 11
Ms. Zhu Yaying REBRLL 57 NAMNER  NANER 22 I 11
Mr. Du Shaozhou HEBRERE 67 NATER NATER NATER /1 171
Ms. Su i #Eat
(Executive Vice Chairman) (BBELE) 57 NATER NATER NATER n 0/1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Xu Lei SELA 5/7 22 NATER  NATER 0/1 0/1
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao HERRE 47 NATER NATER  NATER 0/1 01
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BEHELE 2/7 12 12 12 0/1 0/1
Mr. He Junjie ARt 717 2/2 2/2 2/2 0/1 0/1
Mr. Luk Wai Keung BEREtE 6/7 22 NATER  NATEA 0/1 0/1
Mr. Zhu Tong PN e 22 NATER NATER  NATER NATER 01
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Audit Committee

During the year, the Audit Committee comprises four
members, three of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. He Junjie and
Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and one of them is a non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Xu Lei. Mr. Zhou Qingzu, the
Company’s independent non-executive Director, has been
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr.
Luk Wai Keung possesses the appropriate professional

qualifications required under the Listing Rules.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board of the appointment
and removal of the external auditors, review financial
statements and review and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Audit Committee has access to independent professional
advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function, and with the senior
management and auditors of the Company reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, the risk management and internal control
system and financial reporting matters. It also reviewed
the financial statements of the Company, the Company’s
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and
the Company’s annual report for year ended 31 December
2017.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the

above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

During the year, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, two of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Zhou Qingzu,
and one of them is an executive Director, namely, Ms. Zhu
Yaying. Mr. He Junjie, the Company’s independent non-
executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
has access to independent professional advice, if required,
and is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board as to the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, in which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman
of the Board about the remuneration proposals for the other

executive Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings. The Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Company and the remuneration
of Directors and senior management and made

recommendation to the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members
at the above meeting is set out in the above section headed

“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Nomination Committee

During the year, the Nomination Committee consists of three
members, one of them is an executive Director, namely Mr.
Su Aping, and two of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Zhou Qingzu.
Mr. Su Aping has been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has
access to professional advice, if required, and is provided

with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set
out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board and made recommendation to the
Board.

The attendance of the Nomination Committee members at

the above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company shall
establish comprehensive corporate governance practices and

procedures. During the year, the Board has:

(1) established and reviewed the corporate governance
policies and practices of the Company as well as made
relevant recommendations;

(2) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of
the Company regarding the compliance of relevant
legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) established, reviewed and monitored code of conduct
for Directors and employees; and

(5) reviewed as to whether the Company has complied
with the CG Code and made necessary disclosures in
the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separated
and performed by different individuals. The chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company are
currently two separate positions held by Mr. Su Aping and
Mr. Du Shaozhou respectively with distinct responsibilities.
The chairman of the Board is responsible for overall strategic
planning and overseeing the general corporate, financial and
compliance affairs of the Group. The chief executive officer
is primarily responsible for the strategic decision making
and the management of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - TERM OF
APPOINTMENT

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are not appointed for a specific term of

more than three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Three of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Su Aping,
Ms. Zhu Yaying and Mr. Du Shaozhou entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date and shall
continue thereafter unless terminated by not less than six
months’ written notice. Mr. Xu Lei, a non-executive Director
and each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date unless
terminated by three months’ written notice or in certain
circumstances in accordance with the terms of the relevant
letter of appointment.

Ms. Su Yi, an executive Director, entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 30 June 2016 unless terminated by six
months’ written notice or in certain circumstances as in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement. Mr.
Zhuang Jianhao, a non-executive Director, entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 30 June 2016 unless terminated by
three months’ written notice or in certain circumstances in

accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.
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None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has any service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the appointment,
retirement, re-election and removal of Directors are set out
in the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”). The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board structure, size and composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT
AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at every annual general meeting provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
next annual general meeting after appointment.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of
the Company by the Directors and the Group’s senior
management who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that
they had complied with the Model Code during the year. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance
of the Model Code by the senior management of the Group
up to the date of annual report.
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DIRECTORS” CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company updates the Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a
summary of training received by the Directors during the
year is as follows:

EENEREXRE
EXATHERENERBEY S HEERE
ERBERABERNMENNS 2 NHE N6
NHEREEFEABEAEANIEAFD
EATRAEZSELER - ARBITKAE
SRELETRAUAREMEREERENK
BRI WERESETRUENEESE
AER - LRATEHRIFEEERERNE
e

REFIRHENDE  EERAEEEIE
M ET

Type of Continuous
Professional

Development

Programmes
Name of Directors EEMUE FEERER;EER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Su Aping R A B
Ms. Su Vi #HELL A, B
Ms. Zhu Yaying RERZLE A B
Mr. Du Shaozhou AR L E A B
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Xu Lei TEEE A B
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao HEEkE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFEHITESE
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BEREE A B
Mr. He Junjie A& B & A, B
Mr. Zhu Tong EN i A B
Mr. Luk Wai Keung BERRRESE A B
Notes: PEE
A:  attending training sessions and/or seminars Ar HESEIIRER S E

B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements
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REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2017, except for a
member of senior management whose remuneration fell
within the ranging from HK$3.5 million to HK$4.0 million,
the remuneration of the rest of the members of senior

management were below HK$1.5 million.

Further details of the remuneration of Directors and five
highest paid employees have been set out in notes 8 and 9
to the financial statements.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to Ernst
& Young for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out

below:
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out
in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this

annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of
the Board to maintain an internal audit function and an
adequate risk management and internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets
and to review the effectiveness of such system on an annual

basis.

The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are to provide a clear
governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as
a reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage it
risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the senior management of the Company.
The Board determines the nature and extent of risks that
shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives,
and has the overall responsibility for monitoring design,

implementation and control of the risk management and
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internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set
up and maintained a suitable and effective risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has formulated and adopted a Corporate Risk
Management Policy in providing direction in identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an
annual basis, the senior management identifies risks that
would affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to be
significant.

Risk management report and internal control report are
submitted to the audit committee and the Board at least
once a year. The Board had performed an annual review
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal
control systems; result of internal audit work and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are

effective.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the
Listing Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed
to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours of the SFO.
Before inside information is fully disclosed to the public,
such information is kept strictly confidential. In addition, the
Group adopted the policy of disclosing relevant information
only to appropriate staff within the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Chi Kit, the Company Secretary, reports to the
chairman of the Board. The details of his biography is set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Ng also confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December
2017.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be
called by the Board. The written requisition must specify the
business to be transacted on the meeting, which shall be

held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
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If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene an
EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may themselves
convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to such

shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address: 13th Floor, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,
Hong Kong

Email:  ir@taicanggas.com

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond
to the shareholder(s)’ questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company shall
submit such proposals to the Board in writing for the
Board’s consideration not less than 7 days prior to the
date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are set out in the paragraph headed
“Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board” under the section headed “Shareholders Rights”
above.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. The Company discloses information in
compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic
reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely,
fair, accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions. Updated key information and business
development of the Group are also available on the
Company’s website to enable Shareholders and investors to
have timely access to information about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
general meetings which provide a forum for Shareholders
to provide comments and exchange views with the Board.
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available
at the annual general meetings of the Company to address

Shareholders” queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure

effective Shareholders” communication and transparency.

There has been no change to the Articles of Association
since the Listing Date and up to date version of the Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal business activities of the Group include
distribution and sale of piped natural gas, provision of
natural gas transmission and acting as the main contractor
of construction and installation of gas pipelines in the PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
125 to 130.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of RMB0.020 (equivalent to HK$0.024) per
ordinary Share for shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Monday, 4
June 2018. Subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Friday, 25 May 2018, the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on Friday, 15 June 2018
to the shareholders of the Company. This represented a
total distribution of RMB18.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

Summary financial information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 252. This summary does not

form part of the audited financial statements.
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Property, plant and equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the

financial statements, respectively.

Share capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the law of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of
the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year 31 December 2017 to the date of this annual

report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
RMB732,051,000, of which RMB0.020 per Share has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year (which represented
a total distribution of RMB18.1 million).
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Major customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 36.1% of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer for the year amounted
to 19.1% of the total sales for the year. Purchases from
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 86.4%
of the total purchases for the year and purchase from the
largest supplier for the year amounted to 42.7% of the total
purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the five largest
customers or five largest suppliers of the Group during the
year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)
Ms. Zhu Yaying
Mr. Du Shaozhou (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Su Yi (Executive
Vice Chairman)

(Appointed as Executive
Vice Chairman on
21 February 2017)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Xu Lei
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao

Independent Non-executive
Directors:
Mr. Zhou Qingzu
Mr. Luk Wai Keung

Mr. Zhu Tong (Appointed on
13 July 2017)
Mr. He Junjie (Resigned on

1 February 2018)
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Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles of Association, Mr.
Du Shaozhou, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Mr. Xu Lei will retire
from office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

Further, in accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, Ms, Su Yi and Mr. Zhuang Jianhao will hold
office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting,

and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. He Junjie and
Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 12 to

24 of this annual report.
Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years which
may only be terminated in accordance with the provisions
of the service contract by either party giving to the other not

less than three to six months’ prior notice in writing.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2017

RIBABSIZMARMG - HHEAEALE - K
DREUETLRAETEEBRNERERRBSE KR
TLmFEREESE B ATAERBEE
o

LS - RIBABERARIFE 11216 BHEL
T MGERE RN THE R EERRBF K
SERTNER - B EEEE -

AAREERERBER LS - ARG E N
BRETHFARENBULEFEER L
BRARSREEANRE BRIDERRBILA
j: o

EENEHNEEEERE
AAREERAEESREREENBEFE
R ARFERFEI12E247 -

EEHRBESE

BRTEFCRBARAGILREAR - R
=F UEARBRBERGREEFR—T
MR- ABEETNPR=ZEXEANELER
BATIALE »




The Company has entered into an appointment letter with
each of the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company for a term of three
years which may only be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than three months, prior notice in writing.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’ interests in
contracts

Save as disclosed under the headings “Connected
Transactions” below and “Related Party Transactions” in
note 37 to the financial statements, no Director, entity
connected with a director, controlling shareholders or any
of their subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

During the year, no contract of significance for the provision
of service to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries was made.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence as at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERFETHRAERKRS - HERH
REEFENERRAR

20175128318 RRARESEREET
HABRARRISHEEEZE (TERFSH
REAEIEBIEXVED) D - BRERGKO RE
EEPEE  UWEZRARFREES KB
EGPIEINEETHFENEZMA - R
BEMBITAZESETESFRZINIZETR
HRITAG AR R R R AR RS KA A I

N\

-

Percentage of
the Company’s

Through issued share
controlled capital
corporation 1EARAR]
BRRE BT
Name of Directors S Nature of interest ERItE EERE BOl
Mr. Su Aping (1) BRI (1) Interest in a controlled  AEIEEEEL -
corporation, interest  EC{BiE
of spouse 318,008,000 (L) 35.22
Ms. Zhu Yaying (2) REBRLL (2) Interest of spouse BB
settlor and beneficiary ~ 2EEEZETAR
of a discretionary trust XA 318,008,000 (L) 35.22
Ms. Su'Yi (3) HZT (3) Beneficiary of a PRETREA
discretionary trust 123,138,000 (L) 13.64
Mr. Du Shaozhou HEARELE Beneficial owner ExBEA 100,000 (L) 0.01

(L) denotes long position
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Notes:

194,870,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu
Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned by Mr. Su Aping.
123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly-owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries. Mr.
Su Aping is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the
Company held by Fung Yu Holdings Limited pursuant to the
SFO. Besides, Mr. Su Aping is the spouse of Ms. Zhu Yaying.
Under the SFO, Mr. Su Aping is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Ms. Zhu Yaying is
interested.

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying
and Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries.
Besides, Ms. Zhu Yaying is the spouse of Mr. Su Aping.
Under the SFO, Ms. Zhu Yaying is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Su Aping is
interested.

123,138,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Total Honest
International Investment Ltd which is wholly owned by
Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none

of the Directors and chief executive had registered an

interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant

to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers.
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Interests in underlying shares of the Company — equity RARBIEBERGD R — AR e
derivatives of the Company: HHTETIA -
Number of
underlying shares
in respect of the Percentage
share options of the
granted under the Company’s
Scheme issued share
REZT 8RN capital
BREMIK EARDE BT
Name of directors  EHHH Capacity 54 HEEREEE BRANE DL
Mr. Su Aping B Beneficial owner EBZREHR A 2,200,000 0.24%
Ms. Zhu Yaying KRR+ Beneficial owner  EZHEE A 2,150,000 0.24%
Ms. Su'Yi BXu+ Beneficial owner ~ E#m#A A 2,150,000 0.24%
Mr. Du Shaozhou HARLYE Beneficial owner Bz #A A 2,200,000 0.24%
Mr. Xu Lei AFEEE Beneficial owner ~ EB#HHAA 300,000 0.03%
Mr. Zhou Qingzu AERTE Beneficial owner  E#mHEA A 300,000 0.03%
Mr. He Junjie R B & Beneficial owner  EzEH A 300,000 0.03%
Mr. Luk Wai Keung  BEEs& %4 Beneficial owner  E#m#EA A 300,000 0.03%
Mr. Zhuang Jianhao  JHEESL4E Beneficial owner Bz %A A 200,000 0.02%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none [ F#lFT#EEE & SN - 72017F12A318 -
of the Directors and chief executive had registered an EEERTEZITHRABERAR A S H (M
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares 1HEOEBE ARG - MEAKGKEEZRES
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated RIEFE %&Eﬁfﬂﬂﬁﬂ%%zﬂ Zﬁfﬁpﬂ iR
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant {ERESFRIZEZITHEAR 56 32 PIT O
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the ImIUAE °

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons
interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares

As at 31 December 2017,
directors or chief executive of the Company, the following

so far as is known to the

shareholders (excluding directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests and short positions of 5% or more
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
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FERRREMA RO RABERS
MR X R

R2017F12A31H  BARRIESHEER
TTERABFA  LTRE CFERERARE
EREZITHRAER) RAR AR RAARER
P$%ﬁw&%iia§ﬁ#$“ﬂmﬁ
BHEMEIEPIEIIEBETEENEZ

recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by .:EHHIN R SRR
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
Number of capital
ordinary . YNS]
sharesheld — BE{TRAL
Name A Nature of interest BRHE Figera e = Bt
Fung Yu Holdings Fung Yu Holdings Beneficial owner EREA 194,870,000 (L) 21.58
Limited (1) Limited (1)
Dazhong (Hong Kong) A7 (BE) B Beneficial owner ERHEA 178,352,000 (L) 19.75
International BB Q)
Corporation
Limited (2)
Shanghai Dazhong Public IS N NGES S Interest of a controlled ~ REEEEMN#EE 178,352,000 (L) 19.75
Utilities (Group) (5B) BHBEBRRA ) corporation
Co., Limited (2)
Action Fast International EH;%;%'T% Beneficial owner ERlAA 165,540,000 (L) 18.33
Limited (3) BRA
Prax Capital China Prax Cap[tal Chma Interest of a controlled REIEEERER 165,540,000 (L) 18.33
Growth Fund IlIl, Growth Fund IIl, corporation
L.P. (3) L.P.(3)
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China Interest of a controlled RREEERES 165,540,000 (L) 18.33
Growth Fund Ill Growth Fund 11l corporation
GP Ltd. (3) GP, Ltd. (3)
Total Honest International BEEESRA Beneficial owner ERBEAA 123,138,000 13.64
Investment Ltd. (4) BRATE (4)
Ridge Glorious Limited (4) Ridge Glorious Limited (4)  Interest of a controlled REEEEMER 123,138,000 13.64
corporation
BOS Trustee Limited (4) BOS Trustee Limited (4) Interest of a controlled REELE RS 123,138,000 13.64
corporation
(L denotes long position (L) RREFE
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Notes:

Fung Yu Holdings Limited is held as to 100% by Mr. Su
Aping.

Dazhong (Hong Kong) International Corporation Limited
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Dazhong Public
Utilities (Group) Co., Limited, a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code 600635 and
on the Stock Exchange with stock code 1635. Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Limited is deemed
to be interested in the same number of shares in which
Dazhong (Hong Kong) International Corporation Limited is
interested.

Action East International Limited is wholly-owned by
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P.. Under the SFO,
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P. is deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Action
East International Limited is interested.

Prax Capital China Growth Fund III,L.P. is a limited
partnership established in the Cayman lIslands whose sole
general partner is Prax Capital China Growth Fund Il GP,
Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Total Honest International Investment Ltd is wholly-owned
by Ridge Glorious Limited, which is in turn wholly owned
by BOS Trustee Limited as trustee for a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Zhu Yaying is the settlor, and Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Ms. Su Yi are two of the several eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no

person, other than the Directors and chief executive of

the Company, whose interests are set out in the section

“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions

in shares and underlying shares and debentures” above,

had registered an interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option schemes (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors), other employees of the Group,
consultants and advisers of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 11 March 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from 11
March 2015. The scheme mandate limit was refreshed on 12
September 2017.

Principal terms of the Scheme

A summary of the principal terms of the Scheme is set out
below pursuant to the requirements as contained in Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules:

(a) Purpose
The purposes of the Scheme are to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees, directors, consultants and
advisers of the Group and to promote the success of
the business of the Group.

(b)  Participants
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
employee (whether full-time or part-time), Director,
consultant or adviser of the Group (the “Eligible

Person”).

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under the
scheme and percentage of issued share capital as at
28 March 2018

The number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme was 75,292,400 Shares, representing 8.34%
of the issued share of the Company as at 28 March
2018.
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(d)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
scheme

Unless approved by the Shareholders in a general
meeting (with such Eligible Person and his close
associates (or his associates if the Eligible Person is a
connected person) abstaining from voting), the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the relevant class of securities of the Company in

issue.

Any options granted to an Eligible Person who is
a Substantial Shareholder, or independent non-
executive Director, or their respective associates,
which will result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all the
options granted and to be granted (including options
whether exercised, cancelled or still outstanding) to
such person in the period of 12 months up to and
including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% (or such
other percentage as may from time to time be
specified by the Stock Exchange) of the issued
share capital of the Company; and

(i)~ having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000 (or such
other amount as may from time to time be
specified by the Stock Exchange).

Such further grant of options must be approved by the

shareholders in a general meeting of the Company.
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(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

The exercise period of any option granted under the
Scheme shall be determined by the Board but such
period must not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant option.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Scheme does not specify any minimum holding
period before the option can be exercised but the
Board has the authority to determine the minimum

holding period when the options are granted.

The amount payable upon acceptance of option
HK$1.00 is payable by each eligible participant to
the Company on acceptance of options within 21
days from the date of the making of such offer.

Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall not be less than the greater
of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of such option;

(ii)  the average closing prices of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of such option; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the share.
The remaining life of the scheme

The Scheme is effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from 11 March 2015.

(e)

(f)

g

(h)

()
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Movements of share options
Movements of the share options granted to the participants

pursuant to the Scheme during the year are as follows:

BRERE
RIEZEBIE BT 2 RA L 2 BRIERER
BB

Number of ordinary shares

subject to share options granted under the Scheme

REZTERHNBRESRNEBRAE

Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at
Category and Date of grant of Exercise 1 January during the during the during during 31 December
Name of participant share options price 2017 Year Year the Year the Year 2017
LIIVES o7
1818 RIEE REFE NEFE 128318
SREBMRSR RABRERS i HATE  REFERM fife Bi# BAX AT
Directors
g=
Mr. Su Aping 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,200,000 - - - - 2,200,000
BH¥RE 201651 A29R*
Ms. Zhu Yaying 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
KoLt 2016%1A29R*
24 January 2017* 2280 150,000 - - - 150,000
201751 A48
Ms. SuYi 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
gart 201651 29R*
24 January 2017° 2280 150,000 - - - 150,000
20171 AR
Mr. Du Shaozhou 29 January 2016* 2.000 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
teRLE 201651 29R*
24 January 2017° 2280 200,000 - - - 200,000
20171 A48
Mr. Xu Lei 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
ELE 201651 A29R*
24 January 2017° 2280 100,000 - - - 100,000
201751 4R
Mr. Zhou Qingzu 29 January 2016* 2,000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
BRERE 201651 729R*
24 January 2017° 2.280 100,000 - - - 100,000
201751 4R
Mr. He Junjie 29 January 2016 2,000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
kgL 2016517298
24 January 2017° 2280 100,000 - - - 100,000
201751 A48
Mr. Luk Wai Keung 29 January 2016* 2.000 200,000 - - - - 200,000
BERLE 201651 A29R*
24 January 2017° 2280 100,000 - - - 100,000
201751 A48
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Number of ordinary shares
subject to share options granted under the Scheme
REZTERHNBRESRNEBRAE

Outstanding Outstanding

as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at

Category and Date of grant of Exercise 1 January during the during the during during 31 December

Name of participant share options price 2017 Year Year the Year the Year 2017

o7 o7

1818 RIFE NEFE RIEE 128318

SRERNRLS RBRERS 1 HATE  REFERM fife BitH BAX AT

Mr. Zhuang Jianhao 24 January 2017¢ 2.280 - 200,000 - - 200,000
Rt 201751 A48

Other employees 29 January 2016* 2.000 11,000,000 - - - - 11,000,000
RtES 2016517298+

24 January 2017° 2280 - 4,900,000 - - - 4,900,000
201751 B24E

25 October 2017° 3.06 - 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000

2017510A258°

Other eligible participants 24 January 2017° 2280 - 14,000,000 - - - 14,000,000
ReERRE 201751 A48

25 May 2017° 2466 - 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000
2017454250

20,000,000 75,000,000 - - ~ 95,000,000

The exercise period is from 28 February 2017 to 28 January
2024. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2017; (b) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 28 February 2018; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2019; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2020; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 28 February 2021.

The exercise period is from 28 February 2018 to 23 January
2025. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
Options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2018; (b) 20% of the options granted to each Grantee shall
vest on 28 February 2019; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 28 February 2020; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 28 February
2021; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 28 February 2022.

771 £ #1 A2017%F2H28H Z=2024F 1828
HeBEHOT : @BTEERABREZ
20%#% 7201762288 % B (b)® ¥ &
FAR NI 220%K 7201852 4280 %
B (o TEEREABEREZ20%E752019
F2A2HFE  (ETEEBEABREZ
20%#5 202062 A28B B E ¢ KR T &
FAR NI 220%K 7202162 4280 %
% °

71 {# #1 A2018%F2H28H £2025F1H23
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20%#% 201842 A28H % B (b)® ¥ &
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A The exercise period is from 24 May 2018 to 24 May 2021.
The vesting period is as follows: (a) 33% of the options
granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 May 2018; (b) 33%
of the options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 May
2019; (c) 34% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 24 May 2020.

© The exercise period is from 24 October 2018 to 24 October
2025. The vesting period is as follows: (a) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 October
2018; (b) 20% of the options granted to each grantee shall
vest on 24 October 2019; (c) 20% of the options granted to
each grantee shall vest on 24 October 2020; (d) 20% of the
options granted to each grantee shall vest on 24 October
2021; and (e) 20% of the options granted to each grantee
shall vest on 24 October 2022.

The closing prices of the shares of the Company on 28
January 2016, 23 January 2017, 24 May 2017 and 25
October 2017 being the dates immediately before the date
of the Share Options were granted, were HK$1.99, HK$2.28,
HK$2.45 and HK$3.06 per share, respectively.

Connected transactions
During the year, the Group has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service operates gasoline and
diesel refilling stations as well as CNG and LNG refuelling
stations in Taicang City and sells diesel fuel, gasoline, CNG
and LNG to customers in the ordinary and usual course of
its business. Its customers during the year included certain
members of the Group.
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Suchuang Group, as licensor, has entered into a trademark
licensing agreement with the Group, as licensee, on 1
August 2014, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to grant to the Group the right to use the trademarks “#t
#l” and "@ " in the PRC in connection with the Company’s
business on a perpetual and non-exclusive basis at a

nominal consideration of RMB1.00.

Suchuang Group, as lessee, has entered into a tenancy
agreement and a confirmation letter to the tenancy
agreement with the Group, as lessor, on 20 October 2013
and 13 September 2014 respectively (together, the “Taicang
Tenancy Agreements”). Pursuant to the Taicang Tenancy
Agreements, Suchuang Group has agreed to lease from
the Group an office premise of 1,082 square meter on 5th
Floor, No. 305 Zhenghe Middle Road, Loudong Street,
Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for an annual
rental of RMB346,500 (exclusive of tax and management
fee). The Taicang Tenancy Agreements is for a period of
three years commencing from 21 October 2013 subject to
early termination by mutual consent between the parties.
Suchuang Group further entered into a tenancy agreement
with the Group, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to lease from the Group an office premise of 1,082 square
meters on 5th Floor, 116 Loujiang South Road, Taicang City,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for an annual rental of
RMB346,500 (inclusive of tax and management fee) for a
period from 21 October 2016 to 20 October 2019. During
the year, the rental paid by Suchuang Group under the
aforesaid tenancy agreements amounted to RMB346,500.

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation Co.,
Ltd. entered into a vehicle leasing agreement with the
Group on 31 December 2015, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to lease from Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods
Transportation Co., Ltd. 10 vehicles for an annual fee of
RMB650,000 (inclusive of tax) for a period from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2018.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business of the Group are provided under

note 37 to the financial statements.

Certain related party transactions set out in Notes 37(b)
to the financial statements (rental income received
from Suchuang Group, purchase of motor vehicle fuels
from Suzhou Suling Automobile Service, provision of
transportation services by Taicang Suchuang Dangerous
Goods Transportation Co., Ltd., and leasing of trademarks
from Suchuang Group) are regarded as exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group and were exempt from
the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements contained
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected transaction

The Group entered into an agreement with Taicang
Suchuang Property Development Company Limited to
purchase certain properties located in Taicang as office for a
total consideration of RMB2,444,646.25 in February 2017.
The consideration is determined and agreed by the two

parties by reference to the market value.

The transaction constituted a one-off connected transaction
and is exempt from reporting, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules as at 28 March 2018, being the date of this

annual report.

Directors’ interests in a competing business

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors are considered to have interests in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as
defined in the Listing Rules, as set out below:

Ms. Zhu Yaying, an executive Director, and Mr. Su Aping’s
and Ms. Zhu Yaying’s associates are indirectly interested
in Suzhou Suling Automobile Service which is principally
engaged in the operation of diesel and gasoline refuelling
stations, as well as CNG and LNG refuelling stations (the
CNG and LNG refuelling station business operated by
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service is referred to as “CNG/
LNG Business”).
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On 23 February 2015, Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
and the Company entered into a deed of first offer (the
“Deed of First Offer”), pursuant to which Suzhou Suling
Automobile Service granted to the Company an irrevocable
right exercisable after rectification of the non-compliance
matters in relation to the CNG/LNG Business, for acquiring
at one or more than one time, within a period of three years
from the Deed of First Offer (extendable at the Company’s
sole discretion), all or part of the CNG/LNG Business at
the Company’s sole and absolute discretion, at the lower of
their set-up cost or fair market value to be determined by
an internationally reputable firm of accountants or valuers,
subject to the applicable governmental approvals, board
approval and shareholders’ approval of the Company (as
may be required under the Listing Rules).

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not
exercised its right under the Deed of First Offer.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings
Limited has confirmed to the Company of his/her/its
compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided
to the Company under a deed of non-competition dated 23
February 2015. There has not been any opportunity in any
restricted business (being business which competes or is
likely to compete with the business of the Group from time
to time) being referred by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and
Fung Yu Holdings Limited to the Company during the year.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the deed of non-competition have been complied
with by Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings
Limited and duly enforced during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company places great emphasis on its own environmental
and social performance by increasing its support on green
economy, low-carbon economy and recycling economy
and strictly controlling high-pollution and high-energy-
consumption. We have implemented policies and procedures
to ensure compliance of the regulatory requirements and our
production safety and environmental protection. Policies and
procedures are implemented to our employees, customers
and suppliers to enhance health and safety awareness during

production.

For detailed information, please refer to the Environmental,
Social, Government Report set out from pages 85 to 115 of
this annual report.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIPS FROM
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group upholds the highest standards of business ethics
that govern how we maintain our relationships with our key
stakeholders. We regularly engage and communicate with
our employees, customers and suppliers and provide rapid
and effective responses to address their needs and concerns.

Employees

Employees are considered to be one of the most important
and valuable assets of the Group. The Group has always
adhered to the principle of “people first”. We emphasise
individual development of employees and understood
targets and requirements of employees in different stages
of career. We wish to give full play to the expertise of each
employees and explore the individual potential of employees
through setting appropriate positions and regular training
activities. In addition, we wish to provide employees with
a sound remuneration package system to offer guarantee
to employees in all aspects, thus achieving the target of
retaining employees and the final target of sustainable
development of the Group, and enabling employees to work
in a confident, happy and safe manner.
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Customers

The Group endeavours to provide safe, reliable and
thoughtful services to fulfil our customers’ expectations
and cater to their needs. The Group has established a 24h
customer service call center to provide service information
for customers, and guarantee a quick response to customer
feedback. During the year, the customer service center
received a total of 23 complaints mainly about the attitude
of workers, equipment and other matters. All complaints
were handled in a timely manner and recorded properly.
The Group will regularly review previous complaints and
continuously make improvement. The Group observes and
respects all customer data privacy and intellectual property
rights by strictly complying with all relevant laws and
regulations.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationships with the suppliers is essential
to the Group in respect of the supply chain and when facing
business challenges and regulatory requirements. It can
achieve cost efficiency and promote long term commercial
benefits. For the gas pipeline construction and connection
business, the Group regularly updates our database of
approved suppliers and carries out performance reviews to
assess the quality of our suppliers’ services. For the sales of
natural gas business, the Group has been in good strategic
relation with our principal natural gas supplier for more
than 10 years. Such relation further safeguards the reliable,
stable and sufficient supply of natural gas.
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COMPLIANCE STATUS WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A
SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE BUSINESS

During the year, the Group received no reported cases
of non-compliance with applicable standards, laws
and regulations on the environment, labour standards,
occupational health and safety, anti-corruption, customer
privacy and intellectual property in China and Hong Kong.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

During the year, the Board appointed Ms. Su Yi as the
Executive Vice Chairman of the Board to assist Mr. Su Aping,
Chairman of the Board in formulating overall strategies
of the Group and supervising implementation, in order to
support the Group in achieving the target of developing
from a piped gas company to a comprehensive energy

service provider.

Ms. Su Yi, aged 45, is a daughter of Mr. Su Aping, Chairman
of the Board and Ms. Zhu Yaying, executive Director, and
Ms. Su Yi is an executive Director. Ms. Su Yi had worked in
the United States of America (the “US”) for over 20 years
and has over ten years of experience in computer software,
project management and enterprise architecture design. She
worked for local government bodies. She has a profound
understanding of and has researched into the distributed
energy resource market which is fast-growing in the US.

During the year, the Group actively made extensive
arrangement in cities around Taicang City. The Group,
through Taicang Natural Gas, established Suyu Natural
Gas, a joint venture, with Changshu Urban Investment,
and held 51% equity interest in Suyu Natural Gas. Both
parties expanded businesses of the Group into areas outside
Changshu and Taicang, which is conducive to broadening of
the customer base and the revenue base, overall sustainable
development and consolidation of the overall financial
condition of the Group.
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During the year, the Group entered into a strategic
cooperation framework agreement with China Railway Real
Estate, so as to establish a strategic alliance relationship
for urban development and operation and cooperate with
each other in their respective businesses and support
each other, for the purpose of implementing the overall
development strategy of developing into a comprehensive
energy and environmental protection enterprise. The scope
of cooperation between both parties covers piped gas
transmission, intelligent energy, distributed energy resource
stations, LNG single-point supply and other businesses and
joint promotion of all types of green and environmental

protection projects.

Thereafter, on 24 October 2017, the Group, through
Suchuang Shanghai, entered into an acquisition agreement
with Dunhua Petroleum and Dunhua Gas, for acquiring
51% equity interest in Dunhua Gas from Dunhua Petroleum
for a total consideration of RMB22.33 million. Meanwhile,
Dunhua Gas became an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group with 51% of shares held by the
Group.

In order to further optimize the shareholder structure, on 21
February 2017 the Group entered into a placing agreement
with a placing agent. Pursuant to the agreement, the placing
agent procured the placees to subscribe for 40,000,000
new shares of the Company (the “Placing Shares”) at a
placing price of HKD2.20 per share. 40,000,000 Placing
Shares accounted for 4.43% of the issued share capital of
the Company as enlarged by the Placing Shares were issued
to not less than six independent third parties on 10 March
2017. The net proceeds from the Placing Shares amounted
to approximately HK$86.5 million.

RISKS AND PROSPECTS OF THE COMPANY

The principal risk and uncertainties facing the Company
are set out in the “Financial Overview” on pages 35 to 38
and note 40 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 245 to 249. The future development of the Company’s
business is set out on pages 39 to 41 of this annual report.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board

of the Stock Exchange since 11 March 2015. Net proceeds

from the global offering received by the Company were

approximately RMB347.5 million after deducting the

underwriting commission and relevant expenses. The net

proceeds have been applied for the purpose in accordance

with the future plans and use of proceeds as set out in

the Prospectus. As at 31 December 2017, the unutilised

proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong
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and China.
As at 31 December 2017
2017124318
Percentage
of total Net Utilised Unutilised
Purpose amount proceeds amount amount
hEes s 28R HAREA
fitkes Ao HIEEE i i
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AEBBEET AR%BER ARKBER
Acquiring and constructing MIHEERER 25% 86.9 23.1 63.8
CNG and LNG refuelling stations ~ K#A& / LNGHEE &
for the sale of CNG/LNG for ERBERARK
vehicular use LNGANRIE
Expanding our pipeline AEBMNEBBER 35% 121.6 52.2 69.4
network and sale of piped mEMRETNEEP
natural gas to customers in HEBBRAR
our existing market
Acquiring controlling interests in W KBt [ A SR 30% 104.2 104.2 -
natural gas operators outside RAREEREH
Taicang iR
Working capital and other general ~ &8& & R H A 10% 34.8 34.8 -
corporate purposes —RE¥ERE
Total st 347.5 2143 133.2

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate

any change to the plan as to the use of proceeds.
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Auditors ZELEm
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment  Z x @I EHB A ER S E - KA GBI E
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the EREEEARS FIE2RERERLT K

forthcoming annual general meeting. FIESINVERNCIEE -
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD RRESE

Chairman B

Hong Kong B

28 March 2018 201853 H28H
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREA

About the Report

We are pleased to present the Group’s Environmental, Social
and Governance Report 2017. This is the Group’s second
Environmental,
period from 1 January to 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting
Period”). This report only covers environmental,
and management strategies and performance of our key

Social and Governance Report for the
social

businesses, namely piped natural gas sales and transmission
businesses of Taicang Natural Gas Company Limited.

We will continue to pursue sustainable development
targets through rigorous management methods, ensuring
comprehensive integration of the value of sustainable
development into the business strategy of the Group. In
preparing this report, we complied with the ESG Reporting
Guide in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (Listing Rules) published by Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) and disclosed sustainable
development performance in relation to the Group’s
businesses during the Reporting Period which was important
under the Guide. The Group’s corporate governance practice
is published in the corporate governance report of this
annual report.

Our Sustainable Development Philosophy

For Suchuang Gas, supporting the state in promoting
national natural gas clean energy policies, achieving the
new target of building a beautiful China, maintaining
the sustainable development, prosperity and stability of
communities have always been the consistent philosophy
of the Group as well as the key factor for the success of
our businesses. Facing tough market conditions, we will
continue to focus on development of clean energy, natural
gas in the future, and will expand into the energy saving,
environmental protection and circular economy fields.
Under the complex and volatile market environment, we
actively adapt to the new norms of economic development,
seize development opportunities, actively support national
policies, give full play to our operational advantages and
continuously enhance the management level,
achieve the sustainable development target.

so as to
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Our Strategies

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain the
following expansion policies and pursue opportunities in
natural gas businesses, for development in the following
aspects:

U Expand into the energy saving, environmental
protection and circular economy fields;

o Expand and upgrade the Group’s piped natural gas
sales and transmission business in Taicang;

o Acquire controlling interests of existing natural gas
operators, and expand the business coverage to other

cities;

J Improve and upgrade the present operating efficiency
and safety.

During the Reporting Period, the Group formally acquired
Xinjiang Dunhua Gas Engineering Technology Co., Ltd.
whose main businesses are providing purification, emission
reduction and environmental protection technology services,
and sold to oil field companies, by-products generated
in technical services. The main technologies involved are
“Carbon Capture, Utilization and Storage (CCUS)”. Through
such technologies, useful byproducts generated in technical
services, mainly carbon dioxide and nitrogen, are sold to
oil fields, which are used for improving the enhanced oil
recovery (EOR) in oil exploitation, thus realising the circular
economy. Based on the importance, this report temporarily
excludes such business, but in the future, we will actively
consider inclusion of such business scope in the report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Communicating with Stakeholders

With years of experience in enterprise, we are aware of
the importance of opinions of stakeholders. As disclosed
in the annual report for the previous year, our business
has maintained the stable development momentum for
many years, which is indeed attributable to the support
from our stakeholders as well as the trust they put in us.
Our main stakeholders are some groups extremely affected
by the Group or sufficient to affect the Group’s business,
including our customers, suppliers, contractors, employees,
business partners, government organs, shareholders and
investors, etc. Through various communication channels,
such as annual general meeting, telephone consultation,
field visit, conference and company website, we provide
our stakeholders with an opportunity to express their
opinions on our sustainable development performance and
future strategies. Looking ahead, the Group will continue
to closely communicate with all stakeholders, so that we
can more efficiently formulate development strategies. We
firmly believe that continuing to maintain such policies will
effectively improve sustainable and business development of
the company.

Feedback

Our continuous improvement relies on your valuable
opinions on our performance and reporting method.

If you are in doubt or have any recommendations
concerning this report, you are welcome to email us at
ir@taicanggas.com.
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Independent Safety, Quality and Environmental
Protection Department

The Group is aware that safety, quality and environmental
protection are the most important topic in our business
operation, so during the Reporting Period, the Group
formally established an independent department — the
Quality, Safety and Environmental Protection (“QSE”)
Department in charge of work of the Group in safety, quality
and environmental protection and the following main

responsibilities:

J Manage production safety and environmental
protection
J Analyse and predict the production safety conditions

and formulate corresponding production safety,
environmental protection rules and systems, safety

plans, work plans and measures

o Organize internal safety and environment inspection,
identify potential safety hazards and implement

correction work

J Direct, study and settle major production safety
problems

J Organize training in safety, quality and environmental
protection

J Inspect implementation of policies in terms of safety,

quality and environmental protection, and give
forward correction opinions on imperfections

o Carry out safety supervision and management in
respect of laws and regulations

During the Reporting Period, through non-periodical
inspection by the QSE Department, we successfully
identified risk factors or shortcomings in execution in
current operation, thus improving the overall operation of
the Group.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2017
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Ensuring Gas Safety

We deeply know that natural gas is a kind of inflammable
and explosive gas. Once leakage occurs, natural gas will
spread in all directions, causing suffocation, burning and
explosion, etc. In view of this, we attach tremendous
importance to gas safety. For the purpose of implementing
such laws and regulations as Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Production Safety Regulations of
Jiangsu Province, Labour Protection Regulations of Jiangsu
Province, Provisions on the Supervision and Administration
of Labour Protection Articles, and Urban Gas Management
Regulations; further strengthening production safety
supervision and management; and intensifying production
safety responsibility; we’ve formulated the management
system related to production safety, to cover various safety
precautions and operating instructions probably involved
in our business. As far as the Directors know, the Group
received no major administrative sanction or punishment
due to violation of any production safety laws or regulations
during the Reporting Period.

We will continue to take “safety first, prevention supreme,
comprehensive management” as the core value in
production safety. Meanwhile, we will take “Eight Noes”
and “Four Prohibitions” as the principle of safety first,
support comprehensive production safety control measures
and endeavor to reduce the possibility of accidents.
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Eight Noes Principle NEJR A

AT

No Death Accident

AR AERIRR EEHEW
No Loss Incurred by Poor No Severe Injury
Flood Prevention Accident

EEEW BENKER

L No Fire Accident
Accident

BREA FEABEY

No Major Traffic Accident above
the Equal Responsibility Level

BEZAPEEN

No Poisoning Accident of
Many People

Four Prohibitions Principle 9 R Al

e e
AEERRA AL
g5i5E e 0 A T
Ny No Implementation
of Practical and
Feasible
Rectification
Measures against
Specific Accident
Prohibited

EWEEAXRT
FURASH et

TE R HOE No Punishing

Unclear Analysis the Person the Person
of Accident Liable for
Cause Prohibited Accident

Prohibited

Liable for
Accident and
Related People
Prohibited
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Routine safety inspection

One of the keys to successfully ensuring gas safety is
maintenance of normal operation of equipment. Our
frontline employees are responsible for the control on the
frontline and ensuring normal operation of equipment in
natural gas terminals through routine safety inspection
procedures. According to the rules of the Group, personnel
on duty in all terminals are required to carry out patrol
inspection of equipment in the terminal every two hours. In
addition, the Group also requires that personnel in terminals
should carry out the meter reading procedure every two
hours. Through an ongoing supervision procedure, the
frontline personnel can also immediately identify and correct
abnormal data once they are found, thus avoiding major
accidents. Moreover, the Group also introduces a portable
laser-based remote methane leak detector to enhance safety

inspection of pipeline facilities.

In addition to inspection of natural gas terminals, the Group
will also regularly carry out safety inspection for residents,
industrial and commercial users, and through standardised
inspection procedures, ensure that all natural gas users are
equipped with safety facilities. If any problem or potential
hazard is found, we will immediately arrange for the
Maintenance Department to carry out treatment. The Group
wishes to provide all users with good services and even a
safe environment.
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Comprehensive safety control procedure 2EHNZZEFRER

A natural gas terminal, as a terminal gas distribution KARFIMIEA —ARBECRIL 0 BAAR
station, is a crucial central hub in operation of natural gas ZE&EEET —(AHMESENHPRIRELD - H
businesses. It has such functions as purification, pressure  EHFF{ - FARE - EFESEE - B - 45
regulating and storage. Therefore, it is particularly important R XARFIUENLZELAEE - KEFECD A
to maintain the safety of all natural gas terminals. The Group & XARPFIUEFIFE — RO LT 2L HIFEE ©
has a series of safety control measures for all natural gas

terminals.

All natural gas terminals of the Group are equipped with ZREEET 7S KARFIEBEREHER
a corresponding bulletin board to show the escape routes 45 RAR + LASIEAPTuL Mk AR 4R - MER—B
in the terminal, ensuring that frontline employees in the HBBEAKEINEER - SPIULHRTEASEEIA
terminal are able to escape in the fastest manner in case of FRFEIENFBEST -

any major accident, thus reducing casualties.
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Before entering a terminal, any person is subject to
application and registration and should wear a safety helmet
to enhance protection. At the same time, before entering a
terminal, any person is subject to the electrostatic removing
procedure. Any natural gas terminal is specially equipped
with a device for removing static on human body, so as to

reduce accidents.

To prevent inadvertent human or animal intrusion into
terminals, we equip walls of natural gas terminals with
sensors, such that when any object touches an alarm, the
alarm will sound to prevent outsiders from inadvertently
intruding into the terminal, thus improving the safety of the
natural gas terminal.
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24/7 monitoring centres

Safety inspection work of frontline employees is certainly
important, but for real-time monitoring of pipeline
network operation and further reduction of the possibility
of accidents, the Group has established 24/7 natural
gas regulating and control centers. We install a safety
monitoring system along the pipeline network. Operation
of all natural gas terminals is comprehensively monitored
by specially designated personnel through a computer
system. Our personnel are also able to immediately identify
unusual conditions of natural gas terminal, regulator stations
and pipelines through detailed data display and automatic
warning systems, and take corresponding actions in a

real-time manner.
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Emergency response plan procedure

Natural gas as high-quality clean energy can effectively
reduce environmental pollution, but it is combustible and
explosive, so there are certain dangers in use of natural
gas. As a result, the Group has formulated the Emergency
Response Plan for Gas Urgent Repair, which specifies
responsibilities of departments in occurrence of a major
accident and corresponding treatment practices. Meanwhile,
we also have an urgent repair organisation. In case of a
major accident, such organisation will immediately initiate
the emergency response plan procedure.

Structure of the Urgent Repair Organisation

Rt
Chief
commander

Bl
Deputy chief
commander

By - iR
Technology and
accident
investigation team

FRREDAE
On-duty
customer

service team

ZRERE
Safety
supervision
team

Fire control
and alert team

Monitoring of infrastructural projects

Operation of the Group may involve natural gas
infrastructural projects. Although the Group employs
external engineering companies to undertake construction
projects, we still continuously monitor the infrastructural
projects, ensuring that they are carried out in compliance
with laws and rules and in a safe manner.
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In terms of design of infrastructural projects, we will
review the feasibility of a design scheme and provide
improvement suggestions through review meeting. In terms
of construction, our engineering department will, from time
to time, carry out inspection at all construction sites, so as
to ensure legality and safety of projects. In terms of final
acceptance of construction upon completion, to ensure
effective implementation of the acceptance procedure, we
will appoint a supervision company and inspection company
to provide support in the acceptance procedure and carry
out a thorough inspection procedure for pipelines. Through
the aforesaid ongoing monitoring procedure, we wish that
all projects are in the optimal conditions in terms of quality
and safety.

Major inspection as to post responsibilities

To ensure that all employees understand the responsibilities
of their positions, we carried out major inspection during
the Reporting Period to assess how familiar are employees
with standard work procedures, implementation in operation
and maintenance of equipment and facilities. Through such
inspection, we recognised what to improve and have taken
relevant measures to improve enterprise operation of the
Group.

In addition, we also take the following measures to ensure
gas safety and normal supply:

J Regularly carry out gas safety training

J Train qualified professional management level and
technical personnel on a regular basis, to enable
employees at various levels to have full understanding
of the Company’s rules and procedures, and also
enhance safety awareness of the employees

J Establish a systematic safety management network,
headed by the safety leadership team, under which,
the experienced and qualified management personnel
will lead the employees at various levels to conduct
routine safety management work, in an effort to
ensure all safety management systems and safety
operation rules have been implemented properly
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J In order to enhance our piped gas management level
and guarantee the safe operation of gas facilities,
we have acquired professional evaluation opinions
on positive the Group’s product and service quality,
safety and operation management, as well as financial
and cost situation from a safety evaluation and
certification company during the Reporting Period, to

further strengthen our safety and operation process

o In terms of gas supply, we take numerous measures,
like adding brominated substances, and integrating
purification process and pressure adjustment function
into the gas processing stations, to guarantee the
immediate discovery of leakage and steady supply of
gas

o We provide personal protective equipment to protect
personal safety and health of employees

J We carry out publicity for safe use of gas in
communities, so as to enhance awareness of safe use
of natural gas in communities

J We have formulated user rules for safe use of gas and
regularly publicised general knowledge of gas use
among end users and provide relevant directions for
them

We attach great importance to maintenance of pipeline
network and gas processing & distribution facilities. We
have a team consisting of more than 200 experienced
engineers, technicians and other personnel, responsible for
safety, maintenance and technical upgrade in the following
fields: (i) maintenance of major and urban branch pipeline
network; (ii) maintenance of natural gas transmission
substations; (iii) deployment of safety monitoring system;
and (iv) methods for enhancing operating efficiency and
safety standard.

During the Reporting Period, no employees of the Group
suffered any major industrial accident, and we achieved
the target of zero-accidents. Such achievement depends on
support of the staff. In the future, the Group will continue to
make efforts to maintain zero-accidents.
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Laws and regulations as to occupational health and
safety

We are committed to complying with the Labour Law,
other applicable laws and regulations of the PRC, so as to
provide a safe and healthy workplace and protect employees
from occupational hazards. To the best knowledge of the
Directors of the Company, the Group was not subject to any
major administrative sanction or punishment due to failure
in providing the safe working environment and protecting
the employees from occupational hazards in violation of
laws or regulations during the Reporting Period.

We provide employees with different safety education,
training and personal protective equipment, in accordance
with the latest amended Labour Protection Regulations
of Jiangsu Province. The distribution of labour protection
articles complies with the Provisions on the Supervision and
Administration of Labour Protection Articles issued by the
State Administration of Work Safety and GBT11651-2008
Selection Rules of Labour Protection Articles.

Supplier Management

The raw materials for our gas pipeline construction and
connection business mainly include PE pipes, steel pipes,
valves, pipe connectors and fittings. Moreover, we have
purchased mechanical equipment made in China or
imported from oversea countries (e.g., Germany and USA),
to construct our pipeline infrastructure and for installation in

our gas transmission substations.

We expect that during the process of business operation,
each supplier will fully comply with all applicable
environmental protection laws, rules and regulations,
mitigate the impact on the ecology and reduce the resource
consumption. During the Reporting Period, we formulated
the Social Responsibility and Business Ethics Agreement with
regard to environmental protection, occupational health
and safety, moral behaviour, etc., which is distributed to all
suppliers and clearly specifies the basic requirements for
business partners of the Group.
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In terms of selection of suppliers, we have a treatment
method in providing guidance to and regulating employees
in selecting a supplier. Meanwhile, we reserve a list of
eligible contractors for gas pipeline construction projects.
We only purchase pipeline materials in line with relevant
safety standards from reputed suppliers, and subcontract the
pipeline construction and installation projects to eligible

contractors.

In terms of purchase of natural gas, PetroChina Company
Limited (“PetroChina”) is the principal natural gas supplier
of the Group, and we have established joint ventures
including Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas Co.,
Ltd. (“PetroChina Kunlun”) as early as in 2006, to expand
our strategic cooperation with PetroChina in Taicang and
adjacent regions. The Group has been in good strategic
relation with PetroChina for more than 10 years. Such
relation further safeguards the reliable, stable and sufficient
gas-supply resources. It is vital for our operation and
development of piped natural gas sales and transmission
business. It is one of the key factors consolidating our
sustainable businesses.

We believe that the conduct and performance of suppliers
may affect the quality of our service and product as well as
the reputation of the Group. Therefore, during the Reporting
Period, we formulated the Social Responsibility and Business
Ethics Agreement with regard to environmental protection,
occupational health and safety, moral behaviour, etc.,
which is distributed to all suppliers for signature and clearly
specifies the basic requirements for business partners of the
Group.

If we find any supplier or contractor violate any natural
laws or fail to perform their obligations under the Contract,
we will put them into the list of ineligible suppliers and no
longer choose them, to guarantee the good quality of our
suppliers.
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Our Employees

Human resource development is certainly one of the
key factors for good development of an enterprise. The
Group has always adhered to “people first” and treated
our employees with kindness and lenience. We emphasise
individual development of employees and understand that
employees have their own targets and needs at different
stages of career. We wish to give full play to the expertise
of each employee and explore the individual potential
of employees through setting appropriate positions and
organizing regular training activities. In addition, we wish
to provide employees with a sound remuneration package
system to offer guarantee to employees in all aspects,
thus achieving the target of retaining employees and the
final target of sustainable development of the Group, and
enabling employees to work in a confident, happy and safe

manner.

Laws and regulations of the PRC in relation to employment
with the Group include the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Regulation on the Implementation
of the Employment Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Labour Contract Regulation of Jiangsu. To
the best knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the
Group was not subject to any major administrative sanction
or punishment due to violation of any employment laws or
regulations during the Reporting Period.

Recruitment

We have always considered our employees as the most
important asset. Facing the problem of continuous shortage
of labour, we made unremitting efforts to attract and retain
talents in the past year, with the hope of employing more
talents in the current competitive human resource market.
In terms of strategy, we still adhere to the major principle of
“fairness” and recruit employees through different channels.
In recruitment, we undertake that we will recruit employees
regardless of nationality, gender, age, family status and
other factors irrelevant to work competency or qualification
of employees. Meanwhile, the Group strictly prohibits
employment of child labour.
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Analysis of Employee Distribution ETIDHON

Proportion by Gender
BB LI DE P

40, 20%

162, 80%

[ Male 5 M Female &

Proportion by Age
REEREI DL P

41, 20%
52, 26%
16, 8%
42,219
,21% 51, 25%
B Below 30 31 to 40 7 41t050 [ 51t060 Over 60
3033 AT 31E408% 41E508% 512605 607% 2 A

Analysis by Employment Category
RERER B DD

7, 4%
13, 6%

182, 90%

Senior management I Middle management M General and technical employee

BRERE hREEE —REEMAR
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Analysis of Staff Turnover MEAET oMo

Proportion by Gender
BB HIEI D E B

5, 16%

26, 84%

Male 2 M Female &2

Proportion by Age
RERE|I D E P

11, 35%

4,13%

1,3%

12,39%

B Below 30 31 to 40 41 to 50 [ 51 to 60 Over 60
30K AT 31E405% 41E505% 51%2605% 60BL A
Employee benefit and remuneration architecture ETEFMEFENZERE

The Group provides employees with a competitive ZXNEEBEABTIRMFERI OGS @ &
remuneration package. In addition to basic annual leave, {7 A8 TIRHKZFERNFERIN  HFITR
we provide employees with marriage leave, funeral leave, [AB TIEMHER ER - - ER - TEKR W
maternity leave, work-related injury leave, breastfeeding JLB% « MAMMERHBLEEMERASD
leave, etc. We also participate in different employee B E TN TREEEEMNTE  2FESE -
benefit plans for the staff including pension, work-related T1{& « 28& « L EMABFRE o AP E
injury, medical, unemployment and maternity insurances Z2BETHHM —MEEELRES - MUH
in accordance with laws and regulations of China. Bl - BWEHFHMULRTIEHTE  HEhmhess
Remunerations of our Chinese full-time employees generally — E 285 o 4N - JRPITT@IRIBL L EED
include basic salary, duty salary, performance salary, {FAE8 TE8RFRIEL - ETHNHMNFESD
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seniority pay, subsidy and other allowances. Moreover, we
also pay year-end bonuses to employees according to results
of operations. The remuneration packages for employees
are determined by the management or the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, while the remunerations
are mainly determined according to performance
and experience of the employees. To ensure that our
remuneration architecture is fair and competitive, we will
carry out review on an annual basis for remunerations, by
reference to such factors as the average wage in the place
where the operating organisation is located, the minimum
wage standard of the local government. We have formulated
salary and performance standards for each grade according
to the current average wage level, technical and professional
qualifications for relevant positions, monthly and annual
performance assessment, and will make adjustment
according to the such factors as technical level, qualification
and performance of employees, with the hope of maintaining
a fair and competitive remuneration architecture.

Working hours, vacations and other benefits

As a major piped natural gas supplier in Taicang, we provide
customers with 24/7 service, so our certain employees
must work during unsocial hours and public holidays, and
must be on standby for any emergency. We offer overtime
pay and additional compensation to employees working
outside the designated working hours. In addition, we will
provide birthday vouchers each month for employees whose
birthdays fall in the month. On other traditional holidays,
such as National Day and Women’s Day, we also provide
employees with festival bonuses as a benefit, with the hope
that all employees can feel the Company’s care about them

in festival celebration.
Talent Training

Talent development is a significant sector in our sustainable
development strategy. We are profoundly aware that the
knowledge and skills of employees are of vital importance
for the Company’s operation and business growth, while the
favorable working development plan is a good preparation

for the employees to face business challenges in future.
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The Group respectively arranges for employees to
participate in internal and external training of the Company.
As mentioned above, safety, quality and environmental
protection have always been our operating core, so our
trainings focus on improvement in knowledge and skills
of employees in safety, quality control and environmental
protection. In addition, we also arrange for employees to
have continuous education and learning in different training
institutions, for the sole purpose of enhancing their crisis
awareness, reducing the possibility of accidents and at the
same time, improving the enterprise operation quality of the
Group.

AEBEHHLZEEE T 2ERTREFIIN
EEY ) o AN EX TR 0 B2 anE A
RR—ENRBERMANHE @’f%u gl
BB B METRERA BT AR
£ uu,\ﬁ%lﬁﬂf&f‘ﬁ% & 77 TE A A N B
oy o BRULASN - HPITRBE LB E TR AH
Y15 -|I$%$§1’E¢—iri“%&§§“£ AR GED
BREBTIMEEED  BUERIEERS
x Hﬁvizmzli%lzl/t\%%‘@u%i °

Analysis of employee training
BTN

Total training hours
AL )1 B 2R
Average training hours

F 55 1A K

1,972 hours
1,972/ N

9.76 hours/person
9.76/1\BF A

Hours trained by gender

1% B 8 5 19 B 5 F| R B

Male 1,920 hours
5 1,920/
Female 52 hours
X 52/
Hours trained by employment category

ZRERERNE D HWEZIKE

Senior management 16 hours
SREERE 16/
Middle management 324 hours
FARERRE 324/
General and technical employees 1,632 hours
—RREMAER 1,632/)\F
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Hours trained by age

BERE DN EIFH

Below 30 748 hours
30BE AT 748/
31 to 40 376 hours
31E408% 376/ )\
41 to 50 464 hours
41ZE508% 464/ \Bs
51 to 60 384 hours
51%0608% 384/ B
Prohibiting child labour and forced labour BEZIEI REBELEH

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations  ZK£ B @& E B &K TR A B X2

relating to the minimum working age,

and strictly  fR{] - WIRBEHLEEEFEBNERZK -

forbids employment of child labour, in accordance with R EZ |F{FHEET - BB T ABRHSE
social responsibility management requirements, laws B—FETE=HNRERF  BMeEFEFET -

and regulations. Before employment, all employees are RIREHIR - FK I KR EIR K EH (T
subject to a set of sound review procedures, so as to avoid  [Zo&:HAA Bk E T RSB o

employment of child labour. During the Reporting Period,

we did not identify or were involved in any problem in

relation to forced labour or child labour.

In addition, the Group emphasised prohibition of forced F4) - REFEBFHEE Fog:A A TITE
labour practices and required that its employees should be (& AEEE T VBN AERFEARA

employed on a voluntary basis. The Group undertakes that: R

o It prohibits any coercive behaviour; o B EAREAMTA

J It will not induce workers to work for the Group by e AANAEERFESIFTARANEER
cheat; T1E:

J It prohibits obtaining interest of employees by e LA E NERE THF
punishment or threat or forcing employees to work. ﬁnﬂl@ﬁz_g\llﬂz
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Green Operations
At present, the world is experiencing an energy
transformation. Most countries are seeking an opportunity
to increase the use of clean energy, while China is one of
countries actively promoting use of environment-friendly
energy. As emphasised by the National Energy
Administration, “green and low-carbon” is the strategic
direction of China’s energy revolution. It will be committed
to developing new technologies, industries, business forms
and models, comprehensively promoting clean energy
production and consumption revolutions and jointly
constructing a clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient modern
energy system. The 13th Five-Year Plan for Natural Gas
Development (“13th Five-Year Plan”) outlines the future key

development target of natural gas.

The Group, as a leader in the natural gas industry, will
certainly make great efforts to support national policies
and continue to develop green energy, so as to accomplish
the important mission of environmental protection and
emission reduction. Rapid development of the natural gas
industry is certainly conducive to business development of
the Group, but we hope to protect our environment through
development of the natural gas industry. For effectively
managing and reducing environmental influence arising out
of our businesses, we also measure relevant emission and

use of resources.
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Description Unit Value
i B HE
BEREHREE WA LiRE & 501.65
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCOze
BN (8BE) WS LiREE 240.95
Direct emissions (scope 1) tCOz2e
R (8E2) WS CHEE 663.61
Indirect emissions (scope 2) tCOze
RPN (RE3) # WA LIKEE 29.38
Indirect emissions (scope 3)* tCO2e
mERERRE (SBEN) WAL EE 432.29
Greenhouse gas removals (scope 1) tCOqe
BYHANBERBHREE DT ZREIREE FITK 6.05
Total greenhouse gas emissions per square meter kg CO:e per square meter
RAALP(NOX) R 549.78
Nitric Oxides (NOx) Kg
HEAE¥(SOx) NN 1.06
Sulfur Oxides (SOx) Kg
FERL ) (PM) N 50.50
Particulate matter (PM) Kg
BeLRFEE T/ 1,645,834.79
Total energy use Kilowatt hour
BEEE TR/ 943,293.00
Electricity purchased Kilowatt hour
e T I/ 58,217.36
Diesel oil Kilowatt hour
iR UH TR 605,989.03
Unleaded gasoline Kilowatt hour
BRAERAR TR/ 38,335.40
Compressed natural gas Kilowatt hour
BT KHRERER TR/ FI3K 19.86
Energy consumption per square meter Kilowatt hour per square meter
BFEKE MK 46,356
Total water consumption Cubic meter
B RMFEKE MK FTK 0.56
Water consumption per square meter Cubic meter/square meter
BEBRVBE MR 3.68
Total non-hazardous waste produced Tonne
BEHARANEZERY Nis 0.04
Non-hazardous waste per square meter Kg

# Relevant data are emissions from air travel of employees

t BREBBRAEIMTIRENINE
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Laws and regulations as to environmental
protection

Major Chinese laws concerning environmental protection
for the Group include the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (“Environmental
Protection Law”), Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Environmental Impact Assessment, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution and
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. To the
best knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the Group
was not subject to any major administrative sanction or
punishment due to violation of any environmental laws or
regulations during the Reporting Period.

Low-Carbon Office and Green Life

Our natural gas sales and transmission business mainly
involve pipeline projects, basically imposing no adverse
impact on the environment. Besides, a small amount of
residual natural gas will be discharged out of the pipeline
at time of pigging operation, but it will have no significant
influence on surrounding environment due to the low
output.

Our emission of greenhouse gases mainly originates from
electric power consumption and fuel consumption by
machinery and vehicle. Electric power is mainly used for
maintaining the routine natural gas sales and transmission
services and office affairs, including lighting and use
of office equipment. To further promote environmental
protection, we advocate the low-carbon concept positively,
encourage employees to save every kilowatt of electricity,
every sheet of paper and every drop of water via the
low-carbon lifestyle, and comprehensively reduce the
negative impact on environment. The following are the

routine low-carbon measures adopted in our office:
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Reducing power consumption

Use auto-induction lights in some offices

Make full use of natural light and wind to reduce the

use of lights and air-conditioners

Keep the air-conditioning temperature at 25°C
in summer and 18°C in winter, and ensure the
air-conditioners are turned off automatically when
getting off work

Maintain the level of brightness of computer screen
between 50% and 75% and set the computer display

to shut down automatically in 10 minutes

Turn off unnecessary electronic devices and lamps

when not in use

Reducing paper consumption

Employees bring their own drinking water cup and
avoid using disposable paper cup

Encourage employees to dry hands with handkerchief
to reduce paper consumption

Try to execute paperless office automation and avoid
waste of considerable office supplies

Provide collection boxes to collect and reuse
single-sided paper
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Reducing water consumption 5D K

. After using the water equipment, employees must e ETHEFABAKEEEVBERRER
ensure the relevant equipment is turned off and avoid PR E  PHIERE

waste

o Check the water equipment carefully to avoid water e RERERKER  BHLEER - &R
dripping and leakage, and repair immediately once HEERMEETHEE  BAORERK
any abnormality is found, to reduce waste of water

Reuse and recycling WERF R EREE

J Reuse office supplies, including envelopes,

ERERARAERR  BREEH X
loose-leaf binders, paper bags and choose alternative AR - BN E RE AR BRI A

stationeries

. Place a waste battery recycling bin . "B REEE MO UAE
. Entrust a professional environmental protection e EEEERRERN AT EO U EEAR

company to recycle scrap paper regularly
Sewage Management FKEE

Domestic sewage is the main pollutant from the Group’s H/EGKEARNEBEBKONTE LY T2
business, with the main sources including daily wastewater 3B EE8 TAE EAIRE/K « SREAITK -
of employees, sewage at the dining hall, water discharge J/KBEEEMES T E @ BAEESK -
from washrooms, etc. Our daily sewage is first pre-treated in & {3 - [BHIMTELEIEE  BHIHREM
the septic tank and oil-separating tank, then discharged into  FUS/KE®E - WHIT/KEEBRETEIE o M
the municipal sewage pipelines, and treated intensively by B f] - ANEBE&E LR ABENRAERE -
the sewage treatment plant. At present, the Group does not

have problems in relation to source of water.
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Solid Waste Management

No hazardous wastes or packing materials are generated
during our routine business process. The solid wastes we
discharge can be mainly divided into two aspects, one is
domestic waste, and the other is industrial waste. Evidently,
domestic waste means the waste generated during daily life
of employees, which will be collected and transported to
the urban environmental sanitation department for uniform
treatment. In terms of industrial waste, after the natural
gas being transmitted through long-distance pipelines
(steel pipes), steel pipe scrap iron will be contained in the
natural gas, so scrap iron wastes will be generated after
filtration. These industrial solid wastes will be collected
and transported to the urban environmental sanitation
department for uniform treatment together with domestic

wastes.
Anti-corruption and Pro-honesty

In order to procure that operation of the Group complies
with the undertakings for transparency, integrity and
accountability standards, we have formulated the
Anti-Malpractice Management Rule, which includes
anti-malpractice management, reporting policies and
anti-malpractice measures. In addition, the Group has
also formulated reporting and investigation mechanisms,
for anonymous reporting of such suspected problems as
corruption, bribe-taking and malpractice, and confirmed
relevant investigation procedures.

To the best knowledge of the Directors of the Company,
the Group did not receive complaints or punishment in
relation to corruption, bribery or other misconducts during
the Reporting Period. Meanwhile, during the Reporting
Period, our operation complied with relevant policies
against bribery, blackmail, fraud and money-laundering, and

relevant laws and regulations.
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Product Liability

Development of the Group is closely related to product
quality. A sound quality control procedure is one of the
essential factors for good development of the enterprise. We
can maintain our leading position only by providing high
quality products and services. We have always complied
with strict quality standards, laws and regulations in relation
to our operation. We carry out strict supervisions in terms of
raw material supply management, safety and quality control,
customer service quality control, etc., so as to provide safest
and top-quality products. In the future, we will make an
ongoing commitment to production process standardisation,

for the purpose of maintaining a high product quality.

During the Reporting Period, we did not recall any product
as a result of safety and health problems, and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Group did not receive any
complaints from any person in relation to advertisement
and labels inconsistent with health and safety requirements,
products and services. In addition, during the Reporting
Period, we were not subject to any major complaint, product

claim or recall.
Maintenance service

Our major customers mainly include wholesalers (i.e.,
local gas distributors) and industrial & commercial users
from the retail business sector. Based on the gas pipeline
construction agreement entered into with customers, we
are usually responsible for maintaining the natural gas
pipelines and keeping them in good operating condition.
For non-residential users, we provide free maintenance
service for the first year, and charge annual maintenance
fees according to our maintenance contract for the following
years. We provide residential users with free maintenance

service.
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Continuous improvement in customer satisfaction

We've established a 24-hour customer service call center
to provide service information for customers, and guarantee
a quick response to customer feedback. Most calls are
made for gas connection application, business inquiry, risk
reporting, repair reporting, charging inquiry, etc. During the
Reporting Period, the customer service center received a
total of 23 complaints mainly about the attitude of workers,
equipment and other matters. All complaints were handled
in a timely manner and recorded properly. We will regularly
review previous complaints and continuously make

improvement.

We are committed to providing superior services and taking
active measures to improve our service quality continually.
We provide trainings about product knowledge, service
skills and complaint response skills to the customer service
call center on a regular basis, so as to make our employees
reserve sufficient knowledge to answer the customer inquiry.
During the Reporting Period, we also entrusted a safety
evaluation and certification company to check at random
the user’s satisfaction with the Group’s customer services,

thus reviewing and further enhancing our service quality.
Protecting customer privacy

To protect customer privacy, we have also established
the confidentiality management system, clarifying that all
employees have the obligation to keep the corporate secrets
confidential, and during external communication and
cooperation, special attention must be paid not to disclosing
the corporate information, including but not limited to
customer data, business and technical secrets, etc., while
the customer data we collect are used for designated
purpose only.
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Advertisement marketing

Our marketing team mainly promotes the use of piped
natural gas by brochures and newspaper advertising. To
increase our customer base, we also promote the advantages
of natural gas in terms of price, convenience, safety, clean
and environmental protection by organizing promotion
activities (e.g., advertising on media and handing out user
guide). All the advertising and promotion information will
be reviewed by our deputy general manager, chief security
supervisor and legal advisor, to ensure all the promotion
information is correct and accurate before being presented
to the public.

Community Concern

We are committed to advancing social harmony and
promoting the improvement of public life and the healthy
development of regional economy.

Fee reduction and exemption for poverty-stricken users

We understand that there are still many families failing to
use our natural gas services due to poverty, so the Group
has continued to implement a fee reduction plan for them
during the Reporting Period. The Group has provided fee
reductions and exemptions to 121 underprivileged families
during the Reporting Period, helping them obtain natural gas

services at a lower price.
Looking into the Future

During the Reporting Period, we performed our social
responsibilities, actively provided high-quality services for
customers, participated in community construction, paid
attention to the vulnerable groups and supported them
through charitable donation. We paid attention to employee
development and growth and created a harmonious and
comfortable work environment. We provided employees
with training and development projects and grew together
with our employees.
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Looking ahead, we will continue to set up more projects,
insist on providing customers with better services, maintain
the highest ethical standards and scout talents. Meanwhile,
we will also more actively participate in community
activities and reduce environmental influence resulting from
businesses. The Group will continue to hear feedback from
different stakeholders, continuously make improvement,
insist on keeping a balance between society, environment
and development, and make efforts for sustainable

development.

The Group would like to take this opportunity to express
our heartfelt gratitude to all stakeholders for supporting and
trusting us. We will continue to perform the corporate social
responsibility and adhere to the sustainable development
philosophy, so as to make greater contribution to sustainable
development of the society.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R BETRE

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

e
EY:

EE I
BEBRIRNTER

TelE 5%: +852 2846 9888
Fax/EE: +852 2868 4432

1 Tim Mei Avenue  F{E KE2218 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited BEARRROBRIRRR
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REESFHSTME I ERLE])
Opinion =

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 125 to 251,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017 and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is

provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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BYZBERE

Key audit matters (Continued)

| Sop—

REEREE (&)

Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELEETERRUMNEEREEREE

Impairment of trade receivables

JEW B 5 3R 50Bi 18

The provision for impairment of trade receivables
is based on ongoing evaluation of the collectability
and ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables
and involved significant management's judgement.
A considerable amount of judgment is required
in assessing the ultimate realization of those
receivables, including assessing the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.

& BB 55 B X 0 R L 988 1 T AR R 1) R (02 B KU RRIR
AR E TR AR MR O MEL - W RE
BEEMEAHE - HEZFREFANRRERS
BRZELAEHE  EFEEEFPNEERE
EfEdkRDER o

The carrying value of trade receivables was
RMB70,538,000 as at 31 December 2017. We
focused on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables due to the materiality of trade
receivables to the consolidated financial statements
and the high level of management's judgement
involved.

R2017F12A318 - BB ZEFNEEES/SA
K #70,538,0007T » & F BT & W E 5 BR 5K AR
B - TTRREESE P BRROEKE SRR
MEFFER - A REEENSEAE -

Related disclosures are included in Note 2.4
“Impairment of financial assets”, Note 3 “Significant
accounting judgements and estimates” and Note 22
“Trade and bills receivables” to the consolidated
financial statements.
HEREERENZEEMBREMT24 2R E
EHRE] - M3 T EEgat A &1 &M
22 [EWESERNTEIE] -

We understood and evaluated management's
controls over the assessment of impairment of trade
receivables.

BEECER LT EEHREE ZRIREN G
MIEHIRRE o

We tested the ageing of the outstanding receivables
and reviewed the information prepared by the
management used to determine the impairment of
trade receivables.
BEECARRERERYENKEK  YEEREEE
EFme AN EE R W E ZRFRERN B

We tested overdue trade receivable balances to
check whether impairment have been provided
according to the policy of the Group. This
included reviewing the impairment policy of
trade receivables, verifying the rationality of the
categories for individual assessment and collective
assessment, verifying the rationality of impairment
method for different categories by reviewing
historical payment patterns and actual impairment
of trade receivables.

BEFERE SEENBXRAFAARNEYKEZRRE
# o UHERRBEEHRERE - BREAREREERN
FEY B 5 iR HRE R R - B E R4 R AR FHE
DHRNAENE BRAFRERENFTEAREKE K
RO EFRERETRERIARET AN SR -
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELEETERRUMNEEREEREE

We selected samples of material trade receivable
balances where provisions for impairment were
recognized and understood the rationale behind
management's judgement. In order to evaluate the
appropriateness of these judgements we verified
whether balances were overdue, the customer's
historical payment patterns and whether any post
year-end payments had been received up to the
date of completing our audit procedures. We
also obtained corroborative evidence including
correspondence supporting any disputes between
the parties involved, attempts by management to
recover the amounts outstanding and on the credit
status of significant counterparties where available.
BELERCHERDRERENE D EREKE SRR
REERE RBIBEER - I AN E IR E I ) 0 38
B RFEZFHENREN  EFERBEERE
LR FRPHNBENKREAREETKEENE
ZiEFE RS AWIERNFERERNR - BFT
ESHREIE BRERES CAEFNFHNE
A EREEABRERREESEIEZRFHTH
ERMR (HAIER) °

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
of trade receivables in the consolidated financial

statements.

BEENHETREEZEINGEAMBERRFEENT

Dk e

2017 FF3 | HARRROARDF

119



120

Independent Auditor’s Report
MR BB R

Key audit matters (Continued)
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Key audit matter

AREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ELEETERRUMNEEREEREE

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill amounted to
RMB97,412,000 as at 31 December 2017 and was
allocated to the corresponding subsidiaries acquired
as each of these acquired subsidiaries is the only
cash-generating unit (“CGU") that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
R2017F12A31H AEMEEHERAR®
97,412,0007T * W E D EEFFRBHHERBME L
A WIHARAMEBNZEHNB AR RAMKEES
HEOMFRRETENOE-REELSENG (R
EEEA]) -

In accordance with IFRSs, management of the
Group is required to at least annually perform
impairment test for goodwill. The impairment test is
largely based on management's estimates of future
results of each CGU to which goodwill is allocated
and involves various assumptions and judgements.
REBRYGRELER - BEXKEEEERELSE
FETHBRENR - REAAERKIEE LER
EEEBHOERENSREELBMRREANDG
it WH Rk EBREMAE -

Related disclosures are included in Note 2.4
“Impairment of non-financial assets”, Note 3
“Significant accounting judgements and estimates”
“Goodwill”
financial statements.
HERERERSNGE M BRRMT2.4 (32
BERE] W3 [EEgstHE kst KM
15 [ ] -

and note 15 to the consolidated

Our audit procedures included, among others,
involving our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the assumptions and methodologies
used by management, mainly the discount rate
and the long-term growth rate beyond the five-year
period.

BEENEZEFERE (HPERE) ZIRABHESR
KBS EEEBAERNBRERLTE £
AR AFZRAORPERE

We reviewed and assessed the forecasts used with
respect to future revenues and operating results
by comparing the forecasts with the historical
performance of the respective CGU and the
business development plan.
EERAREANERRSELBUMBERENRE
BERATBETHLR  HRRBARKLEEENT
REITES R -

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of
goodwill in the consolidated financial statements.

BEENAETABR RN ERREENTIME -
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Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do

SO.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERE

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEIRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

28 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEBEmkEMEZEKER

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F12A31 B ILFE
2017 2016
20175 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B E AR¥T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(=)
REVENUE 1N 5 967,267 740,895
Cost of sales $HERK K (738,282) (531,554)
Gross profit EF 228,985 209,341
Other income and gains E At A R W 5 5 16,671 22,419
Selling and distribution costs $HE KD KA (11,515) (10,459)
Administrative expenses THAX (68,672) (48,288)
Other expenses HErE (12,892) (1,309)
Finance costs R E AR 6 (6,290) (4,524)
Share of profits of associates SaK sy NIl ol 1,911 1,543
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRFBE AT A 7 148,198 168,723
Income tax expense PSR X 10 (48,058) (44,906)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERER 100,140 123,817
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR LT &7 EEEERR :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZZEPN 93,902 120,681
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRE RS 6,238 3,136
100,140 123,817
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE UTEFEEEEZEK
INCOME FOR THE YEAR AEEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZZEPN 93,902 120,681
Non-controlling interests FEPRRSHE 51 6,238 3,136
100,140 123,817
EARNINGS PER SHARE BARERERESEAE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO HERAER
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic E= 9N
— For profit for the year (RMB) — FRmA (ARE) 12 0.10 0.14
Diluted 8
— For profit for the year (RMB) — ERERN (ARE) 12 0.10 0.14
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

31 December 2017
2017%F12A31H

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(£«< )
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - RE MR 13 578,365 597,324
Prepaid land lease payments TS T ERRIR 14 91,627 90,613
Intangible assets WA E 16 96,333 90,260
Investments in associates REE LN BIHIRE 17 70,339 77,328
Goodwill S 15 97,412 91,787
Deferred tax assets EIETRBEE 18 33,470 31,026
Other non-current assets HIEmeh&EE 19 4,622 3,116
Total non-current assets ERBEELT 972,168 981,454
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 20 8,935 8,413
Amounts due from construction WSS RTFERIE
contract customers 21 68,485 60,913
Trade and bills receivables TEWE ZERRERE 22 70,538 53,762
Prepayments, deposits TBRFRIE - EZE Rk
and other receivables H At R R 19 54,085 40,554
Amounts due from other JFE Uy EL Ath 8388 5 Tk
related parties 24 4,393 2,185
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEeREE 23 44,690 112,000
Pledged deposits EHEATER 25 67,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents WERBESEEY 25 569,991 400,359
Total current assets MENEEREE 888,117 678,186
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables e E H R 26 50,107 65,294
Other payables and accruals Efh MR Iﬁ&ﬁi*ﬂ';ﬁﬁﬁ 27 35,100 53,605
Advance from customers AW P 155,814 143,287
Amounts due to related parties J,*EHE%?EEE?KIE 24 445 =
Deferred income B A 28 20,204 17,557
Tax payable RT3 24,513 19,239
Interest-bearing bank loans FTRIRITER 29 40,000 35,780
Total current liabilities mENE(EARE 326,183 334,762
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 561,934 343,424
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERABAEE
LIABILITIES 1,534,102 1,324,878
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBARRE
31 December 2017
2017F12H31H

2017 2016
20175 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR¥TR ARETTT
(Restated)
(J&E )
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEME
Interest-bearing bank loans sHERITER 29 50,000 60,000
Deferred income B A 28 101,871 92,738
Deferred tax liabilities EERIARE 18 26,347 25,544
Total non-current liabilities EmEBERTE 178,218 178,282
NET ASSETS EETE 1,355,884 1,146,596
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of BATEE AEGES
the parent
Issued capital EEITHRA 30 7,214 6,858
Reserves 1 32 1,263,290 1,098,153
1,270,504 1,105,011
Non-controlling interests FEER A = 85,380 41,585
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,355,884 1,146,596
Su Aping Zhu Yaying
R KRR
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GRERERBER

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE2017F12A31 B IEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATHAARL
Share Statutory Non-
Issued Share  option  Merger  Capital  reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve fund ~ profits Total interests equity
B&f R BhE EE FER
Bx &R B GifEE EXBE  BR:  REE it S
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARMTT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTT ARMTT ARMTT ARMTT ARMTR
note 30 note31  note32  note32  note3?
30 Wi Wi MEn KER
At 1 January 2016 H2016E1A1R 6544 630738 909 (4343) 6231 59543 280528 930,150 - 930,150
Issue of shares BIkn 34 79,658 = = = = - 7997 - 7997
Share issue expenses OESEbY - (3,060) - - - - - [3,066) - [3,066)
Profit and total comprehensive  FEAH k2 EME LS
income for the year = = = = = - 120,681 120,681 3,13 123,817
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ REHBAF - - - - - - - - 5601 35,601
Final 2015 dividend declared ~ BETRRIEE2015F
and paid KBRS - - - - - - (28092 (28,092) - (2809
Equity-settled share option INEREENBRET
arrangements - - 5,360 - - - - 5,366 - 5,360
Transfer from retained profits ~ EBARZAH = = = = - 133 (1337 = = =
At31 December 2016and — H2016%1231A R
Uanary 2017 Restated) 200781818 (BER) 6858 707,30 625 (434) 61 7904 359746 1105011 41565 1,146,5%
Issue of shares EARG 356 77,974 - - - - - 78330 - 78330
Share issue expenses OEGHETT - (1,285 - - - - - (128 - (128)
Profit and total comprehensive  EEAF R 2EME A%
income for the year - - - - - - 93902 93902 6,238 100,140
Capital contribution from non- ~ FHERRE T4
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - AAT0 440
Dividends paid to non-controlling B 3E AR RS
shareholders - - - - - - - - (6913) (6913
Final 2016 dividend declared ~ EETRRE2016F
and paid ~ERE - - - - - - (528) (2528 - (580
Equity-settled share option MR ER
anangemens by e - - 19828 - - - - 19828 - 19828
Transfer from retained profits & EREEF - - - - - W76 (14716) - - -
At 31 December 2017 R017£128318 T4 B04019F 26103 (A34DF 6231 87,630+ 413,630% 1270504 85380 1,355,884

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — *
of RMB1,263,290,000 (2016: RMB1,098,153,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12A31BLEFE
2017 2016
2017 2016%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET T ARETTT
(Restated)
(&&= q)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& ZEHFERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B A Bl Al 148,198 168,723
Adjustments for: RT5IFE
Share of profits of associates PaN (= kNI Obeb | (1,911) (1,543)
Amortisation of prepaid land TE A 4 3t A B R IE
lease payments 7 2,978 2,245
Amortisation of intangible assets TS B 7 3,589 749
Impairment of trade receivables EUWE 5 R E 3,615 1,323
Depreciation e 7 33,158 29,731
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items HEME - R Kk te
of property, plant and equipment BEK (W), B8 7 (691) 1
Amortisation of deferred income AT Y A A 28 (19,723) (16,110)
Equity-settled share option expenses ARz 45 & A EERL IR 2 19,828 5,366
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) HNEESIE (UeEs) 11,696 (4,901)
Interest income F B A 5 (10,951) (7,995)
Interest income from AIEHEREZ
available-for-sale investments B YA 5 (1,963) (4,958)
Interest expense FEREZ 6 6,290 4,524
194,113 177,155
Increase in trade and bills receivables JEUZE 5 BE 7% K& Z 353240 (20,391) (6,951)
Increase in amounts due from JEWER A RIZFIE
construction contract customers 90 (7,572) (265)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FBFIE ~ #&d M EAM
deposits and other receivables W RIER A (JE n) 9,275 (14,149)
Increase in inventories FEEM (522) (775)
Increase in amounts due from other  J& Y = {th B4 75 FRIEIL AN
related parties (2,208) (2,185)
Increase in amounts due to other JE 5 HL b 838 5 2R IEE
related parties 445 -
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables [EfTE 5 IR
(R, 10 (15,242) 2,041
Decrease in other payables and H A FE AT FRIE &
accruals EETE AR (2,226) (46)
Increase/(decrease) in advances from FEUZE F 7018
customers i"j]l]/(/FJZ’J ) 12,527 (10,381)
Increase in deferred income IE E U A 3 A0 31,503 29,059
Cash generated from operations REEFFIERE 199,702 173,503
Interest received BUF 8 10,946 9,596
Tax paid BEfHIA (46,184) (49,966)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM RETHME
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REeEREFHE 164,464 133,133
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n -\éiﬁiﬁ‘;ﬁlii
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

| Sop—

2017 2016
2017F 20165
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Liksd ARBT T AREFTT
(Restated)
(geEa)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BEX
plant and equipment R EIE B (29,799) (52,733)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEME - BEK
of property, plant and equipment RIEE B FTi5 508 10,943 1
Purchase of prepaid land lease BEEN LB ERE
payments - (11,147)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETEE (2,628) (303)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B B R &) (34,122) (97,981)
Capital contribution from a (1= PNEIEE 22
non-controlling shareholder FE
of a subsidiary 28,420 -
Capital reduction in an associate — [EH & R =) & AN HIRL 8,800 -
Investment in an associate REFE R AR E (490) =
Purchase of available-for-sale BEIHLERE
investments (625,844) (302,000)
Prepayments for a proposed ERWIETENRIE
acquisition (1,200) -
Dividends received from associates & UB#4 D &) 8% S 590 4,083
Proceeds from disposal of & A SR E TS
available-for-sale investments WIE 693,154 190,000
Interest received from L 03 g |
available-for-sale investments B ik E RS 5 1,963 4,958
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) R2&;EBFr8 (FrA)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERn8FH 49,787 (265,122)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING  BEZBFMEBHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares 1T P15 508 78,330 79,972
Share issue expenses Pty 1T (1,285) (3,066)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged BHEIPFR (3n), m
deposits (67,000) 5,379
Interest received from pledged BB EREFRAFE
deposits 5 131
Dividends paid EARERE (32,195) (28,092)
Interest paid EHE (4,998) (4,546)
Repayment of interest-bearing EEFBRITERK
bank loans (270,680) (13,500)
Proceeds from interest-bearing T ERITERATISHIE
bank loans 264,900 43,548
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/ MEES (TR B
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RERnEFHE (32,923) 79,826
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERREEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2, (Rd) B8 181,328 (52,163)
Cash and cash equivalents at FMR e RIREEEY
beginning of year 400,359 445,389
Effect of exchange rate changes, net  [EXR & B) 5/ 2 %40 (11,696) 7,133
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S£ARMNESRELZEY
END OF YEAR 569,991 400,359
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Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate and Group Information

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands.

The registered office address of the Company is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding.

The principal business activities of the Group during
the year included the distribution and sale of piped
natural gas, operating compressed natural gas (“CNG”)
refuelling station business, the provision of natural
gas transmission, and acting as the main contractor
of construction and installation of gas pipelines in
Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate controlling shareholders of the Company are
Mr. Su Aping (#PFi¥) and Ms. Zhu Yaying (5KZ82E)
(together known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11 March 2015.

B 75 ¥ R B

Year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F12A31 B ILFE
TtEREEER

HEMRBRODABERAR (TAQF]) R
BREFSEAEF2ERFIENR2013
F7RA4BEHRSHEEMKILSERR
BREMERA -

AN R Al & it # F R ik AClifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands

ARRINEBRHRIREER

FAXRKENEIEEZRBRERTEAM
RERHEEBARAAR  REBHERA
R(TEBEFERAR]) MRUEER - 2H#
AARRBE - FRERMLEMRAEE
B EEABR -

ARAEFRR  ARAN KRR
RRFMFERERARDTRLL (BBER
[HERRALER ) -

AATIRHEBE2015F3 411 BEES
BEARSARAR ([BRPT]) *£
R T e
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. tEREEER (&)
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

BEMBRRNER

132

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are AANRETEWBATINFBHOT :
as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share  attributable to
Name business capital the Company Principal activities
ML, BRTEE/ EARELMH
A% R EE R BTN LR TEXH
Direct Indirect
Hi B

China Suchuang Energy Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
Co., (Hong Kong) Ltd. B 10,0007 7T REER
(“Suchuang Hong Kong”)

hEEAIER (B8)

BB ([#a1EE])

Suchuang Gas (Shanghai) PRC/ RMB300,000,000 100 = Investment holding
Co., Ltd.*/** Mainland China ARE BEER
(“Suchuang Shanghai”) R RE RN 300,000,0007T

HEIMA (LB) BRAR/

» ([#ElLE))

Taicang Natural Gas PRC/ RMB188,000,000 = 100 Distribution and sale of
Company Limited*/** Mainland China AR natural gas, provision of
(“Taicang Natural Gas”) RE /R E R, 188,000,0007T natural gas transmission, main

AETRRBBBRAA*/ contractor of construction and
»* ([KEXRAR]) installation of gas pipelines

FA RHERAR -
REXARBIE

ERERRZEMRESR

HEEEBEH

Kunshan Anda Natural Gas PRC/ RMB2,000,000 - 80 Distribution and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. */** Mainland China AEHE natural gas
(“Anda Natural Gas”) RE/PEAL 2,000,0007 RARHERRR

BUIRERARBERERAA/

* ([ZERRR))
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Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

TEREEER (F)

—
.

1. Corporate and Group Information
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

EENBARNER (&)
ARBEEMBRBNFEWT « (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows: (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

registered share

attributable to

Name business capital the Company Principal activities
MR, BROEE/ FRAEE
L AR EE L ERA BEMADL TEEHR
Direct Indirect
HE B

Suzhou Zhongyu PRC/ RMB10,000,000 = 100 Construction and operation of
Energy Development Mainland China AEHE natural gas filling stations
Co., Ltd.#/** FE L/ FER 10,000,0007C BREREERARMAL
(“Suzhou Zhongyu”)

FNPTRRRRARAR
> ([&MPF])

Sichuan Guangyuan PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51 Operation of natural gas
Licheng Gas Co., Ltd. */** Mainland China ARHE filling stations
(“Licheng Gas") HE/RER 20,000,0007T EERRR IR

M ETERRRERE TN
/o ([RIZRE D)

Changshu City Suyu PRC/ RMB20,000,000 - 51 Distribution and sale of
Natural Gas Transmission Mainland China N natural gas
Co., Ltd.#xs/s+ RE/ FER 20,000,0007C RZARHERAR
(“Changshu Suyu”)

EATHEAARBEARDA
20 e ([RRERE D)

Xinjiang Dunhua PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 51 Promotion of technologies for
Gas Engineering Technology ~ Mainland China ARHE nitrogen and carbon dioxide
Co., Ltd. RE R E R 30,000,0007C ARR =S/ RBITHE

(“Xinjiang Dunhua”) */**/****
MEBRERBIERMARAA
* /0 o ([RBHE])
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

1. Corporate and Group Information

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
as follows: (Continued)

*  The statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

**  The English names of these subsidiaries represent the
best efforts made by the management of the Company to
translate their Chinese names as they do not have official
English names registered in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC").

**%  During the year, Taicang Natural Gas and Changshu
Urban Construction Management & Investment Co., Ltd.
jointly set up Changshu Suyu. According to the articles
of association, Taicang Natural Gas owns 51% of the
voting right and has the right to control Changshu Suyu.
Thus, Changshu Suyu is considered a subsidiary and
consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

***#* During the year, the Group acquired 51% interests of
Xinjiang Dunhua, further details of the acquisition are
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

**#¥%As at 31 December 2017, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all of which are
private limited liability companies (or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar
characteristics to a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong).
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2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise all standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International
Accounting Standards (“lIASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee
that remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

2.1 WBLEZXE (4F)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2ol

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to Disclosure of Interests in
IFRS 12 included in
Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Other Entities: Clarification
of the Scope of IFRS 12

The nature and the impact of the amendments are
described below:

(@) Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Disclosure of the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities is provided in note 34 to the

financial statements.

2.1

2.2
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary
difference, needs to consider whether tax law
restricts the sources of taxable profits against
which it may make deductions on the reversal of
that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance on how an
entity should determine future taxable profits and
explain the circumstances in which taxable profit
may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount. The amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group as the Group has no
deductible temporary differences or assets that are

in the scope of the amendments.

Amendments to IFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
IFRS 12,
disclosure requirements in paragraphs B10 to

requirements in other than those
B16 of IFRS 12, apply to an entity’s interest in
a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate, or
a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an
associate that is classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group classified as held for
sale. The amendments have had no impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the Group does not
have any subsidiary being classified as a disposal
group held for sale as at 31 December 2017 and
so no additional information is required to be
disclosed.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23

Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment
Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint

Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'

Leases?’

Insurance Contracts’®
Employee Benefits?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International 2.3 B FEMR1E e AR A RR 0 B PR B S R
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) HER| (1K)
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to IFRS 1 and 2014F22016F  BIREIBHRELERE
2014-2016 Cycle IAS 28 R F 22 5 N BIBR @ aT AR
EVEL AN CHEN
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to IFRS 3, 2015F 220174  BIRMBREERE
2015-2017 Cycle IFRS 11, IAS 12 and BB 4 B 5 BRI SwE
IAS 232 RAFE15 - B

SRS 125G
R &t 523

SREOERI A2
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! R2018F1 1B 2 &R FE
January 2018 HAFE A 3
2 E;icatr.;/ezof;); annual periods beginning on or after 1 : 201941 A10 3 > 14 B 14 1y & [
’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ik
January 2021 3 R2021F1ATESZEABRNEE
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available HA RS A4 3

for adoption

©OORARETERHIAEMBE - BRHERA

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected TEHAAC R (B3 A 0 7% 55 B B B 7 e o 2R
to be applicable to the Group is described below. The BE— T BRI T Xl - BERRWENE
actual impacts upon adoption could be different to R BRI REE TN ERAREA - 7T
those below, depending on additional reasonable and 765 B B R % AR A iy A R ) BRSNS B2
supportable information being made available to the KFERER o

Group at the time of applying the standards.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of
a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account
for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled
share-based payments also applies to cash-settled
share-based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction
with net share settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax
obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with
the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for
as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. On adoption, entities are required to
apply the amendments without restating prior periods,
but retrospective application is permitted if they elect
to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria
are met. The Group will adopt the amendments from
1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments

project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions

of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements

for classification and measurement, impairment and

hedge accounting. The Group will adopt IFRS 9 from 1

January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative

information and will recognise any transition

adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1

January 2018. During 2017, the Group has performed

a detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption of

IFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to the classification

and measurement and the impairment requirements and

are summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption
of IFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets.

Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables,
loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be recorded
based on an expected credit loss model either on a
twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group
will apply the simplified approach and record
lifetime expected losses that are estimated based
on the present values of all cash shortfalls over
the remaining life of all of its trade receivables.
Furthermore, the Group will apply the general
approach and record twelve-month expected credit
losses that are estimated based on the possible
default events on its other receivables within the
next twelve months. The Group does not expect
the loss allowance to be significantly different
upon application of the expected credit loss
model.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to IFRS 9, issued in October 2017,
allow financial assets with prepayment features that
permit or require either the borrower or the lender to
pay or receive reasonable compensation for the early
termination of the contract to be measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, instead of at fair value through profit or loss.
The amendments clarify that a financial asset passes
the “solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding” criterion regardless
of the event or circumstance that causes the early
termination of the contract and irrespective of which
party pays or receives reasonable compensation for
that early termination. The Group expects to adopt
these amendments from 1 January 2019 and to apply
the exemption from restating comparative information
of prior periods. Any difference between the previous
carrying amount and the adjusted carrying amount will
be recognised in the opening balance of equity. The
amendments do not apply to the Group as the Group
does not have any debt instruments with prepayment
features along with compensation for early termination.
In addition, as clarified in the amendments to the basis
for conclusions on IFRS 9, the gain or loss arising on
modification of a financial liability that does not result
in derecognition (calculated by discounting the change
in contractual cash flows at the original effective rate)
is immediately recognised in profit or loss. As there is
no specific relief on this clarification, this requirement
shall be applied retrospectively. The Group’s current
accounting policy is consistent with this clarification
and therefore the adoption of the amendments is not
expected to have any impact on the Group.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in
December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption

now.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is
required on the initial application of the standard. In
April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15
to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost
and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in IFRS 15
to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group
plans to apply the new requirements only to contracts
that are not completed before 1 January 2018. The
Group expects that the transitional adjustment to be
made on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of IFRS
15 will not be material. However, the expected changes
in accounting policies, as further explained below,
will have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements from 2018 onwards. During 2017, the Group
has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
the adoption of IFRS 15.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The Group’s principal activities consist of the

distribution and sale of piped natural gas, operating

compressed natural gas (“CNG”) refuelling station

business, the provision of natural gas transmission,

and acting as the main contractor of construction and

installation of gas pipelines in Mainland China. The

expected impacts arising from the adoption of IFRS 15

on the Group are summarised as follows:

(a)

Revenue from the construction and
installation of gas pipelines

The Group provides construction and installation
of gas pipelines services. Currently, revenue from
the construction and installation of gas pipelines is
recognised after the construction and installation
are completed and the Group received the
acceptance report from the customers. Upon the
adoption of IFRS 15, the Group has assessed that
revenue from the construction and installation of
gas pipelines will be recognised over time given
that the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date. The Group
has determined that when IFRS 15 is adopted,
revenue from the construction and installation
of gas pipelines for 2017 will be increased by
RMB68,485,000 as the Group may not be able to
reasonably measure the outcome of a performance
obligation, but the Group expects to recover
the costs incurred in satisfying the performance
obligation. Accordingly the Group will recognise

revenue to the extent of costs incurred.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
(b) Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements in
IFRS 15 are more detailed than those under the
current IAS 18. The presentation requirements
represent a significant change from current
practice and will significantly increase the
volume of disclosures required in the Group’s
financial statements. Many of the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 15 are new and the Group
has assessed that the impact of some of these
disclosure requirements will be significant. In
particular, the Group expects that the notes to the
financial statements will be expanded because
of the disclosure of significant judgements made
on determining the transaction prices of those
contracts that include variable consideration, how
the transaction prices have been allocated to the
performance obligations, and the assumptions
made to estimate the stand-alone selling price
of each performance obligation. In addition, as
required by IFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate
revenue recognised from contracts with customers
into categories that depict how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by economic factors. It will
also disclose information about the relationship
between the disclosure of disaggregated revenue
and revenue information disclosed for each
reportable segment.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17
Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on
the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of
certain events, such as change in the lease term and
change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in IAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make
more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees
can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS
16 upon adoption and is considering whether it will
choose to take advantage of the practical expedients
available and which transition approach and reliefs will
be adopted.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 28 issued in October 2017 clarify
that the scope exclusion of IFRS 9 only includes
interests in an associate or joint venture to which
the equity method is applied and does not include
long-term interests that in substance form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture, to which
the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an
entity applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under IFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. IAS 28 is then applied
to the net investment, which includes the long-term
interests, only in the context of recognising losses of
an associate or joint venture and impairment of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments on 1 January 2019
and will assess its business model for such long-term
interests based on the facts and circumstances that exist
on 1 January 2019 using the transitional requirements

in the amendments.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
IFRIC 22, issued in December 2016, provides guidance
on how to determine the date of the transaction when
applying 1AS 21 to the situation where an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or
liability. The interpretation clarifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which
an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset
(such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such
as deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation
on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis,
either from the beginning of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation or the
beginning of the prior reporting period presented as
comparative information in the financial statements of
the reporting period in which the entity first applies
the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation prospectively from 1 January 2018. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2017

| Sop—

2.3 B MR E 15 AR A R Y B R B 7 R

HER| (1K)
720165512 A 58 17 79 B BR BF 75 R 5 72
EBZEeFNRTRABEE g ER
F215R R BEE B UAINES W EN S = 78
NRERERIIEEBHEESBENE
MTIAEER S B ERMHIES| - %2
BERE MEETRVIEREHEEE
XA (KEFE D) FTAMEX
B RZAPRERBVFHERE MK
WHBEBNREMEENIIEEEEEE
(anFERTFR) SIEEE MR E (EZYK
A) 2B - WEREBEENFESE
AR TBUGK - ERERTEAIHK
ERREBEERZHH - BEREAIZHEE
M RTBRELERAZERE  BER
ERBENERRE RSN ER
BRERAZARE 2R EHIEM B wE
N LLBRER 2 LR REHY] - AEE
FEHIB2018F1 A1 H i T B H &K
MZRE ZRERHETEYHAEE
2R REREMERTE -



o

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred)
when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does
it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an
entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January
2019. The interpretation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, issued
in December 2016, sets out amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28. Except for the amendments to
IFRS 12 which have been adopted by the Group for the
current year’s financial statements, the Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018. None
of the amendments are expected to have a significant
financial impact on the Group.

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, issued
in December 2017, sets out amendments to IFRS 3,
IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2019. None
of the amendments are expected to have a significant
financial impact on the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment

losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in profit or loss. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint

ventures.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on

bargain purchase.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or

groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed
of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than deferred tax assets, inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017FE12A31BILFEE

24 TESHHEBE (&)

N EFE (&)
RUBBRRAEIRBEAFENREE
ENAE  HREHSQFEFERE
SEEANREEHABEBKR N AYF
BEEMRETIR

F—H—- ENFAIBAIEEXBBEELR
MENRE CREHAR)

F_H - ENATERXEERBRH QY
Bt EMEREENRIEES
ABEMEERA

F=H— ENBELBRHELFEAEM
EREENREERAREN
mEE

REERIERRERNEERBEM
B AKRBRERERKRE  REEE
BRATEFEMS SEENKREEHA
BEEHNEIR BERESFETR
ERmEE -

FERMEERE

MHRRETR - AFEEHEEETF
EREANHA EEHEEE  F& &2
REFEE eMEENRERBDEE
DEBFELENHEAARKRN) - A
FHEBEMN AW EI SRR - BEN AIKE
RN EEXRCELENNERER
HEANFENGBLERAMETRS
o UHEREEETE  BRIFZEEL
BELAM EBYNEMEEREEM
AMBRERE  EHBERT  BIREE
PR IR & B A BB (U F P WK B 2088 -

2017 R | HAMKRBROERAF

157



158

Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognised such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

% BERREBRIFE (&)

FEDUERARSENE  BERR
V78 B ot A 8 A A MG R A
SRBEESE - RURADHEBER
T -

as follows:
Buildings BF 2.40% to 9.50% 2.40%%9.50%
Gas pipelines MRE B 4.75% to 9.50% 4.75%%9.50%
Plant and machinery = e 6.33% to 31.67% 6.33%%31.67%
Furniture, fixtures and office FRfh - EER

equipment WMA=RE 10.56% to 31.67%  10.56%%31.67%
Motor vehicles 8 9.50% to 23.75% 9.50%%23.75%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents gas station
structures, machinery, gas pipelines and other property,
plant and equipment under construction which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Operating rights

Operating rights for city pipeline network are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of

twenty-eight years.

Software copyrights

Purchased software copyrights are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of

ten years.

Intellectual property rights

Intellectual property rights for petrochemical industry
are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of eighteen years.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,

but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

164

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments. When all financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other

expenses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other
gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out

for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017FE12A31BILFEE

24 TESHHEBE (&)

RERHMMEREE (&)

AR E 2 @RE

A ESRIRERE LRI EMRA
BREREHESFTOHRITEESREE °
BRIERHERE - XOREE R AT ER
ABZOBRAREFBR/AIHREE - &

BEFEHRANTARESESFKHI™
AREMEENEEEFBEREXE
Al e

iatERE - AIHHESRREERZMN
NPERE  RERBWARERRAH

hEREERFHEEERSEME2EK
o BERIERKRE (RFHESE
BREBDTER) AREREEERE
(Rt S ERE AL EREER
REEEFDBEBED O EMYE M E
B) Bl - BAARLESRKEMR
R F B N BB 0 Bl 2 3 A A B e e

BB e - REBE T TWRARER] ATE
BRI B e PR S E MR o
B EMBRARE N R FEBR @R

EREMAHEENEHZIRENS B
BEAH(b) Lt EBE NS BT RO R 2
G EFFEIE ARGt AP EmEER]
S ER - ZEREURKBEMBIE
1RSI 8

2017 R | HAMKRBROERAF

165



166

Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that
asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded

in equity is reclassified in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to

profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an

investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit
or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in

profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,

as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank

borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or

expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Construction contracts

The balances of construction contracts represent the
net amount of construction costs incurred to date and
recognised profits (less recognised losses), less progress

billings and provision for foreseeable contract losses.

Construction contract costs are valued at actual cost,
and comprise direct materials, direct labour costs,
construction machinery costs, other direct costs and
construction overheads. For an individual contract
whose costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the
gross amount due from customers for contract work
in inventories is presented as amounts due from
construction contract customers. For an individual
contract whose progress billings exceed costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits (less recognised losses),
the gross amount due to customers for contract work in
advance from customers is presented as advances from

customers.

The Group estimates total contract costs based on
actual circumstances for each contract. Provision for
foreseeable contract losses will be recognised in profit
or loss where total estimated contract costs exceed total

contract revenue.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when

acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

24 TESHHEBE (&)

Fri&% (%)

EXERBEENE@E SESHREH
KT AT - T BAEREHERY
ot M P A Bh A 22 B sk B0 0 AE IR 7R 1R
BE  AMBELHBAEEREE - K
ERHELCHBEEE NS REHRE
Fatfh - SRR BEES R ERTE A
AN Bl 2 Bf sk BRI EE AR IR B E R T IA
FERR ©

HREELFERBENHEAERER
ME eRFEEEEHREENA
B YAREMRAERAXEL LD
BT R (RBUX) REZE

EEARKEAR R SIEN TR AR

MREBEERHABEERY  HRL
PIRE EEREN AR B E R — B H
B R — R E RN & AR RHIE A
HAERBECHARBENEERTEGH
HBER - BIRFREALEEE R NG
BEMNEEXRBEREENGEAR
ZNREBGE BB Z IS TAER - Bl
EEFRAEERRECHBAER] T
B °

2017 FF3 | HARRROARDF

177



178

Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income to match the grant on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) from construction contracts, on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts”
above;

(c) from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments

(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with eligible
participants is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using the
Black-Scholes model, further details of which are given
in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense and other expenses, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 20% to 22% of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits

As stipulated by PRC regulations, subsidiaries in
Mainland China participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme. All formal employees are entitled
to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the
average basic salary amount of their last employment
at their retirement date. Subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to make contributions to the local social
security bureau at rates of 20% to 22% of the average
basic salaries of the employees under the employment
of subsidiaries in Mainland China to whom the defined
contribution retirement plan is applicable. Subsidiaries
in Mainland China have no obligations for the payment
of pension benefits beyond the annual contributions to

the local social security bureau as set out above.

Accommodation benefits

According to the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
each of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
is required to make contributions, which are in
proportion to the salaries and wages of the employees,
to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre. There are
no further obligations on the part of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China, except for the contributions to the

accommodation fund.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Group’s and the Company’s
functional currency because the Group’s principal
operations are carried out in Mainland China. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.5 Restatement of Prior Years’ Financial

Statements as a Result of Finalised Purchase
Price Allocation of The Acquisition of
Kunshan Anda Natural Gas Development
Co., Ltd. (“Anda Natural Gas”)

In October 2016, Suchuang Gas (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(“Suchuang Shanghai”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, acquired 80% of the equity interests
in Anda Natural Gas at a total consideration of
RMB104,400,000. The assessment of the fair values of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of Anda Natural
Gas was still undergoing and the information of the
fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities was
provisional as at 31 December 2016.

During the year, the Company finalised the assessment
of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Anda Natural Gas and the Company retrospectively
adjusted the provisional amounts recognised at the
acquisition date to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date.

The comparative information as at 31 December
2016 has been restated in the consolidated financial

statements as follows:

BRAAE ([REXRARR ) WEE
RoBMEN ZBEFEMBER
REM

R20165F108 + AR AZ2EWEB QA
welmm (&) BRAA ( [#&l Lk
) KWERERAR0%RIRE - 4
REAAREE104,400,0007T ° BEXRA
RO FAEERBENRAFEFTBIET
#1T - MR2016512 831 B A #51E
ERBENATEEHNREE -

REA > ARARREELERARD
AHEMNEERBENAFENE S AH
RIEE B RERNE TS BETEYH
B DRREBEZENEEHIRGNEES
BERIBEANFER

R2016F12A31HMERERE NGRS
iR EYIINT

As previously

Effect of

prior year

reported  adjustments  As restated
BEFE

ST R 2 W RETE rgEa

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT AR®TX

Total non-current assets FEMBEELTE 973,861 7,593 981,454

Total current assets BN & E AR 678,186 = 678,186

Total current liabilities mEB AR 334,762 - 334,762

Total non-current liabilities IEmBI B ERTE 173,537 4,745 178,282
Equity attributable to owners of RARIEE AE(GIEZS

the parent 1,105,011 = 1,105,011

Non-controlling interests FEFERS RS 38,737 2,848 41,585

Total equity M R 1,143,748 2,848 1,146,596
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of
dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue
withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends by certain subsidiaries according to the
relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is
subject to judgement on the plan of the distribution of
dividends.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial period, are described

below.

(i)

(ii)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations, or competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. The useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
note 2 to the financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables

The provision policy for impairment of trade
receivables is based on ongoing evaluation of
the collectability and ageing analysis of the
outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
those receivables, including the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of the customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances might be required. The
carrying amount of trade receivables as at
31 December 2017 was RMB70,538,000 (31
December 2016: RMB53,512,000). Further
details are contained in note 22 to the financial
statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management
considers that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary tax differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017 was RMB33,470,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB31,026,000), details of which are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements.

Estimation of the amortisation period of connection
fees recorded as deferred income

The Group receives fees from customers in advance
in exchange for the connection of gas pipelines to
the urban natural gas pipeline network. These fees
are received in advance and gradually amortised.
The Group determines the estimated amortisation
period of ten years for its revenue recognition.
This estimate is based on the Group’s historical
experience of the actual service period and the
strength of the Group’s business relationship
with each individual customer. It could differ
significantly based on the customer’s profile,
expected term of the relationship and the strength
of the customer’s business relationship established
with the Group. Generally, amortisation is
calculated on the straight-line basis for ten years.
The carrying amount of deferred income carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017 was RMB106,718,000
(31 December 2016: RMB94,056,000), details
of which are set out in note 28 to the financial

statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(v) Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2017 was RMB97,412,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB91,787,000). Further details are given in note
15.

Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is natural gas
operation. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment
analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

Geographical information is not presented since all
of the Group’s revenue from external customers is
generated in Mainland China and all of the non-current
assets of the Group are located in Mainland China. The
non-current asset information is based on the location
of the assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No information about major customers is presented as
no revenue from a single customer accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The directors have only little information about whether
a group of entities are under common control; and
therefore such assessment is made to the directors’ best
knowledge. Especially, such assessment is not made for
those entities which might solely be under the ultimate
common control of the government after taking into
account the economic integration among such entities
in the economic environment with a large number of
state-owned entities in Mainland China.
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. WA~ Ht A K K&

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods

and various types of government surcharges, where
applicable; and an appropriate proportion of contract

revenue of construction contracts and service contracts,

net of value-added tax, business tax and government

surcharges.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and

gains is as follows:

P
sold after allowances for returns, trade discounts =

WARKEERMmMBERFE (NKRE
B 53 R & BT 0 & 5 &
(ER) ) RiERaR &R S RER
M aRKsE CRRIBER - 2XHR
KU nE) o

AEENEA - EBARKEDTH
bl

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Revenue N
Sale of natural gas HERAR 844,463 615,439
Construction and connection of ERMEAMRAEE
gas pipelines 114,151 119,503
Transmission of natural gas BIX RAE 9,122 7,267
Others Hih 5,589 4,190
973,325 746,399
Less: Government surcharges B B & (6,058) (5,504)
967,267 740,895
Other income and gains HAn g A R iz
Bank interest income IRITHBHA 10,951 7,995
Interest income from available-for-sale At H&EKE 2 F B WA
investments 1,963 4,958
Foreign exchange gain R - 3,229
Government grants BT 8 B 2,784 6,197
Gain on disposal of items of property,  HEWE - HE&
plant and equipment R TR B W 691 -
Others Hib 282 40
16,671 22,419
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Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

6. RLERA

BMEXADITHINGAT -

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARETT
Interest on interest-bearing bank loans B FFRNBEEEEN
wholly repayable within five years FFRIBITERNFE 6,156 4,344
Others HAh 134 180
6,290 4,524
Profit Before Tax 7. BRBIADZF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEEOBRB A IDEMKR (G
(crediting): A)
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 695,997 490,544
Employee benefit expense EEBAMFAX
(excluding directors’ remuneration as (T EIEH T 8Py
set out in note 8): ES=M<e)
Wages and salaries IEREE 23,375 21,719
Equity-settled share option expenses AR s i B ) BB AR 2 8,312 2,941
Pension scheme contributions RN FTEIHE R 2,463 1,963
Social security contributions and tEaRERHERRERRF
accommodation benefits 2,606 1,908
Auditor’s remuneration A G 1,800 2,350
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEDE BEK
property, plant and equipment REEA (k) EE (691) 1
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) (note 5) BE R e (W) (MEEs) 13,293 (3,229)
Depreciation (note 13) e (BisE13) 33,158 29,731
Amortisation of prepaid land lease B L HE KR
payments (note 14) #sH (PHEE14) 2,978 2,245
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E (M16)
(note 16) 3,589 749
Impairment of trade receivables (note 22) FEUE ZERFURE (H5E22) 682 1,323
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017FE12A31BILFEE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

| Sop—

8. EBRFETHAENME

BRI EMARR - BB R AEAHIE383(1)
(@) * (b) * (ORMOEURAR (BEES
M= B R ROIE256 - ?&éﬂéﬁﬁw@%
ERFETHRABHNMESHOT ¢

as follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Fees e 485 450
Other emoluments: Etpz -
Salaries, allowances and e ZMNEYAZR
benefits in kind 5,464 5,204
Equity-settled share option expenses IARE R AR B E) BB A A S 1,923 2,425
7,387 7,629
7,872 8,079

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017,
certain directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in profit or
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join the Group, or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss at office
during the year.
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

EERTETHRAENME (&)

(a) BAFHITES
REAXN T RBEILIERTESH
wWEIT

2017 20175
Equity-settled
share option
Fees expenses Total
LIS EEN
e BRERX wEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TRT AR%¥TR
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BEELE 152 63 215
Mr. He Junjie & A4 120 63 183
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PERR A 152 63 215
Mr. Zhu Tong N ik 61 - 61
485 189 674
2016 20164
Equity-settled
share option
Fees expenses Total
AR AE R Y
wE  BRERX #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARBTT ARBTRT
Mr. Zhou Qingzu AEMRLE 150 54 204
Mr. He Junjie A& B & 150 54 204
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PEfRR A 150 54 204
450 162 612

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2016: Nil).

RER - BEERNBUIFATES
WEMME (20165 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERFETHAENME (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) MITEERFHITESE
directors
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits Discretionary ~share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
e 24 WERLEEN i

fie  REOAE  BRRL  BRERx  HEHX fif
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

ARETn  ARETR  ARMTT  ARETT  AR®TL  ARET:

2017 W17E
Executive directors: YS!
- Mr. Su Aping o (CRS7: - 1,740 - 399 - 2,139
~ Ms. Zhu Yaying - RERRT - 1,180 - 402 - 1,562
~ Mr. Du Shaozhou - AL - 1,179 - 415 - 1,594
~ Ms. Su Vi -HZat - 1,061 - 402 - 1,463
- 5,160 - 1,618 - 6,778
Non-executive directors: FH7ES:
- Mr. Xu Lei - FERE - 152 - 63 - 215
~ Mr. Zhuang Jianhao - gt s - 152 - 53 - 205
- 5,464 - 1,734 - 7,198
2016 2016E
Executive directors: HTEE:
- Mr. Su Aping o {CR 72 - 1,742 - 592 . 2,334
~ Ms. Zhu Yaying - REERL - 1,182 - 539 = 1,721
— Mr. Du Shaozhou - HARELE - 1,180 = 539 = 1,719
- Ms. SuYi -BEgL - 890 - 539 = 1429
= 4,994 = 2,209 = 7,203
Non-executive directors: FY1TES !
- Mr. Xu Lei ~HELE - 150 = 54 = 204
~ Mr. Zhuang Jianhao -EEs - 60 - - - 60
- 5,204 - 2,263 - 7,467
There was no arrangement under which a director RER - WEITS TR ZHE - AR
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration EEMEXREREEMAHE -

during the year.
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9.

Five Highest Paid Employees
The five highest paid employees during the year
included four directors (2016: four directors), details of

whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

9. ZhERESFMES
FRN AEE=TMES (BENEE
= (2016%F : UREE)) B
REXHEES - £ - 2T —%& (2016

THFFIBHE

of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one F:—F) WHEARANESFHFETH
(2016: one) highest paid employee who is neither a AEBHZEHINEEMSHFFBELT ¢

director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Salaries, allowances and e R EEMNE
benefits in kind 2,763 3,481
Equity-settled share option expenses LARE 5 A5 B RO BB AR A 2 630 856
3,393 4,337

The number of non-director highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is BB ABIT

as follows:

FEEERSFTHEENMEN FIATHA

2017
20175

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001
HK$1,500,001
HK$2,000,001
HK$2,500,001
HK$3,000,001
HK$3,500,001
HK$4,000,001
HK$4,500,001
HK$5,000,001

to HK$1,500,000
to HK$2,000,000
to HK$2,500,000
to HK$3,000,000
to HK$3,500,000
to HK$4,000,000
to HK$4,500,000
to HK$5,000,000
to HK$5,500,000

Z 21,000,000/ 7T -
1,000,001 7TZE1,500,000/ 7T -
1,500,001 7CZ2,000,000/4 7T -
2,000,001 LE2,500,00078 7T -
2,500,001 L% 3,000,000 7T -
3,000,001 723,500,000/ 7T -
3,500,001/ 754,000,000/ 7T 1
4,000,001 7L%E 4,500,000/ 7T -
4,500,001 7L £ 5,000,000/ 7T -
5,000,001 7T E 5,500,000/ 7T -
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

10.

Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2017, share options were granted to non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect
of their services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 31. The fair
value of such options, which has been recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join the Group, or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office during the year.

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax

in that jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or
earned in Hong Kong during the year.

The provision for Mainland China current income tax
is based on the statutory rate of 25% (2016: 25%)
of the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of
the Group as determined in accordance with the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was approved
and became effective on 1 January 2008 (the “New
Corporate Income Tax Law”), except for Licheng Gas, a
subsidiary operated in Sichuan Province, which is taxed
at a preferential rate of 15% because of the Western

Development Policy in Mainland China.
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10. Income Tax (Continued)
The major components of income tax expense are as

follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

10. FT8% (&)
FEREYHEZHHEIIIT

2017 2016
2017 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Current tax: BVERR IR -
Income tax in the PRC for the year FANFRBFTFH 51,251 47,981
Adjustments in respect of current tax of EZiE 7T BIfE A B &Y
previous periods BNEATR TR & 207 260
Deferred tax (note 18) RIERIR (KMiEE18) (3,400) (3,335)
Total tax charge for the year FAFRIBRET 48,058 44,906

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

BRAREARB REXEBDHE QBT
P RARE IR A TE AR R At E A BR B Al
i F H) T IR e S LR B PR B R AT H AV

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax AR HEERNT -
rate is as follows:
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBFT
Profit before tax A5 B4 A 148,198 168,723
Tax at the statutory tax rate BETEMEFTE 2 IR 37,050 42,181
Lower tax rate for a specific entity FEBEBZBEREK (650) (667)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT R 2 58 232
Tax losses not recognised RIERIIEE 8 11,842 3,257
Adjustments in respect of current tax of E2iE{E HifE A A9
previous periods B ERRS 18 58 % 207 260
Profits attributable to associates kNI ik (449) (357)
Total tax charge recognised £ HERR IR B X R 48,058 44,906

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
RMB639,000 (2016: RMB606,000) is included in “Share
of profits of associates” in profit or loss.

AR R TR IE A A R ¥639,000
gL (20164 : A R#606,0007T) @ B1%
RiEEPE [ DB E R a8 ]
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Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

11. Dividends
On 28 March 2018, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to propose a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 of RMB0.020
per ordinary share (2016: RMB0.028), subject to the

approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual

| Sop—

11. RE

M2018F3A28H A AR EEZ S
REHIRZEEHE2017F12A318 IEF
ERHAKRE SR EBRARK0.0207T
(20165 : AR¥0.0287T) @ MHEAFK
RRARFEERREFAS LHER

general meeting of the Company. AEER ©
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT

BEEAERE —
Proposed final — RMB0.020 BREERARK0.0207T

(2016: RMB0.028) per ordinary share (2016%F : AEK®0.0287T) 18,058 25,282

12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of The Parent
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 895,362,356
(2016: 844,730,773) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary 12. B AREEREFTEARLER
Equity Holders of The Parent (Continued) 27 (&)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per BRERNEFSER JHiZ A TN EEST
share are based on: :

i

2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARFTT
Earnings B2
Profit attributable to ordinary equity et ESRERRFH
holders of the parent, used in the basic S REE@AEZE A
earnings per share calculation JEAG i A 93,902 120,681

Number of shares

RH & E
2017 2016
20175 20165
Shares 13
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FR{Est EGARERZF|HY
shares in issue during the year used in ~ FABEETEEE
the basic earnings per share calculation N 35 £k 895,362,356 844,730,773
Effect of dilution — weighted average Haw g — Tk
number of ordinary shares: g
Share options RE At 57,123,934 20,000,000

952,486,290 864,730,773
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. 9% - BERRE

200

Furniture,
fixtures
Gas Plantand  and office Motor  Construction
Buildings pipelines  machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
B RER
BT MREE RBRERESZ BLERE nE ERIR ac
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBTT AREBTR ARETRT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Cost: R
At 1 January 2016 #201651A1R 179,694 408,358 40,318 3,126 7,692 76,421 715,609
Additions NE 2,068 - 99 299 709 36,022 39,197
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yt B A 7] 3,774 4433 2,684 33 295 63 11,482
Transfers i 2,000 31,713 141 41 - (33,895) -
Disposals mE - ®) - t)] - - (16)
At31 December 2016 and ~ #2016F12 4318 K
1 January 2017 201751A1H 187,536 444,496 43,442 3,491 8,096 78,611 766,272
Additions NE 2,363 - 611 812 127 20,115 24,028
Acquisition of KRB
subsidiaries (note 33) (Fi7E33) - - - 73 - 405 478
Transfers K 32,486 2,461 3,150 212 - (38,30) -
Disposals il - (13,244) - - (108) - (13,352)
At 31 December 2017 120174124318 222,385 433,713 47,203 4,588 8,715 60,822 777,426
Accumulated depreciation:  RFHTE :
At 1 January 2016 ®201651A1R 21,498 98,805 15,305 954 2,669 - 139,231
Charge for the year ERAR 5,620 19,019 3,684 605 803 - 29,731
Disposals e = (7) = (7) = = (14)
At 31 December 2016and ~ 12016%128318 %
1 January 2017 201751818 27,118 117,817 18989 1,552 3472 - 168948
Acquisition of KRB
subsidiaries (note 33) (M7E33) - - - 5 - - 55
Charge for the year ERFX 5,835 21,833 3,850 744 896 - 33,158
Disposals e - (3,003) - - (97) - (3,100)
At 31 December 2017 120178124318 32,953 136,647 22,839 2,351 427 - 199,061
Net carrying amount: BRHFE
At 31 December 2016 120168124318 160,418 326,679 24,453 1,939 5224 78,011 597,324
At 31 December 2017 120174124318 189,432 297,066 24,364 2,237 4,444 60,822 578,365
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 13. 9% - BERRE (&)

14.

At 31

buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB120,893,000 (2016: RMB124,035,000) were
pledged to secure interest-bearing bank loans granted

to the Group (note 29).

December 2017, certain of the Group’s

REER (HEE29) -

R2017F12A318 » AEBER®EFE
# B AR %120,893,0007T (2016%F :
AR #124,035,0007T) W& TEF&E
B UARTAEERNGSRITER

Prepaid Land Lease Payments 14. B L HERKE
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Cost: B
At beginning of year F4) 101,452 52,056
Additions INE - 11,147
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) YeBBHT A B (M93E33) 4,183 38,249
At end of year FR 105,635 101,452
Accumulated amortisation: R
At beginning of year F9) 8,058 5,813
Amortisation during the year FREEH 2,978 2,245
At end of year FR 11,036 8,058
Net carrying amount at end of year FARMREFE 94,599 93,394
Current portion, included in BNEAERS - BIEFRNFIE
prepayments, deposits and ’E READ EY IR
other receivables (2,972) (2,781)
Non-current portion JERNERER 17 91,627 90,613

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s prepaid
land lease payments with an aggregate net carrying
amount of RMB4,223,000 (2016: RMB4,323,000) were
pledged to banks to secure the borrowings granted to

the Group (note 29).

1= 2

E/A

(BfzE29) -

R2017F12A318 » AEBEKR®EF
A AR®4,2230005T (201645 : A
K %4,323,0007T) #0&E FEMN L H
BHAERTASEBRARITER
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 mmm m

15. Goodwill 15. B8
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Cost: A

At 1 January W1A1H 91,787 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) Y BB BT B A &) (f93E33) 5,625 91,787
At 31 December ®12H31H 97,412 91,787

Accumulated impairment: Z5HEE
At 1 January and at 31 December W1HA1BX12A831H - -

Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December M®12A31H 97,412 91,787

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from the business combinations.
Management considers each subsidiary acquired

B R E R

represents a separate CGU for the purpose of goodwill BUMREEELBN -

impairment testing.
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15. Goodwill (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of
the CGUs is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

15. & (&)

BmEREANR (&)
STEERBRCELBUANBENREE
s

2017 2016
20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBFT

Licheng Gas BRRMRA 51,723 51,723
Anda Natural Gas TERAR 40,064 40,064
Xinjiang Dunhua B E 5,625 -
97,412 91,787

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined
from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculations are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to selling prices and direct costs during the year.
Management estimates discount rates ranging from
13.4% to 18.9% using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated

using the estimated growth rate of 3%.

ReELEMMAKE B NIRFERE
BRFEAEETE - sTEERAEENEE
BEEFANEEER  REREHE
BREEZEXANESHERH  EEREUR
BTTISIRRE YL BB ENIR S EL BN
R RS 2 STl BB AT bE R A ETARIR &
BN TF13.4%E18.9% EBREEK
ANV EE) T LB B B & T35 R SR &
BNBHARE - AFEZEMNIRERE
1 R AT IS RE3%HEET
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16. Intangible Assets 16. BEEE

Intellectual
Operating Software property

rights  copyrights rights Total
KERE  BHRE  ARERE At

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETE ARBTT ARETET

Costs: B
At 1 January 2016 201651 H1H - 1,024 = 1,024
Additions NE - 304 - 304
Acquisition of W B BT /R 2 &)
subsidiaries 89,741 1 — 89,742

At 31 December 2016  #2016%12A31H

and 1 January 2017 X2017%181H 89,741 1,329 - 91,070
Additions NE - 2,628 = 2,628
Acquisition of W BB BT /& A 7

subsidiaries (note 33) (M¥zE33) = = 7,034 7,034
At 31 December 2017 120178128318 89,741 3,957 7,034 100,732

Accumulated ZETEe
amortisation:
At 1 January 2016 20161 818 = 61 = 61
Provided during the FREE
year 626 123 - 749

At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H

and 1 January 2017 %2017%1H18 626 184 - 810
Provided during the FARBE

year 3,345 244 - 3,589

At 31 December 2017 7R2017%F12A31H 3,971 428 - 4,399
Net book value: BRIENFRE :

At 31 December 2016 20165 12A31H 89,115 1,145 - 90,260

At 31 December 2017 7R2017F12H31H 85,770 3,529 7,034 96,333
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17. Investments in Associates

Notes to Financial Statements
g e R

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

17. REBFE QR RANRE

2017 2016

20174 20165

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Share of net assets DIGEEFE 70,339 77,328

(a)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

(a) BEZRRIAFBAOT :

Percentage of

MiEADY,
Nominal value of  Place of
paid-up/registered  registration and Voting Ownership
Name of company capital  operations power interest  Principal activity
B&IR/
NCIE EMBANAE EMREERE BER  MAEEs IREH
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun RMB117,650,000  PRC/Mainland 49% 49%  Sale of gas products,
Suchuang Gas Co., Ltd.* ARE China and pipeline
(“Kunlun Suchuang Gas") 117,650,000 FE /HERH construction and
M AR mEEIRR maintenance
BRAF ([EmEEMR]) HEMRER
BREMEER
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun RMB28,000,000  PRC/Mainland 40% 40%  Manufacture and
Suchuang Natural Gas Usage ARE China sale of compressed
Co., Ltd.* 28,000,000 #E/RERKM natural gas
(“Kunlun Suchuang Usage”) Qﬁ&iﬁ%@ﬁ
W BB AR AR A
AR ([Em&EIFAL)
Shanghai Zhongji Suchuang RMB1,000,000  PRC/Mainland 49% 49%  Technology
New Energy Technology ARE China development and
Co., Ltd.*/** 1,000,000 &/ HERH technology services

(“Zhongji Suchuang”)
LB HERAIH RN
BRAF /= ([ EEl])

of new energy
technology area

MR R
RATFA% R iR
%
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017FE12A31BILFEE

17. Investments in Associates (Continued) 17. REEE QN RIMNKRE (8)
(@) Particulars of the associates are as follows: (@) BZRRIMEBOT : (8)

(Continued)
* The statutory financial statements were not audited

*

EEMBREARCEBLKE
by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member =B 5 75 BT 5 22 ok B B 48 45 44t

firm of the Ernst & Youn lobal network. The e N _ _
o . o8 MERTEE - ZERAEBED
nglish translations of these company names are

for reference only. The official names of these RXBAEHRSE  RFDAN
companies are in Chinese. BHABARI -

**  During the year, the Group acquired 49% interests oOFER AREFRREBEPEEFRED
of Zhongji Suchuang. According to the articles of 49% S - ARIEMELEZIZ A

iati h 49% of th ing righ . o
assoc1at|0h, t 'e Gro.up owns 49% of t e”votlng right 7 £ (8] 5 5 49% ) 18 B 48 % ¥ rh
and has significant influence on Zhongji Suchuang.

Thus, Zhongji Suchuang is considered an associate. KERABEATE - Fit - P
HAIWR A —MEBE AR -

(b) The associates had no contingent liabilities as at (b) P20174F K20165F12H31H -
31 December 2017 and 2016. ERRWESARIE o

(c) The Group’s outstanding balances and transactions (c) AEBERFAEBERFNRER
with the associates during the year are disclosed in AR RRZ S DRI 24 RFizE37
note 24 and note 37 respectively. WEE -
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17. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(d)

The Group’s investments in associates are

considered to be individually material to the

Group. The following table illustrates the

summarised financial information of the Group'’s

associates:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

17. REFE QT WRE (K)
w)$%5ﬂ%§“7m&§Wﬁ%£
AEEERTHEBEK o TRAM
AEEBLRRNPBERBE :

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#EIMR
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFTT
Non-current assets EREEE 52,932 45,768
Current assets mENEE 77,991 80,590
Current liabilities mEBE (8,870) (6,518)
Net assets BEFE 122,053 119,840
Ownership interest (%) P8 R HE 22(%) 49 49
59,806 58,722
Impact of adjustments 2 (1,773) (1,888)
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 58,033 56,834

Kunlun Suchuang Gas distributed dividends to
its shareholders amounting to RMB1,192,000
in the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB4,274,000). The Group’s share of the dividend
distribution amounted to RMB584,000 (2016:

RMB2,094,000).

REZE2017F12A31HIEFE B
mERAIA & A E A R AE R Bk
AH ARET,192,0007T (20164 :

AR ¥4 274,0007T) °

AEE DA

f% B ok & KA ARE584,0007T
(20164 : AE#¥2,094,0007T) °
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BRI

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017FE12A31BILFEE

17. Investments in Associates (Continued) 17. REEE A TINIRE (8)
(d) (Continued) (d (&)

Kunlun Suchuang Gas (Continued)

Em&EAIRR (&)

2017 2016

20174 20165

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARET T

Revenue PN 89,114 88,436

Profit for the year F T 3,639 2,891
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEEKE

for the year - _
Total comprehensive income FREE2EKHEHE

for the year 3,639 2,891

Ownership interest (%) P R HE 2 (%) 49 49

Share of results DI EE 1,783 1,417

Kunlun Suchuang Usage B & AR A

2017 2016

20174 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBT T

Non-current assets EREEE 11,885 13,667

Current assets MENE E 21,406 38,743

Current liabilities mEEE (3,751) (1,175)

Net assets BEFE 29,540 51,235

Ownership interest (%) P HERE 25 (%) 40 40

Share of net assets DMLEEEFE 11,816 20,494
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17. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

Kunlun Suchuang Usage (Continued)
Kunlun Suchuang Usage distributed dividends
to its shareholders amounting to RMB14,000
in the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB4,970,000). The Group’s share of the dividend
distribution amounted to RMB6,000 (2016:
RMB1,988,000). Kunlun Suchuang Usage reduced
capital amounting to RMB22,000,000 in the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). The
Group'’s share of the capital reduction amounted to
RMB8,800,000 (2016: Nil).

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

17. REFE QR NRE (&)

(d)

(&)

EmEAlFIA (&)
REZE2017F12A8318ILEFE - B
mER Al A B R E R REHRE DR
AR #14,0007T (20165 : AR
4,970,0007T) - AEBHHRE D
& A A R #6,0007T (2016%F @ A
R ¥1,988,0007T) ° B & &l 7 A
REZE2017F12 8318 IEFEHIR
&R A ANRE22,000,0007T (2016
F|) AEEDHEREIBAA
R#8,800,0007T (20164 : &) ©

2017 2016

20175 201645

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTFT

Revenue WA 48,291 51,088

Profit for the year FE A 319 315
Other comprehensive income FEEM P E

for the year - -
Total comprehensive income FEEEK=EERE

for the year 319 315

Ownership interest (%) P HEHE 2R (%) 40 40

Share of results DEERE 128 126
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MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

17. Investments in Associates (Continued)

 mmm m

17. REFE QR NRE (&)

(d) (Continued) d) (&)

Zhongji Suchuang &R 2l
2017
20174
RMB’000
ARET T
Non-current assets FERBEE 26
Current assets mENEEE 977
Current liabilities ViEII=RE 3)
Net assets BESE 1,000
Ownership interest (%) PR HERE 2(%) 49
Share of net assets DEEEFE 490
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MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

18. Deferred Tax 18. EEEBI IR
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities RERN BEFHEHEERAGEZ S
during the year are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets EEBITEE
Allowance Accruals
Deferred for doubtful and
income receivables provisions Total
EWkE EEAK
EEWA RIRERE BB @t

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTE AREBTT ARETR

Gross deferred tax assets 72016F181H
at 1 January 2016 B I I 7 I8
BERTE 24,337 727 2,873 27,937

Deferred tax credited/  FRtA
(charged) to profit or (BrE) Bz
loss during the year H IR FE R I8
(note 10) (Mt3E10) 3,237 131 (279) 3,089

Gross deferred tax assets 7220164
at 31 December 2016 12A318 &
and 1 January 2017 20171 H1H
H IR AER TR
BERE 27,574 858 2,594 31,026

Deferred tax credited/  FREA
(charged) to profit or (¥ BE) B

loss during the year B3R RE R IE

(note 10) (H¥&E10) 2,945 170 (671) 2,444
At 31 December 2017 K2017%12A31H 30,519 1,028 1,923 33,470
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect WHESR AN SIAERNREEFIAEE

of the following:

2017 2016

20175 20165

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Tax losses not recognised RIER A IEE 18 47,368 13,028
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MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

18. Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)

| Sop—

18. IEEHIE (4F)
ELERBEE (&)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect ARZEERREEGEHEENHEA
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that Al - BRI A] AR SRAN Al REEE A FERR

s x R TE R HE Lt 3t 4w o S S e
have been loss-making and they are not considered PUaFEHEPURER - WU RRZFE

probable that taxable profits will be available in the

BRERELEHIREE °

foreseeable future against which the tax losses can be

utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities

ELEHESE

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of

subsidiaries
BB A =
FREXZ
AR EAE
RMB’000
ARY¥ET T
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 1 January 2016 20164151 BREEF B & E4858 -
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during FRFT AR ELERE
the year (note 10) (Fg7E10) (246)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE BT /B8 A 7 25,790
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R2016F 128318/
31 December 2016 B IA A EAR 25,544
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during FAFFABRARERE (MizE10)
the year (note 10) (956)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) YeEBHT B A B (M43E33) 1,759
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R20175F12A318/
31 December 2017 EERIA R EARRE 26,347
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18. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

As at 31 December 2017, no deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised for withholding taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of a subsidiary of the Group
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that this subsidiary will
distribute earnings arising from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2017 in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with the
investment in the subsidiary in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB54.5 million as at 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB41.9 million).

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

18. IR H ()

EERIEEE (8)

BRIEFRBEPEMSHE - RPBE ALK
YRR ECEREIMEEEMTIR
RIR% B ZEBNT10%TEBI0F - BRI ER
200841 A1 8 48 - I i#E F 72007
F12A318 2 ENEF - W B EE
IMEEE W RERER T LB IEL - Al

AREZAREMNTEHF R - iAEE M
SO EAMERAI0% - FIt KEH

AL SN E R S BB A 'R
200851 A1HEEENEFFTE IR
I% BB 4N TEFOFS ©

R2017F128318 » WERAEBR
H B0 P b K 37 9 BT B A ) FE A Y K BE
BAMEANENRERELERIES
B EBEERA  ZWBAAINRER
KA BE 7 k20084F1 A1H E20174F
12A31TBEE/AF - R2017F12A4
318 -+ B & R B A B 8 A 7 AR
MEREEREHEEHRAOAREKS45
BET (2016F : ARB419BE T)
MARBERRELERIBEEE
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

19. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 19. AR ~ HE R HMRKKIE
Receivables
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Prepayments TR 26,774 20,130
Deposits and other receivables & M E b fE U FR T8 30,734 23,540
Prepayments for the acquisition Yo B Ak e B0 TR N FRIR 1,200 —
58,708 43,670
Classified as: DR
Current E 54,086 40,554
Non-current IERED 4,622 3,116
58,708 43,670
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are TETFIE - 124 R H b fE W GRIE A mE K
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed . pE NEETERE -

terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. BE L EERBEISRRIE - E5tA
The financial assets included in the above balances il A ER A Bh A B BT HAND SR XD
relate to receivables for which there was no recent SRR W GRIBEE E -

history of default.
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MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

20. Inventories 20. B&
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Construction materials EERME 7,917 7,365
Natural gas KAR 1,018 1,048
8,935 8,413
21. Amounts Due from Construction Contract 21. EREBEREREZEFRIE
Customers
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T ARETTT
Arising from construction of ERRAREE
natural gas pipelines ELXNER 68,485 60,913
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MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

22. Trade and Bills Receivables 22. BRE S RRARERE

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Trade receivables FEULE 5 BREX 74,652 56,944
Less: Impairment B ORUE 4,114) (3,432)
70,538 53,512
Bills receivable R EE - 250
70,538 53,762
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are fBRETHEFREMNIEN  REEE
mainly on credit except for certain new customers EREEITXNEEZTFRS - THRSH
where payment in advance is required. The average FEEHNFSBE1808 - AEEEEK
trade credit period ranges from 5 days to 180 days. BREBYIAGFEREER  SRER
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its BN e T HiAR o W AR AR BE i dm B A B

outstanding receivables and overdue balances are BREEERRBRERE

reviewed regularly and actively monitored by senior
management to minimise credit risk.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and BWEZERREEAERBERE -

non-interest-bearing.

Aging analysis by invoice date REZAHNRER DM
An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the REZABRMRRER  RFEROE
end of the year, based on the invoice date and net of WE ZERAMBRROTLT ¢

provisions, is as follows:

2017 2016

20175 20165

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Within 90 days 90H K 61,622 33,467
91 days to 180 days 91HZ=180H 194 460
181 days to 360 days 181HZ360H 853 6,016
Over 360 days HiE360H 7,869 13,569
70,538 53,512

216 Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2017



o

22. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
Trade receivables not individually nor
collectively impaired
An aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

22. BB ZRAREE (&)

I S E B Sk R E R BN E 5
ARX

I 4 {5l 2 B B8 LR A8 R E R R UE
SERFHREDNTAT

2017 2016

20175 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETFTT

Neither past due nor impaired 3 A s HAsOR A 49,618 21,001
Past due but not impaired: EEHERBE :

Less than 90 days LR90H 13,051 19,065

Over 90 days H3E90H 7,869 13,446

70,538 53,512

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors believe that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

I 4 760 5 28R 1B A B WK R TR R K & S 1
WEEHDRENDBEPARM °

B A HME AR (E A B MR S T A
SERARTEBRDCENELEP
BR - RIBEERR  EXRRBAMN
ZEEHFHERERE  RRREEE
RUEHIRBEAEY - AXFHEHRIK
BRI A E -
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MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

22. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
Trade receivables that are impaired
The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the
end of the year and the movements in the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

| Sop—

22. BREZRARRE (&)
B E R e E 5 BR K
AEERNFRODREERE S B K
FEAE SRR AR EREEEBOT :

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETT

Movements in allowance account: BRIGRNEE -
At beginning and end of year RENRFR 3,432 2,909
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 2 HEREEEE (H:E7) 3,615 1,323
Impairment losses reversed BEE R (2,933) (800)
4,114 3,432

The impaired trade receivables relate to individual
customers that were in financial difficulties or were
in default in payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

23. Available-for-sale Investments

BB B /9 FE U Z 5 AR 3K B8 1 e B B R 2
S HE R B A E Bl % = R T8 HA S AT Y Bl
EWFIER R - NREEW BB ZFLELR
REEMAERRIEREMEEMRE
iiiid

23. AItHHERE

2017 2016

20175 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARET T

Unlisted debt investments, at fair value 3EFHEKIRE - BAFLE 44,690 112,000

The investments are structured deposit products
issued by China CITIC Bank and PingAn Bank. As at
31 December 2017, the investment amounts were
RMB10,000,000 and RMB34,690,000, respectively.
The principals of these structured deposit products are
guaranteed and the expected return yields rates range
from 2.85% to 3.10% per annum upon maturity.
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MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

24. Balances with Related Parties 24, BERAE F &
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Amounts due from other related parties F& U E i BFE 75 R IE

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#raliism 2,622 1,412

Kunlun Suchuang Usage E m#r eI~ A 1,110 -
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service BN ERZE T E RS

Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Suling BRAF

Automobile Service”) (T&R N B Z )T ARG |) 661 773

4,393 2,185

2017 2016

2017 20165

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Amounts due to other related parties  FEUH {thBIE 5 R IE

Taicang Suchuang Property ARHEIEHEREER
Development Co., Ltd. YNCIRQE-3-1)=3:10- 3 D)
(“Suchuang Property”) 445 _
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

25. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged 25 RERRESEFYREERER

Deposits
2017 2016
20176 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Cash and bank balances e MRTTHER 636,991 400,359
Less: Pledged short-term deposits B BRI HTE K 67,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents B RREEEBY 569,991 400,359
Denominated in RMB AAREEE 385,957 201,099
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 144,478 175,982
Denominated in HK$ LA TTRHE 39,556 23,278
569,991 400,359

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits

approximate to their fair values.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

The short-term deposits were pledged to secure
the Group’s subsidiary Taicang Natural Gas’s
interest-bearing bank loans amounting to
RMB30,000,000 (2016: Nil) as at 31 December 2017
(note 29).
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Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017E12831BIEEE

26. Trade Payables 26. EHE B R
2017 2016
2017 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARBT T
Trade payables JERTE Z RN 50,107 65,294

An aging analysis of the outstanding trade payables as
at the end of the year, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

REZRH RFERNKEERNES
BRARRBRER DTN T -

2017 2016

20175 20165

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Within 90 days 90H A 2,580 51,084
91 to 180 days 91HZ=180H 35,285 3,200
181 to 365 days 181H=365H 7,795 3,823
1 to 2 years 1FE2F 799 7,165
Over 2 years 29 E 3,648 22
50,107 65,294

ENEZERSTFE - —RER180
BAEE -

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 180 days.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

27. Other Payables and Accruals 27 HttEN RERETE R
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBFT
Payroll and welfare payables e & K AE A 5,087 6,853
Accruals FEETE H 1,383 3,460
Other tax payables Hfth RN B IE 9,312 4,783
Other payables H A B A FRIE 19,318 38,509
35,100 53,605

28. Deferred Income 28. U A

Government  Connection
grants fees Total
B8R, BEAE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBFT ARBTR

At 1 January 2016 R20164%1A1H 12,941 84,405 97,346
Additions during the year FRRE 4,051 25,008 29,059
Released to profit or loss BEABR R (753) (15,357) (16,110)
At 31 December 2016 and R20165F12A318 &

1 January 2017 20174F1 A1H 16,239 94,056 110,295
Additions during the year FARE - 31,503 31,503
Released to profit or loss B ABmR (882) (18,841) (19,723)
At 31 December 2017 201712 H31H 15,357 106,718 122,075
Analysed into: BRUTREDN
Current TE 882 19,322 20,204
Non-current FEED 14,475 87,396 101,871

15,357 106,718 122,075
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28. Deferred Income (Continued)

29.

Connection fees represent the fees from customers in

advance in exchange for the connection of gas pipelines

to the urban natural gas pipeline network. These fees

are received in advance and revenue is recognised over

their expected useful lives of ten years.

Asset related government grants are recognised over

the expected useful lives of those gas pipeline assets of

twenty years.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR M

Year ended 31 December 2017

28 IEEW A (48)

BZE2017F12A31BILEE

BABNESATPHREEANRRESR
ERTAAREBBEEMBAHNER -
ZEERITATUE - MEARIZE TR

HARI 6 A R SR RR o

=

\

BT ERNEE R ENRE
BEERRAERFH - TFBA -

Interest-Bearing Bank Loans 29. FFERITER
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREBTIT
Bank loans, unsecured EALIRIRTTE X - 35,780
Bank loans, secured AERMIBITER 90,000 60,000
90,000 95,780

Bank loans bear interest at rates per
annum in the range of

A N LR

B HERTTERK

4.35%-5.39%

2.87%-5.39%

Repayable within one year AR—FNEE 40,000 35,780

Repayable in the second year HANB_FEER 50,000 10,000

Repayable in the third to fifth years, ARE=FEFNLF

inclusive B (BEERME) - 50,000

90,000 95,780

Analysed into: BRUTRIEDH

Current mE 40,000 35,780

Non-current IERED 50,000 60,000
90,000 95,780

The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are REBMTERITERUARKE RB T

denominated in RMB and HK$.

A -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R EE

Year ended 31 December 2017

BE2017F12A31H L FE

29. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans (Continued) 29. Gt ERITER (F&)
The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are secured by AEBE O RRITERTIARFERER
the pledges of the following assets with carrying values B TR TEEEERR :

at the end of the year as follows:

2017 2016

20174 2016%F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
LiEsd AR®T T AREFTT

Pledge of assets: BEHEE

Prepaid land lease payments BN T EE HIA (i) 4,223 4,323

Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB K& (i) 120,893 124,035

Pledged deposits [EEERERN (ii) 67,000 -

Notes: T -

(i) The interest-bearing bank loans amounting to (i) 720174124318 & AE#60,000,000
RMB60,000,000 (2016: RMB60,000,000) as at 31 7T (20164 : A K #60,000,0007T) &)
December 2017 were jointly secured by the Group’s STRIRITERTAAREE TN Lt E
prepaid land lease payments and property, plant and SRIEARZE - B MR HEIER -
equipment.

(i) The interest-bearing bank loans amounting to (i) M2017412A318 + A K #30,000,000
RMB30,000,000 (2016: Nil) as at 31 December 2017 7L (2016%F : &) MYt BRITER I H
were secured by Group’s pledged deposits. NGB ) BRI AR o
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30. Issued Capital 30. EBITRA

Shares idn)

Nominal Nominal

Number of value of value

Notes shares  HK$0.01 each RMB
BREE HE

M Bing R 0.01/87T AR

Authorised: ZEE

At 31 December 2016 and 31 R20165F12A318 &

December 2017 2017%12A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 39,378,500

Issued and fully paid: EZTRHAE :

At 1 January 2016 R201651A18 826,236,000 8,262,360 6,544,106

Issue of new shares BT3B (i) 36,688,000 366,880 313,616

At 31 December 2016 and 1 20165124318 R

January 2017 201741 R1H 862,924,000 8,629,240 6,857,722

Issue of new shares BRI (if) 40,000,000 400,000 356,044

At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 902,924,000 9,029,240 7,213,766

Notes: BT -

(i)  On 29 June 2016, the Company issued 32,288,000 (i) M20165F6H298 ° AR AR REE
shares at the subscription price of HK$2.55 per share and f%2.55% JT % 1732,288,000/% A%
completed the placing of 4,400,000 shares at the placing 5 - W AR EBEIR2.558 T e Al &
price of HK$2.55 per share. 4,400,000 i 5 °

(ii)  On 10 March 2017, the Company completed the placing (i) M2017F3 8108 » KA GIRLEREST
of 40,000,000 shares at the placing price of HK$2.20 A% A% 192.205 It 58 B BE &40,000,000
per share for a total cash consideration, after deducting RERE D - IR RE (RNBRZETIRG
expenses related to issue of shares, of HK$86,156,000 R R X 18 ) 586,156,000 7T (48
(equivalent to approximately RMB76,689,000). LR ARYT6,689,0007T) °
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31. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the directors, other employees of
the Group, consultants and advisers of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 11 March 2015, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from 11 March 2015. The scheme mandate
limited was refreshed on 12 September 2017.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent to, upon their exercise, 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, which should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant share options.
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NAIEEITZARRRND10% ° BAEM
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant of such option; (ii) the average closing prices of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of such option; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
Year ended 31 December 2017
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31. B AESHE (4])

BRELTEEHESETE - ENEE
RIAT 2 &BE (BN R ZABRAER
oz BRE P E B RERMII 2
B (iR ERZAEBRER L B
Al A AR 5% BB e A RERMY
ZFHWTHE R EE -

BRAEY N TR AEAR S SR
RAGRRZER -

o

FRARBEZTE R ARITEZBEREN
T

2017 2016
20174 20164

Weighted Weighted
average  Number average  Number
exercise of  exercise of
price options price options
hn#EF BRE EFH FRRRAE
TEE 4= 1TEE #H

HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
FRET T  BERET T
At 1 January M1H1R 2.000 20,000 2.000 20,000
Granted during the year RERBEHRD 2.535 75,000 - -
At 31 December R12A318 2.422 95,000 2.000 20,000

2017 FF3R | BAIREROBRAE 227



Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

| Sop—

31. BIRFERTE (F)
FASRAE HA SR 1N A 1T B AR ME MO 1T 1 (B %
ITEEARIL T

2017
20174
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE* TEHE
000 HK$ per share
T4 BRET
2-28-17 to 1-28-24
20,000 2.000 17%2H28AE245F1H28H
2-28-18 to 1-23-25
20,000 2.280 18%F2H28HE25%1H23H
5-24-18 to 5-24-21
40,000 2.466 18F5 8240 E2155H24H8
10-24-18 to 10-24-25
15,000 3.060 18F10824HE25F10824H
95,000
2016
20164
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
EIES R 1IfEE 1T HAA
000 HK$ per share
T4 BRETT
2-28-17 to 1-28-24
20,000 2.000 17562 H28HZE 2441 H28H
20,000

The fair value of the share options granted in 2017
was HK$63,652,000 (HK$0.55 to HK$1.18 each)
(2016: Nil), of which the Group recognised a share

20175 - BEBREZATER
63,652,000/ 7T (FRR0.558 T £1.18
HBIT) (20165 - &) - HRAREERE
E2017F 128318 I FEERE R E
318,109,091 T (MERH AR
15,664,4117C) (20165 : &) °

option expense of HK$18,109,091 (equivalent to
approximately RMB15,664,411) (2016: Nil) during the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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31. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted

during the year was estimated as at the date of grant

Notes to Financial Statements

MRS R R M
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31. B AESHE (4])

FA - UNEDEENBRENRFER
REBHERREB AR — SRS EE

using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account B G %#Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁmﬂ%%ﬂ
the terms and conditions upon which the options were éﬁﬁ o TRIHFHRAMAHEA
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the -
model used:
2017 2016
20174 2016%
Share price (HK$ per share) f&E (8 7T) 2.28-3.06 2.00
Exercise price (HK$ per share) ﬁ@i{“ﬁ (BI&ETT) 2.28-3.06 2.00
Dividend yield (%) AR B (%) 1.07-1.46 1.30
Volatility (%) &@JI %) 33.28-38.76 39.49
Risk-free interest rate (%) % I = 1.47-2.27 1.89
Exercise multiple ﬂ@if?ﬁ%( 2.8 for directors,  3.342 for directors
1.5-2.86 for and 2.86 for
employees and employees
1.5 for external 3342 (E2) R
consultants 2.86 (E8)
2.8(E%) 158
2.86 ((E8) R21.5
(HNEER)

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of reporting period, the Company had
95,000,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 95,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional issued
capital of HK$950,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB821,750) and share premium of HK$229,870,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB198,249,350) (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 95,000,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately
10.5% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

AERFERBESAEMMATR L ER
REOREE -

RBEPR RRARRZFEETE
F95,000,00017 14 7K 17 5 2 BE A% #E -
W 52 & M AR 1T 2 B AR M 1 B 9T
F IBARRRBEEABE  BEHR
2% 7795,000,0000% 2N A &) B8 S0 B A%
N FEHNE B 1T IR 950,000 7T (HH %
R A R #821,7507T) & B 15 % B
229,870,000 7T (MM E R B AR
198,249,3507T) (RIBREEITHAZ) ©

E’\ ZEVBERREMLEBR  AQ

PR EZ 5T 178 K # A595,000,00017 B& Hx
W AR RIRZ BB TR B
10.5% °
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32. &

32. Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents those reserve arose from
the reorganisation for the purpose of listing. Details of
the movements in the merger reserve are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain
entities within the Group are required to allocate a
certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined
by their boards of directors, of their profit after tax in
accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve
fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the

registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of
liquidation and, subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations, can be used to offset
accumulated losses or be capitalised as issued capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles
of association, a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a
domestic company is required to appropriate 10% of
its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years) to the statutory surplus reserve. After the
balance of such reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The statutory surplus reserve can be
utilised to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital
after such usages.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve pertains to the benefit derived by the
Group from receiving related party loans with interest
rates below the market rate.
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33.

Reserves (Continued)

Distributable reserve

For dividend purposes, the amounts which the PRC
companies can legally distribute by way of a dividend
are determined by reference to the distributable profits
as reflected in their PRC statutory financial statements
which are prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP.
These profits differ from those that are reflected in this
report which is prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
profits after tax of the PRC companies can be
distributed as dividends after the appropriation to the
SRF as set out above.

Acquisition Of The Subsidiary

(i) Acquisition of the subsidiary accounted for
as business combinations
In October 2017, Suchuang Shanghai, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired 51% of the equity interests in
Xinjiang Dunhua, at a total consideration of
RMB22,330,000. The acquisition was undertaken
to help the Group to step into the CNG market in
Xinjiang province, which is a region with good
growth potential in western China, and broaden
the revenue sources of the Group.

The Group has elected to measure the
non-controlling interests in the subsidiary acquired
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable net assets.

32.

33.
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it ()

A 5 Tt 1
SREME - FERRTEEAREF
DR S BN ELRBRPAARE:
IR B 4 54 40 o B 25 5 A A R R T R R A
AT 5 I R R o S B R R
B % B 75 4R o 2 B T A L0 AR 3R 5 T A
B R AR o

REBFBEQEE - FERQRNRTIE G
MEZ EXFri D REEEERERER
ERREDIK °

s B B B8 2 B
(i) BREBSHFORBHEBAR

20175108 * A ARIZ2ENE
NaElERAl g ES 1%
fxtE - BRERARK22,330,000
Lo BITZKEEEENASEE
BEEPBEASEE RIFIERE D
MEBEEBERARTS - WHRAK
EBUIRAZR ©

AEBECEBRRIFERER TR
FE P8 1 B R0 R 385l 8 B F B R P
1 B0 EL P 5+ 8 A T IR IB P /8 2 B /Y
FRIERR LR o

2017 R | HAMKRBROERAF

231



Notes to Financial Statements

MR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE2017F12A31B LFE

33. Acquisition Of The Subsidiary (Continued)
Acquisition of the subsidiary accounted for
as business combinations (Continued)

(i)

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2017

The provisional fair values of the identifiable assets

and liabilities of the acquired subsidiary during the

year as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

33. KBTI B 2 | (4&)
(i) BREBSHOBIBHEBRR

(&)

| Sop—

FR - R R RATKER B QR
MAIBREEMBENEEAFE

o :

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition
MU
o TE
Notes RMB’000
Bt AREFTT
Property, plant and equipment M - HE k& 13 423
Prepaid land lease prepayments TEfS + A S RRIE 14 4,183
Intangible assets BIVEE 16 7,034
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREFEY 10
Prepayments, deposits and other BNFIE - EBE Rk
receivables H b W 3k IE 22,920
Trade payables FERTE 5 BRR (55)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 18 (1,759)
Total identifiable net assets BRAFEFEZ AT #5
at fair values* FE EERE 32,756
Non-controlling interests PR RE = (16,051)
Total net assets acquired il S B E 4R RE 16,705
Goodwill on acquisition RWEmEENEHE 15 5,625
22,330
Satisfied by: AATHRZA :
Cash R 22,330
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33. Acquisition Of The Subsidiary (Continued)

(i)

Acquisition of the subsidiary accounted for

as business combinations (Continued)

* The assessments of the fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Xinjiang Dunhua are still
undergoing and the information of the fair values of
the identifiable assets and liabilities is provisional.
The finalised information will be disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ending 31 December 2018.

The fair values of the acquired trade receivables
and other receivables as at the date of acquisition
approximate to their gross contractual amounts.
None of these receivables are expected to be

uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of
RMB120,672 for the acquisition. These transaction
costs have been expensed and are included in
other expenses in profit or loss.

The goodwill of RMB5,624,871 recognised above
is due to the new market in Xinjiang province
entered by the Group to develop its CNG
refuelling station business. The above factor is
neither separable nor contractual and therefore the
goodwill does not meet the criteria for recognition
as intangible asset under IAS 38 Intangible
Assets. Goodwill recognised is not expected to be

deductible for income tax purposes.
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33. KBTI B 2 | (4&)

(i) BREBSHORBHEBAR

(&)

* OEBREMNAEEERARA
FEFGHDEETS  WEBEA
BRHEENBBEATEZENA
BT RBRERBRAEBEHZE
2018512 B31H It FEWNLEA BT

BRRPEE -

FfT U5 B W B 55 B S Lt WK
BERBERHNATEERSERS
M ERE - BHMEZSTRUGK

IHATE o

AEBUKBIIEENRZIEABA
R#120,672TC °c ZERX S5 AL

S ET AR P EMASA

ExmREE ARK5624,871
TL AR AEEEENEL B
RARNIGERBHERARINR 4
T o LA EREZEREA] 95 F IR
FEUNEREAEFE - AltZEEaL
AR BEER ST ERIFE385 &
FFEERRBEBLEENEY - 18
HAFR TSR /0 R B T 0] PR YE R P

851 -
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33. Acquisition Of The Subsidiary (Continued)
(ii) An analysis of the cash flows in respect

| Sop—

33. KBTI B 2 | (4&)
(i) ERWEHRBLARINIRERE

of the acquisition of the subsidiary is as DTHWOT -
follows:
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
Cash consideration RERE (22,330)
Cash and bank balances acquired P IR & RaRTTAE R 10
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash G A& FEFERE
flows from investing activities RENHRERREE
{BEY1m %8 (22,320)
Transaction costs of the acquisitions included in cash flows FF AL EEFTFIRE
from operating activities w8 H U X 5 KA (121)
(22,441)

As at 31 December 2017, the acquired subsidiary

did not start operation.

34. Notes To The Consolidated Statement Of
Cash Flows
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

HZE2017F12A31H T ERNNH B
NEWREAEE ©

34. FERERBRMEE

WA EDE LN A AN E

Bank and other

loans

RITREMERK

RMB’000

AR¥TT

At 1 January 2017 201751 /1H 95,780
Changes from financing cash flows MERESRENED (5,780)
At 31 December 2017 2017512 4318 90,000
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35. Operating Lease Arrangements 35. REHERH

(a) As lessor (a) EAHHEA
The Group leases certain parts of its buildings AEERBKEHETHHEHE
under operating lease arrangements, with leases FrETEHD - BEEBE—EN
negotiated for terms ranging from one to eight FAE - HEMBGR—RIFEREP

years. The terms of the leases generally also T HRES o

require tenants to pay security deposits.

At the end of the year, the Group had total future REBRFEEBE P A
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable SHAS S TH B P F AR B B89 R 2R FE UL
operating leases with its tenants falling due as IEMEEFIBELFMNT -
follows:
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Within one year —F R 3,412 2,401
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_ZFERF 7,330 5,211
(BEEREMF)
After five years hFig 2,004 2,622
12,746 10,234
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35. Operating Lease Arrangements (Continued) 35. REHERH (&)

(b) As lessee (b) EAREIEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties AEERBRKEHETHHERS
and motor vehicles under operating lease THAEYENAE @ BT HEHH
arrangements, with negotiated terms ranging from —E=FLFF-

one to three years.

At the end of the year, the Group had total future AEEBBENAIRECEHERF
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable REFOARRKERENFETEN
operating leases falling due as follows: e 8
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Within one year —F A 1,736 1,360
In the second to third years, inclusive E_EE=F 307 1,311
(BEEEMF)
2,043 2,671
36. Capital Commitments 36. B AKIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at REF  NEBHEAEREDNT

the end of the year:

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: EEIF RS
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE KR 6,379 11,198
Approved, but not contracted for: EFHIERGTA
Property, plant and equipment UERN S - -
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37. Related Party Transactions 37V.BRELRZ
(a) Name and relationship (a) BHBKERE

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

BB B BN R B R (%
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Associate

Em#Raim

BEAH

Kunlun Suchuang Usage Associate

E @& el H A N

Suchuang Group Company controlled by certain directors
IS of the Company

ARAETEFZHHAR

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation Co., Company controlled by certain directors

Ltd. (“Dangerous Goods Transportation”) of the Company
AegalehmERARAR ([BRmE%H]) ARRETEFEHR QA
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service Company controlled by certain directors
BRN ER )T B AR S of the Company

ARTAETFEERHINAT

Taicang Suchuang Property Development Co., Ltd. Company controlled by certain directors
(“Suchuang Property”) of the Company
AR#eEHERBEAR AR ([FHEIFSHE]) ARBETEFZEFNAR
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37. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 37.BERRXS (&)
(b) Apart from the transactions and balances (b) RERN  BIHERE LMD
disclosed elsewhere in the financial TR SR A - A B RS
statements, the Group had the following EHEAT ST

material transactions with related parties
during the year:

2017 2016
20175 20165
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3t ARBTR ARETT
Associates: BERT
Transmission and sale of natural gas to ~ ## K&
ABRT
Kunlun Suchuang Gas ERm#elRE (i) 12,641 12,955
Kunlun Suchuang Usage B makel A (i) 17,839 39
30,480 12,994
Purchase of natural gas from EUTLaFEXAR
Kunlun Suchuang Gas EREelRE (i) 20,994 20,414
Rental income HEWA
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#eIR (ii) 642 587
Kunlun Suchuang Usage B m & a7 (ii) 549 689
1,191 1,276
Sale of fixed assets to HEBEEET
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em&aR (iii)/(vii) 10,932 =
Others: Hith
Rental income from FEL T4 a8
HERA
Suchuang Group #elsE (ii) 330 330
Purchase of goods from BU T2 a5 B
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service M EE TE R (iv) 605 526
Purchase of properties from BU TR Atk %
Suchuang Property FElEE (V)/(vii) 2,445 -
Motor vehicle rental service provided by @14 T2 alfe
JTEHERE
Dangerous Goods Transportation BhnEs (vi) 556 556
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37. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

Apart from the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties
during the year: (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

The above transactions were conducted in accordance
with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by both
parties.

Rental income represents considerations received for
the rental of office premises to the Group’s associates
and fellow subsidiaries. The directors confirmed that
the annual rentals payable under the relevant rent
agreements had been agreed by both parties.

The Group entered into an agreement with Kunlun
Suchuang Gas to transfer certain fixed assets of 7
natural gas pipelines in total located in Taicang. The
consideration was determined and agreed by the two
parties by reference to the market value.

The Directors considered that motor vehicle fuels are
provided by Suzhou Suling Automobile Service on
normal commercial terms.

The Group entered into an agreement with Suchuang
Property to purchase certain properties located in
Taicang. The consideration was determined and agreed
by the two parties by reference to the market value.

The Group entered into agreements with Dangerous
Goods Transportation to rent certain motor vehicles. The
directors confirmed that the annual rentals payable under
the relevant agreements had been agreed by both parties.

The directors confirmed that these related party
transactions were one-off transactions and have been
terminated already.
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37. BELXR S (&)

(b)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

RER - BT BHRE M EB 0 FTH
B 5 KGRI - AR B RERE
FTHOEBERZSWT : (&)

b2 5 TR R 5 % 75 AR 1 5 HO
ANRIFHETT ©

BB AERAEE NS R EREAR
MBARLERAZMEND WHKE -
EEwAMEEERZE TENFER

ETVEETTWE

AEEEEmEFAIMRAT L — D% -
NEBEURARNER7TERAREE
METEEEE - REVBHETL2E
MEREE RWHE °

EERREFNHENERBIIRERR
KIRFERMOTEREL o

REE AR RIS ER] S — 10 ek
MBENRARME TYE - KE
THETE2ETMEREE LB

=

E
ARBRCRIERTIAEETHE

W% - EFWERERIGEE NENF
BHESTIEEFHE

EXEAMEIRZ A RER5EE
ALk o
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37. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s balances with other related
parties at the end of the year are disclosed in note

24 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

| Sop—

37. BELXR S (&)

(c)

HREREN AREEEER

6% B B HL {th B 2 05 I R R A R Y
FHIE MBI IRARM 24

AEENTEZETEE A 8B R

2017 2016

20175 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Basic salaries and other benefits EXFH e REMBET 6,647 7,304

Pension scheme contributions RINEETEIH R 59 81

Equity-settled share option expenses — LAME % 45 & #) B8 AR HE R 1 1,081 1,578
Total compensation paid to key ENEEEEEASR

management personnel B R BN 48 %R 7,787 8,963

Further details of directors’ emoluments are

included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(ii), (b)(iv), and (b)(vi) above also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which are
exempted from the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As Kunlun
Suchuang Gas and Kunlun Suchuang Usage are not
connected entities according to the Listing Rules,
the related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(i), (b)(ii) and b(iii) do not constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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38. Financial Instruments By Category 38. RERIEIMNEMTE
The table below is an analysis of the carrying amounts TRIDPNFRZERNE SN/ T A
of financial instruments by category as at the end of the FREED T
year:
2017 20175
Financial assets LRAE
Available-for-
Loans and  sale financial
receivables assets Total
EXR AHHE
PEW R IE CREE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Trade and bills receivables W E 5 RS R FE 67,998 = 67,998
Financial assets included in T ATERFOE -
prepayments, deposits and other me MEME
receivables WHIEN & B E B 15,282 = 15,282
Amounts due from other JRE Wk L fth 3 5 k3R
related parties 4,393 = 4,393
Available-for-sale investments EHERE - 44,690 44,690
Pledged deposit [REERHECE N 67,000 - 67,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeEMREEEY 569,991 = 569,991
724,664 44,690 769,354
Financial liabilities e =k
Financial
liabilities

measured at
amortised cost

RBHERATE

Hemas

RMB’000

AR®ET T

Trade payables FEFTE F R 50,107
Financial liabilities included in other payables ST AE fh FE T RIE K

and accruals EAERANERARE 19,319

Amounts due to other related parties R A<t LA 8 77 SRIR 445

Interest-bearing bank loans (including current and ERITER
non-current portion) (BIEENE R IEENEAE ) 90,000
159,871
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38. Financial Instruments By Category 38. RERETWERMT A (8)
(Continued)
The table below is an analysis of the carrying amounts TRINEREZERNE DA E T AL
of financial instruments by category as at the end of the FREES T : (&)
year: (Continued)

2016 20165
Financial assets SREE

Available-for-
Loans and sale financial

receivables assets Total
ERR AHHE
WA CREE Fo

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  AREBTRE  ARETR

Trade and bills receivables JEWE SRR R EE 53,762 = 53,762
Financial assets included in STATEFRIE
prepayments, deposits and other 1% [ H i fE
receivables WHIBR & R E E 35,216 = 35,216
Amounts due from other related — J& U E {th B85 5 3118
parties 2,185 - 2,185
Available-for-sale investments A EERE = 112,000 112,000
Cash and cash equivalents RWERBEESEEY 400,359 = 400,359
491,522 112,000 603,522
Financial liabilities =
Financial
liabilities

measured at
amortised cost

REERATE

Wemas

RMB’000

ARETT

Trade payables JERTE SRR 65,294
Financial liabilities included in other payables and S AE At FE T FRIA

accruals EETERNEmBE 38,509

Interest-bearing bank loans (including current and non- 5 E3#E1TER
current portion) (BIEEEA KR IERNEAER ) 95,780
199,583
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39. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of

Financial Instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current
market conditions regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, amounts due from other related parties,
available-for-sale investments, trade and bills payables,
amounts due to other related parties, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments as
at 31 December 2017.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank loans have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The fair values of
the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank loans
at the end of the reporting period approximated to their

corresponding carrying amounts.
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39. e T AEATFERATFEER

NEEER
AFEAERTMA TR EEHEE
Z(HZAN MEEEFRSEE—
BEEmMSKBEE —BEEmMS X
NEER  THRZERESTEEER
SR EAMGERMEE - R2017F
uﬂma'xﬁlﬁﬁlﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HATEMRS

BB EN2017F12A318 » B
kB EEY  BEEER  BKRES
BEREREE - BWEMEESRIE 7
1&4?&/%3 BNESERREE &
NEMBEESFE - STABNREUR
ReREMBWFENSBMEE 5T A
HitENRBEREGTERANSREBED
AFEREAERAERS  TEHERZE
TEAREHREIE -

TREELRENAFEAZIARE
BRXZTERNRS THARZEBEA
B> MIFRBIFTRIFE - ATEER
FERDEA TITTERRR

HERITERO IR A FERB
RAGR EERRENGIMBERSE
T ARG A BRI RTIRBHARRKER
EREBTAFE o 5T SRITERIEA
HER O R E AR QP EEELRARER
EERE °
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39. Fair Value And Fair Value Hierarchy Of 39. R TAEAFERATFERER
Financial Instruments (Continued) (#&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEER (58)
Assets measured at fair value: A FEFTENEE -

Fair value measurement using
significant observable inputs
(Level 2)
RRAEATEHERSWAETEN
DNFE (F=K)

2017 2016
20174 201645
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Available-for-sale investments A HEKE 44,690 112,000
Liabilities measured at fair value: BAF(EHEMEE
The Group did not have any financial liabilities NEKR  REFBWELAIRATESE
measured at fair value at the end of the year. HEREE -
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: ERENF(EHEE :
The Group did not have any financial assets for which NEKR  AEFBVEESETACHEERD
fair values are disclosed at the end of the year. T EHLREE o
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: ERENTELNEE -

Fair value measurement using
significant observable inputs
(Level 2)
RRAEATEHERSWAETEN
DFE (F=R)

2017 2016
20174 201645
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Interest-bearing bank loans FERITER
(non-current portion) (3EBNEAEB 1A 50,000 60,000
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
include cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and bills receivables, and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as interest-bearing
bank borrowings, deposits and other receivables, and
other payables and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments either for
hedging or for trading purposes. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of the risks which

are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to its interest-bearing
bank loans. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its interest rate risk. With all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit after tax and
equity are affected through the impact on floating rate

borrowings as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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0. WK EBREENEBEREE

AEENTIEZCRMTATZBRENER
REEZRELNREMASFEY B
HRER  RREZERREERANE
NEZER  AEBE A BRITE
§ - 1RE K A R WA A B E A FE A
RALEHERASHEMEMEENE
B HARSMIANTIZANRER
AEBHREEEES -

AEESBRTAMSMNEZRRSZH
REE - INERR  EERRMRESHE
TR - AEBETEFENBETESY
HAEERAENITEESR TR -EFS
REFRIZTEESHEROBE - B
AR

PIESEN
AEEEENMSNREGRBRER
HHEGBRITEREMR - AEELEF
RITE SR T AP EMEER - £/
BEMAZRREFTENERT -
FREBEELANTEMYAREARRHT
Bm N M BREERRTZEMT

Increase/(decrease) in profit after
tax and equity

BRBLEER R IR, OR D)

2017 2016

20175 20165

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T ARETT

Increase by 25 basis points B hn25EE 2 (144) (185)
Decrease by 25 basis points W25 EE 2 144 185
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40. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 0. BRAMEENEEREE (&)

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk HNEE [ B
The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China AEB RSB AN - BUKERS
and the majority of transactions are conducted in RBEHUAREETT - REDHAEER

BENMBEMTUARKIIE AEBEW
S EL NS B S L

RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. The Group has not hedged its
foreign exchange rate risk.

TRINREMBRMBAIZRRERTE
MBI » AR BR AR 1208 A e ARAE R
FRYXTER S E A RENE G
constant, of the Group’s profit after tax and equity. E o

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the year to a reasonably possible change in
the US$ exchange rate, with all other variables held

Increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax and equity
R &SRR R RERE M, ORd)

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AR¥ET T

RMB/US$ ARY ER
Strengthened 5% FH{E5% 7,224 8,799
Weakened 5% §21{B5% (7,224) (8,799)

&R
AEEERFERAREEVENS =

Credit risk
The Group trades only with recognised and

creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis;
therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, the
composition of which is disclosed in note 38, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.
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40. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

Credit risk (Continued)

Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in
economic, industrial or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Group's total

credit exposure.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.
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0. ¥BEMEEN B FERBXK (&)

&Rk (&)

EHAEE  TESERAZEZH MY
RO HBEEAEUNTE BHS

SHERARREASENZ BFE\J—L 2 1M

EBEXR FgHBREREERR -

REE SR

K’il%ﬁﬁﬁ%% MHREBESTEI T AL

,,,,,, SRR RR EtI/\a%J’EE

imﬁlﬂ&ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ (anfEWE SRR
NMERE) NBHBUARKERLEERY
BHREERE °

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEENMEEREEFZREABTER &
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of BoiFE M EEE R 7 B E T o
bank loans. In addition, banking facilities have been AN REBBETRITRE A EEZ
put in place for contingency purposes. 2
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities RER » NEBBRIEITLRBEIEAEZH
as at the end of the year, based on the contractual SEiEEREHEENT
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
On Within Within
demand 1year  2to5 years Total
BEX 1R 2E5FR #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T ARBT ARBTR
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A318
Trade payables ENE SEH - 50,107 - 50,107
Amounts due to other related  FE{F E (b E§iE 7 A
parties 445 - - 445
Financial liabilities included in 5t A& ZUE K
other payables and accruals — fE&+E fHY
SRAE 19,319 - - 19,319
Interest-bearing bank loans STERITER - 43,913 50,768 94,681
19,764 94,020 50,768 164,552
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40. Financial Risk Management Objectives And 40. ERAREENBEERBER (#)
Credit risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) nREEEREM (&)

On Within Within
demand Tyear  2tob5 years Total
RER 15/ 2E5FR Hast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TR ARETR
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12A31H
Trade payables BB Z RN - 65,294 - 65,294
Financial liabilities included in 5t AE A B FUE K&
other payables and accruals — JEFEfH)
TREE 38,509 - - 38,509
Interest-bearing bank loans SFRRITER = 39,249 63,666 102,915
38,509 104,543 63,666 206,718

248

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contracts is the maximum amount the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the year, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under

the arrangement.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the

year.
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40. Financial Risk Management Objectives And

41.

Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital. The Group’s
net debt consists of interest-bearing bank loans, less
cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents total

equity.

At the end of the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, but are not
limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and
financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group
has a reasonable level of capital to support its business.
The net debt to equity ratios at the end of the years are

as follows:
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0. WK EBREENEBEREE (&)

E¢EE (&)

AEBRAFEGHERLREETER
T FHEBL R R BERFREER A
BER - REBEMFEHIZTSRITER
BEAEE MRS EEYAE - BRI EE

Az
mAAEE o

RER » AEBHBR SR FHESLE
@ REFRIBRAEAKE - AH
HEREE - AEEMRANERRR
B (BARN) A RKKRRAERER
KA R B 75 B B By 4K B SR EVBE D
HABRITREGFNAEKRF - L
BERETEIR@METE (MARE) - K
BARAEEAEFHEEKFNEARNIFHH
EHEE - RFERRFEFL LR
W

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARYF T AREFTT

Interest-bearing bank loans FTRIRITER 90,000 95,780

Less: Cash and cash equivalents o Be MRS EEY (569,991) (400,359)

Net debt AT (479,991) (304,579)

Total equity SRR 1,355,285 1,146,596

Net debt to equity ratio AT SR L X N/ATE A N/AZ 3 F
Events After The reporting period 41. HEHESE

No significant events took place after the reporting
period.

WEMELEE AR EARER -
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42. Statement Of Financial Position Of The 42. 7 8] B B IS AR R R
Company
Information about the statement of financial position RN TR IRE R BF AR R R ABEE A
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BT
follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB k& 38 51
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR/ E 2,008 2,008
Total non-current assets IEREN B EARRR 2,046 2,059
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents BENIBEEEY 198,029 212,800
Prepayments, deposits TENFIE - BE Rk
and other receivables H A e U IR 3,680 276
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT /8~ B FOAR 537,460 537,460
Total current assets MB)EEMERE 739,169 750,536
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans SFRIRITER - 35,780
Other payables H o e R 1,950 3,668
Total current liabilities mE) B EERE 1,950 39,448
NET CURRENT ASSETS BERBEE 737,219 711,088
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABEE
LIABILITIES 739,265 713,147
Net assets BEFHE 739,265 713,147
EQUITY =
Issued capital BTN 7,214 6,858
Reserves (note) EE (Misx) 732,051 706,289
Total equity s iaEa 739,265 713,147
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43.
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Statement Of Financial Position Of The
Company (Continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company’ s reserves is as follows:

4

N

ADFENMBERRER (B)

i
AR REELIT -

Retained

profits/
Share Share option Capital (accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve losses) equity

REEH /
Rty BRERE ERGEE (BHER) RHAT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT NS S NS S ARBTT NS
At 1 January 2016 R20165F1H1H 650,738 909 932 2,168 654,747
Loss for the year FEER = = = (2,324) (2,324)
Issue of shares B1IRD 79,658 = = = 79,658
Share issue expenses BRin BT Y (3,066) - - = (3,066)
Dividends declared and paid & Z &k K& % R 8. = = = (28,092) (28,092)

Equity-settled share option

arrangements s A ENERERE = 5,366 S = 5,366
At 31 December 2016 and T 2016128318 %

January 2017 20171 A18 727,330 6,275 932 (28,248) 706,289
Loss for the year FEEEHAR = = = (45,473) (45,473)
Issue of shares BT 77,974 = = = 77,974
Share issue expenses Bin B4R X (1,285) - - = (1,285)
Dividends declared and paid & Z & K& % R 8. = = = (25,282) (25,282)
Equity-settled share option  PAREZS 4 E )

arrangements BT = 19,828 = = 19,828
At 31 December 2017 ®2017€12R318 804,019 26,103 932 (99,003) 732,051

The Company’s capital surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the Company over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of the
share options granted which are yet to be exercised.
Please refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements for details. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.

43.

ARBERRBEARRRD A FEEE
HARBREBRARERATEMEITH
RO EENEE

BRERERECREERRITENE
iR EIN A TE - HIBF2HGEA Y
BHWKRMEE - BABEREETE -
ZETARERERMNGEER: 564
BRI MR RIEBEERE R
A e

i Eg: ok iy 3

Mk e KL EESZN2018%F3 H28H
HEfE B AR B o

2017 FF3 | HARRROARDF

251



252

Financial Summary

P HE

RESULTS &
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20174 20164 20154 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTE ARETT ARETR AR%TR
(Restated)
(REh)
Revenue WA 967,267 740,895 795,625 785,592 663,663
Cost of sales HEKAR (738,282) (531,554) (595,220) (595,566) (463,588)
Gross profit =7 228,985 209,341 200,405 190,026 200,075
Other income and gains LR OGS 16,671 22,419 33,222 9,959 4,521
Selling and distribution costs 4% RAHKA (11,515) (10,459) (4,016) (4,788) (2,796)
Administrative expenses THRX (68,672) (48,288) (40,077) (27,183) (20,923)
Other expenses HfthF (12,892) (1,309) (3,055) (1) (305)
Finance costs RERA (6,290) (4,524) (5,817) (19,023) (42,267)
Associates YN 1,911 1,543 4,677 4,948 3,285
Profit before tax BRBLAD R R 148,198 168,723 185,339 153,938 141,590
Income tax expense PEHIR X (48,058) (44,906) (46,700) (37,578) (35,098)
Profit for the year/period FE/HBER 100,140 123,817 138,639 116,360 106,492
Profit for the year/period UTEFEEEE /
attributable to: HRRF
Owners of the parent BRREEA 93,902 120,681 138,639 116,360 106,703
Non-controlling interests FEERER 6,238 3,136 - - 211)
100,140 123,817 138,639 116,360 106,492
ASSET, LIABILITIES AND BE 8
TOTAL EQUITY G farokl
Total assets BEMRE 1,860,285 1,659,640 1,365,070 967,274 1,130,203
Total liabilities BEER 504,401 513,044 434,920 506,004 858,593
Total equity BnEE 1,355,884 1,146,596 930,150 461,270 271,610
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